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Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this report to “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to Tailored Brands, Inc. and
its subsidiaries. References herein to years are to the Company’s 52-week or 53-week fiscal year, which ends on the Saturday nearest
January 31 in the following calendar year. The periods presented in our financial statements are the fiscal years ended February 1, 2020
(“fiscal 2019”), February 2, 2019 (“fiscal 2018”), and February 3, 2018 (“fiscal 2017”). Each of these periods had 52 weeks except for
fiscal 2017, which consisted of 53 weeks.
Forward-Looking and Cautionary Statements
Certain statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or in other materials we have filed or will file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) (as well as information included in oral statements or other written statements made or to be made by us)
contains or may contain forward-looking statements (as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995), including, but not
limited to, statements regarding our future financial performance and financial condition. Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,”
“envisions,” “targets,” “goals,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” variations of such words and similar
expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements reflect our current views regarding
certain events that could affect our financial condition or results of operations and may include, but are not limited to, references to future
sales, comparable sales, margins, costs, earnings, number and costs of store openings, closings, remodels, refreshes, relocations and
expansions, capital expenditures, potential acquisitions or divestitures, synergies from acquisitions, business strategies, demand for our
retail clothing or rental products, economic conditions, market trends in the retail business, currency fluctuations, inflation and various
political, legal, regulatory, social, economic and business trends. Forward-looking statements are based upon management’s current
beliefs or expectations and are inherently subject to significant business, economic and competitive risks, uncertainties and contingencies
and third party approvals, many of which are beyond our control.
Any forward-looking statements that we make herein and in future reports are not guarantees of future performance, and actual results may
differ materially from those in such forward-looking statements as a result of various factors. Factors that might cause or contribute to
such differences include, but are not limited to: actions or inactions by governmental entities; domestic and international macro-economic
conditions; inflation or deflation; the loss of, or changes in, key employees; success, or lack thereof, in formulating or executing our
internal strategies and operating plans including new store and new market expansion plans; cost reduction initiatives and revenue
enhancement strategies; store rationalization plans; changes to our capital allocation policy; changes in demand for our clothing or rental
products; market trends in the retail or rental business; customer confidence and spending patterns; changes in traffic trends in our stores;
customer acceptance of our merchandise strategies, including polished casual and custom clothing; performance issues with key suppliers;
disruptions in our supply chain; severe weather; public health crises, including the recent coronavirus outbreak; foreign currency
fluctuations; government export and import policies, including the enactment of duties or tariffs; advertising or marketing activities of
competitors; the impact of cybersecurity threats or data breaches; legal proceedings and the impact of climate change.
Forward-looking statements are intended to convey the Company’s expectations about the future, and speak only as of the date they are
made. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements that may be made from time to time,
whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise, except as required by applicable law. However, any further
disclosures made on related subjects in our subsequent reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K should be consulted. This discussion is
provided as permitted by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and all written or oral forward-looking statements that are
made by or attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referenced in this section.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General
We are a leading omni-channel specialty retailer of menswear, including suits, formalwear and a broad selection of polished and business
casual offerings. We help our customers look and feel their best by delivering personalized products and services through our convenient
network of over 1,400 stores in the United States (“U.S.”) and Canada as well as our branded e-commerce websites at
www.menswearhouse.com and www.josbank.com. Our brands include Men’s Wearhouse, Jos. A. Bank, Moores Clothing for Men
(“Moores”) and K&G.
Recent Strategic Changes
We believe structural and strategic changes are necessary to compete in the changing and challenging retail environment. Our goal is to
transform the Company with a focus on being anchored in and obsessed with the customer, by: (1) investing for long-term and sustainable
value creation, (2) focused execution that allows us to continue to generate cash and meet our financial commitments, (3) using data and
analysis to guide decisions, and (4) moving with an urgency that reflects our conviction and confidence in our ability to own the customers’
loyalty and advocacy. To that end, during fiscal 2019 and the first quarter of fiscal 2020, we announced the following significant actions in
support of our transformation:
●

On January 16, 2020, we entered into an agreement with WHP Global to sell the Joseph Abboud trademarks for a total of $115.0
million in cash consideration. The transaction closed on March 4, 2020 and upon closing, we entered into a license agreement with
WHP Global granting the Company the exclusive right and license to sell and rent Joseph Abboud branded apparel and related
merchandise in the U.S. and Canada.

●

On December 11, 2019, we announced the creation of a new Chief Customer Officer role providing common leadership for our
Men’s Wearhouse, Jos. A. Bank and Moores brands, and we eliminated the brand president position for these brands. Carrie Ask,
then brand president of Men’s Wearhouse and Moores, was appointed as Chief Customer Officer. We believe this new structure
heightens our focus and ability to unlock value across our brand portfolio and will enable us to show up for our customers in more
effective and efficient ways.

●

On September 11, 2019, after extensive review, we announced an update to the Company’s capital allocation strategy. Effective in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2019, our quarterly cash dividend was suspended and redeployed for accelerated debt reduction and
opportunistic share repurchases. Suspending the quarterly cash dividend of $0.18 per share is expected to make available
approximately $36.5 million of cash on an annualized basis.

●

On August 16, 2019, we completed the sale of MWUK Limited, our UK corporate apparel operations conducted by Dimensions,
Alexandra, and Yaffy to Project Dart Bidco Limited, pursuant to a Share Purchase Agreement entered into on that same date. In
addition, we also completed the sale of Twin Hill Acquisition Company, Inc. (“Twin Hill”), to TH Holding Company, pursuant to a
Stock Purchase Agreement entered into on August 16, 2019. The aggregate consideration for all of the outstanding equity of
MWUK Limited and Twin Hill (collectively, the “corporate apparel business”) was approximately $ 62 million, subject to certain
working capital adjustments. After consideration of working capital adjustments and other related items, we received $49.3 million
in cash during 2019 and approximately $6.0 million will be received in the first quarter of fiscal 2020.
We determined that the sale of the corporate apparel business represented a strategic shift that will have a major effect on our results
of operations and, as a result, we have presented the disposal as discontinued operations in our financial statements. Unless noted
otherwise, discussion in this Annual Report on Form 10-K pertains to our continuing operations.
In addition, as a result of this change in our organizational structure, we reassessed our segment reporting presentation. We
determined that the results from our four retail brands: Men’s Wearhouse/Men’s Wearhouse and Tux, Jos. A. Bank, K&G and
Moores represent separate operating segments that should continue to be aggregated into a reportable segment and, as a result, we
have only one reportable segment.
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Overview
We offer our products and services through our retail brands—Men’s Wearhouse, Men’s Wearhouse and Tux, Jos. A. Bank and K&G in
the United States and Moores in Canada—and through the internet at www.menswearhouse.com and www.josbank.com. Men’s
Wearhouse, Moores and K&G each operate as a house of brands carrying a wide selection of exclusive and non-exclusive merchandise
brands. Jos. A. Bank is a branded house where substantially all merchandise is sold under the exclusive Jos. A. Bank label.
As of February 1, 2020, we operated 1,450 stores in the U.S. and Canada. We also own and operate a factory located in New Bedford,
Massachusetts that manufactures quality U.S. made tailored clothing consisting of designer suits (including custom suits), tuxedos, sport
coats and slacks.
Men’s Wearhouse, Men’s Wearhouse and Tux and Moores
Men’s Wearhouse and Moores target the male consumer (18 to 65 years old) by providing superior, personalized customer service and
offering a broad selection of exclusive and non-exclusive merchandise brands at regular and sale prices that we believe are competitive with
specialty retailers and traditional department stores. Our merchandise includes suits, suit separates, sport coats, slacks, formalwear, polished
casual, denim, sportswear, outerwear, dress shirts, shoes and accessories in classic, modern, slim and ultra-slim fits and in a wide range of
sizes including a selection of “Big and Tall” product.
Although basic styles comprise our core offerings, each season’s merchandise reflects current fit, fabric style and color trends. The
inventory mix at our Men’s Wearhouse and Moores stores primarily consists of business, formalwear and polished casual merchandise
designed to meet the demand of our customers. Based on our experience, we believe that our assortment styling, breadth, quality and price,
coupled with our in-store service, provide us with an advantage over our competitors with our target customer.
During fiscal 2016, we introduced a new collection of custom apparel consisting of suits, sport coats, slacks, shirts, tuxedos and vests,
which are personalized according to a customer’s selection from a variety of attribute-value combinations. From fiscal 2017 through fiscal
2019, we experienced significant growth in sales for custom clothing. See “Business Strategy” for additional information on our custom
clothing business and other strategic initiatives for 2020 and beyond.
We also offer a full selection of special occasion offerings including tuxedo and suit rental product (collectively, “rental product”). We
believe our rental product broadens our customer base by drawing first-time and younger customers into our stores. We also offer our
customers the opportunity to purchase suits for special occasions instead of renting product. Regardless of whether our customer chooses to
purchase or rent, we believe we are well-positioned to meet our customers’ special occasion needs.
At February 1, 2020, we operated 716 Men’s Wearhouse retail apparel stores in 50 states and the District of Columbia. These stores offer a
full selection of retail merchandise and rental product. Men’s Wearhouse stores are primarily located in regional strip and specialty retail
shopping centers or in freestanding buildings that enable our customers to park near the entrance of the store as we believe that men prefer
direct and easy store access.
At February 1, 2020, we also operated another 44 stores in 20 states branded as Men’s Wearhouse and Tux. These stores are referred to as
“rental stores” and offer a full selection of rental product and a limited selection of retail merchandise, and are located primarily in regional
malls and lifestyle centers. Over the last five years, we have closed over 110 Men’s Wearhouse and Tux stores, consistent with our strategy
to serve special occasion customers primarily through our Men’s Wearhouse stores.
At February 1, 2020, we operated 126 Moores retail apparel stores in 10 Canadian provinces. Moores stores are primarily located in
regional strip and specialty retail shopping centers and offer a full selection of retail merchandise and rental product.
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Jos. A. Bank
Jos. A. Bank targets the male consumer (25 to 65 years old) emphasizing superior, personalized customer service and offering high quality
business, formalwear and business casual merchandise, substantially all of which is Jos. A. Bank branded product featuring our Reserve,
Traveler and 1905 labels. Jos. A. Bank merchandise consists of suits, suit separates, sport coats, slacks, formalwear, business casual, denim,
sportswear, outerwear, dress shirts, shoes and accessories in classic, modern, slim and ultra-slim fits and in a wide range of sizes including a
selection of “Big and Tall” product. Although the target gender and age of the Jos. A. Bank customer are similar to Men’s Wearhouse, we
believe the Jos. A. Bank customer and the Men’s Wearhouse customer are differentiated by their style preferences.
Our merchandising strategy is focused on classic styling with attention to detail in quality materials and workmanship. Based on our
experience, we believe that our assortment styling, breadth, quality and price coupled with our in-store service, provides us with an
advantage over our competitors with our target customer.
During fiscal 2016, we introduced custom apparel at Jos. A. Bank consisting of suits, sport coats, slacks, shirts, tuxedos and vests, which
are personalized according to a customer’s selection from a variety of attribute-value combinations. Similar to Men’s Wearhouse and
Moores, we experienced significant growth in sales for custom clothing in fiscal 2017 through fiscal 2019. See “Business Strategy” for
additional information on our custom clothing business and other strategic initiatives for 2020 and beyond.
We also offer a full selection of special occasion rental product at Jos. A. Bank and believe our rental product offering provides the
opportunity to broaden our customer base by drawing first-time and younger customers into our stores. As is the case at Men’s Wearhouse,
we believe Jos. A. Bank is well-positioned to meet its customers’ special occasion needs, through retail clothing offerings, rental product or
custom offerings.
At February 1, 2020, we operated 474 Jos. A. Bank retail apparel stores in 42 states and the District of Columbia. Jos. A. Bank stores are
primarily located in specialty retail centers. In addition, as of February 1, 2020, there are 14 franchise stores.
K&G
K&G stores offer a value-oriented superstore approach that we believe appeals to the more price-sensitive customer in the apparel market.
K&G offers apparel and accessories comparable in quality to that of value-oriented department stores, at prices we believe are typically up
to 60% below the regular prices charged by traditional department stores. K&G’s merchandising strategy emphasizes broad assortments
across all major categories of both men’s and women’s career and casual apparel in a wide range of sizes including “Big and Tall” and
“Women’s plus sizes” as well as tailored clothing, dress furnishings, sportswear, accessories, shoes and children’s apparel. This
merchandise selection, which includes exclusive and non-exclusive merchandise brands, positions K&G to attract a wide range of
customers in each of its markets.
At February 1, 2020, we operated 89 K&G stores in 27 states, 85 of which offer women’s career apparel, sportswear, accessories, shoes and
children’s apparel. K&G stores are “destination” stores located primarily in second generation strip shopping centers that are easily
accessible from major highways and thoroughfares.
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Business Strategy
To fulfill our mission of helping men feel and look their best, we believe we need to:
●

Offer personalized products and services;

●

Provide inspiring and seamless experiences in and across every channel; and

●

Tell the stories of our brands in the digital channels where our customers are increasingly spending their time.

Offer Personalized Products and Services
In 2019, our custom clothing business increased to $276 million, or approximately 12% of retail clothing product net sales, compared to
over $220 million in fiscal 2018. Our custom clothing offerings are available at all Men’s Wearhouse, Jos. A. Bank and Moores locations
with two initial price points: an entry-level offering and a premium offering.
Our focus for the custom business has been on three key aspects that we believe are crucial to the customer: speed, selection and service.
We believe we have significant competitive advantages in these areas because we have: (1) supply chain advantages with our owned
factory that manufactures our premium custom clothing in the U.S. and strong relationships and scale advantages with foreign
manufacturers for our entry level custom clothing, (2) a wide assortment of custom suit fabrics to create high-quality and unique products
for our customers and (3) a convenient U.S. and Canada store footprint staffed by expert wardrobe consultants and tailors.
Further expanding our offerings of personalized products and services, in 2019, we announced partnerships with the National Football
League and National Hockey League that enable us to offer fans the ability to customize their suits and sport coats with linings depicting
their favorite team(s).
Delivering personalized products and services extends beyond our custom clothing offerings. Given the continuing trend in casualization
of workplace and special occasion attire, we have accelerated and plan to continue to accelerate the evolution of our assortments to a mix
that better reflects the way men dress for moments that matter. For example, in 2020, we plan to expand our polished casual assortments
with outfit completers to build head-to-toe looks for our customers, including spring sweaters and layering pieces, as well as grow our
denim, casual fashion chino and performance pants business.
Provide Inspiring and Seamless Experiences In and Across Every Channel
We want our customers to be able to shop whenever, wherever and however they choose, and to have inspiring and seamless experiences in
and across every channel.
Our convenient U.S. and Canada store footprint continues to be a significant asset, yet we believe that the location, look, feel and
functioning of our stores has not kept up with the evolving customer’s expectations. As a result, we intend to make select investments in
our store fleet to improve the customer experience. For example, through the end of 2018, we installed 580 custom clothing fixtures across
the Men’s Wearhouse, Jos. A. Bank and Moores stores to provide a better custom suit buying experience. In 2019, we tested the impact of
enhanced fixtures, in-store graphics and product presentation across our store fleet and are in the process of rolling out elements of these
items to certain stores. In 2020, we are testing the next-generation of store design with a new more modernized version of Men’s
Wearhouse, featuring an open concept floorplan with less merchandise on the floor, distinct merchandising zones for polished casual and
tailored clothing, an elevated rental and custom experience, a new shirt wall and cutting-edge technology to enable the sales process.
We continue to invest in initiatives that support our omni-channel strategies. In recent years, the Company has implemented ‘virtualized
inventory’ that enables our customers to order items through our websites when not available at the store. We also ship online purchases
from our stores to further enhance our customer’s online shopping experience and reduce delivery times. In addition, we offer a guided
shopping experience called “Look Finder” that provides customers with product recommendations. In 2019, we focused on growing our ecommerce sales through a combination of traffic gains, feature enhancements and elevated merchandising and we saw accelerating growth
throughout the year. We plan to build on that success in 2020 with continued focus on improving the customer experience, elevating the
assortment and
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leveraging marketing to drive more visitors to our sites. In addition, we believe we have the potential to significantly increase our online
penetration, which is well below the general apparel industry.
Beyond our store and e-commerce channels, we believe that marketing is an important element of the omni-channel experience. In recent
years, we began evolving our marketing mix, dedicating a greater share of our marketing mix to digital channels to target a broader
customer segment. We believe this advertising strategy is the most effective means of both attracting potential new customers as well as
reinforcing the positive attributes of our various brands with our existing customer base. In 2019, we continued to shift our marketing mix
away from traditional broadcast television and into broad-reach digital channels that are more relevant, more easily personalized, and whose
performance is more easily measured.
Telling the Stories of our Brands Primarily Through Digital Channels
Historically, our advertising strategy was primarily focused on promotional messaging using channels such as television, email, digital
(including social media), mobile and direct mail. We believe that our target customers increasingly want to do business with brands that
stand for more than just price.
We expect to deploy marketing strategies to tell the stories of our brands with a focus on our offerings and customer service. This approach
focuses on our in-store experience to promote a more engaged, personalized shopping experience that features our wardrobe consultants
who help men create their personal style. We intend to build customer loyalty by gaining a greater understanding of our customer’s needs,
helping him meet those needs, and giving him confidence in the way he looks. In addition, we expect to strengthen our company reputation
for social responsibility and grow brand affinity through various initiatives including merchandise donations and social cause campaigns
that resonate with our target customers.
Customer Service and Loyalty
Men’s Wearhouse, Men’s Wearhouse and Tux, Jos. A. Bank and Moores sales teams are trained as consultants to provide customers with
assistance and advice on their apparel needs, including product style, color coordination, fabric choice and garment fit. Wardrobe
consultants are encouraged to offer guidance to the customer at each stage of the decision-making process, making every effort to earn the
customer’s confidence and to create a professional relationship that will continue beyond the initial visit.
K&G stores are designed to allow customers to select and purchase apparel by themselves. For example, each merchandise category is
clearly marked and organized by size, and suits are specifically tagged as a means of further assisting customers to easily select their styles
and sizes. K&G employees are also available to assist customers with merchandise selection, including correct sizing.
Substantially all of our retail apparel stores offer tailoring services to facilitate timely alterations at a reasonable cost to customers. In
addition, we utilize our regional tailor shops, which receive merchandise from stores, to perform tailoring services and return the
merchandise to the store for customer pickup.
We offer our “Perfect Fit” loyalty program to our Men’s Wearhouse, Men’s Wearhouse and Tux and Moores customers and our “Bank
Account” loyalty program for Jos. A. Bank customers. Under these loyalty programs, customers receive points for purchases. Points are
generally equivalent to dollars spent on a one-for-one basis. Upon reaching 500 points, customers are issued a $50 rewards certificate that
they may use to make purchases at our stores or online. All customers who register for our loyalty programs are eligible to participate and
earn points for purchases. We believe that the loyalty programs facilitate our ability to cultivate long-term relationships with our customers.
Purchasing and Distribution
For the Men’s Wearhouse, Jos. A. Bank and Moores brands and, to a lesser extent, our K&G brand, our vertical direct sourcing model with
third-party manufacturers covers design, product development, manufacturing, testing, quality control, and all necessary logistics required
to get merchandise from the factory to the sales floor. We purchase merchandise and rental product from a broad base of manufacturers and
do not believe that the loss of any manufacturer would cause a significant negative impact to us. We have no material long-term
merchandise manufacturing contracts and typically transact business on a purchase order-by-purchase order basis either directly with
manufacturers and fabric mills or with trading companies. We have developed long term and reliable relationships with most of our direct
manufacturers
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and fabric mills, which we believe provides stability, quality and price leverage. Furthermore, we work with trading companies that support
our relationships with manufacturers for our direct-sourced merchandise and contract agent offices that provide administrative functions on
our behalf. The agent offices provide all quality control inspections and ensure that our operating procedures manuals are adhered to by our
manufacturers.
We are committed to corporate social responsibility and have long supported the work of international agencies and organizations that seek
to implement internationally recognized standards for labor practices. We have developed and implemented a Supplier Code of Conduct
that sets forth the compliance requirements that all suppliers must agree to in order to do business with us. Our risk management department
oversees our factory compliance efforts, and we also use the services of an outside audit company to conduct regular audits of factories we
use. We strive to work collaboratively with factories to positively influence them to embed compliance into their daily operations. We also
maintain standards and guidelines to prevent human trafficking and slavery, and our managers with direct responsibility for supply chain
management have attended training, particularly with respect to mitigating these risks within the supply chain. For additional information
regarding our commitment to improving factory working conditions, please review our latest Sustainability Report, which is available on
our website at ir.tailoredbrands.com/responsibility.
For fiscal 2019, approximately 66% of direct sourced merchandise for our retail brands was from Asia (18% from China) while 13% was
sourced in the U.S. (primarily from our U.S. factory), 7% was sourced in Mexico and 14% was sourced in other regions. By comparison, in
fiscal 2018, approximately 72% of direct sourced merchandise was from Asia (23% from China) while 9% was sourced in Mexico, 8% was
sourced in the U.S. (primarily from our U.S. factory) and 11% was sourced in other regions. Substantially all of our foreign purchases are
negotiated and paid for in U.S. dollars.
We use a regional distribution center approach to leverage the geographic locations of our main distribution centers in Texas and Maryland,
as well as the facilities described below. Merchandise received into these regional distribution centers is either placed in back-stock or
allocated to a store for shipping. In the majority of our larger markets, we also have separate hub distribution facilities or space within
certain stores used as redistribution facilities for their respective areas. Merchandise for Moores is distributed to the stores from our
distribution center in Cambridge, Ontario. The majority of merchandise for our K&G stores is direct shipped by suppliers to the stores with
the remainder of K&G merchandise being managed via a third-party logistics firm.
Our rental product is located in six distribution facilities: our Houston, Texas distribution center and five additional distribution facilities
located in the U.S. (four) and Canada (one). The five additional distribution facilities also receive limited quantities of retail product,
primarily formalwear accessories, that is sold in our Men’s Wearhouse, Men’s Wearhouse and Tux, Jos. A. Bank and Moores stores.
All retail merchandise and new rental product transported from suppliers to our distribution facilities is done so via common carrier or on a
dedicated fleet of long-haul vehicles. This dedicated fleet is also used to transport product from our distribution centers to the hub facilities
and a fleet of leased or owned smaller vehicles is used to transport product from the hub facilities to our stores within a given geographic
region.
Competition
We compete against a broad spectrum of men’s clothing retailers and rental product providers. Our primary competitors include traditional
department stores, other specialty men’s clothing stores, online retailers, online formalwear rental providers, off-price retailers,
manufacturer-owned and independently-owned outlet stores, independently-owned formalwear rental stores, and all of their respective ecommerce channels. We believe that the principal competitive factors in the men’s apparel market are merchandise assortment, quality,
value, garment fit, merchandise presentation, store location, seamless omni-channel experience and customer service, including on-site
tailoring.
We believe that our merchandise offerings, including exclusive brands and custom clothing, and emphasis on customer service distinguish
us from other retailers. Certain of our competitors (principally department stores) are larger and have substantially greater financial,
marketing and other resources than we have and, therefore, they may have certain competitive advantages over us.
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Seasonality
Our sales and net earnings are subject to seasonal fluctuations and may vary by brand. Typically, our rental product revenues are heavily
concentrated in the second and third quarters (prom and wedding season) while the fourth quarter is the seasonal low point. Because of
these fluctuations, results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for the full year.
Trademarks and Service Marks
We are the owner in the U.S. and selected other countries of the numerous trademarks and service marks we use including, without
limitation, MEN’S WEARHOUSE, MW MEN’S WEARHOUSE (and design) and JOS. A. BANK, and of U.S. and foreign registrations for
such marks. Our rights in the MEN’S WEARHOUSE, JOS. A. BANK and other marks and their respective variations are a significant part
of our business, as the marks have become well known through our use of the marks in connection with our retail and formalwear rental
services and products (both in store and online) and our advertising campaigns. We are also the owner of various other trademarks and
service marks, and corresponding trademark registrations in the U.S., Canada and abroad under which our stores operate or which are used
to label the products we sell or rent. We intend to maintain and protect our marks and the related registrations.
We are the licensee for certain designer labels on various products such as men’s suits, men’s formalwear or men’s shirts. We generally pay
a royalty for the use of the label, based on cost for the relevant product or a percentage of related sales. We monitor the performance of
these licensed labels compared to their cost and may elect to selectively terminate any license, as provided in the particular agreement.
Employees
At February 1, 2020, we had approximately 19,300 employees, consisting of approximately 17,600 in the U.S. and 1,700 in Canada, of
which approximately 13,700 were full-time employees. Seasonality affects the number of part-time employees as well as the number of
hours worked by full-time and part-time employees.
At February 1, 2020, approximately 650 of our employees at the factory located in New Bedford, Massachusetts are members of Unite
Here, a New England based labor union. Our most recent collective bargaining agreement covering these employees expires in April 2022.
Also, approximately 180 employees working in the Jos. A. Bank Hampstead, Maryland tailoring overflow shop and distribution centers are
represented by the Mid-Atlantic Regional Joint Board, Local 806. The current union contract is scheduled to expire in February 2023.
Lastly, approximately 90 Jos. A. Bank sales associates in New York City and four surrounding New York counties are represented by
Local 340, New York New Jersey Regional Joint Board, Workers United. The current union contract is scheduled to expire in April 2020.
We believe our relationship with our union and non-union employees is good and we have no reason to believe that we will experience any
interruption in our business upon the expiration of these collective bargaining agreements. At Tailored Brands, we strive every day to create
a safe and inclusive workplace and work to create a culture that fosters the needs of our diverse employee family.
Sustainability
We recognize that our business operations rely heavily on people and impact the communities around us and our planet. We are committed
to social responsibility and environmental stewardship throughout the Company and endeavor to provide an inclusive workspace where
everyone is treated with respect, nurture the communities in which we operate and be good citizens of our planet. Our latest Sustainability
Report is available on our website at ir.tailoredbrands.com/responsibility.
Available Information
Men’s Wearhouse began operations in 1973 as a partnership and was incorporated as Men’s Wearhouse under the laws of Texas in May
1974. Effective January 31, 2016, Tailored Brands became the successor reporting company to Men’s Wearhouse, pursuant to a holding
company reorganization. Our principal corporate and executive offices are located at 6380 Rogerdale Road, Houston, Texas 77072-1624
(telephone number 281-776-7000) and at 6100 Stevenson Blvd., Fremont, California 94538-2490 (telephone number 510-657-9821),
respectively.
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Our corporate website address is www.tailoredbrands.com. No information contained on any of our websites is intended to be included as
part of, or incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Through the investor relations section of our website, we
provide free access to our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments
to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”). In addition, copies of the Company’s annual reports will be made available, free of charge, upon written request.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
There are many risks and uncertainties that could, and likely will, adversely affect our business. These risks and uncertainties include, but
are not limited to, the risks described below and elsewhere in this report, particularly found in “Forward-Looking and Cautionary
Statements.” The following is not intended to be a complete discussion of all potential risks or uncertainties, as it is not possible to predict
or identify all risk factors. Unknown or unidentified additional risks and uncertainties could also adversely affect our business. In addition,
the risks described below are not listed in order of the likelihood that the risk might occur or the severity of the impact if the risk should
occur.
Our business will be adversely affected by the recent coronavirus outbreak.
Overview
The U.S. and other countries are experiencing a major global health pandemic related to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID19”), which has adversely impacted, and will continue to adversely impact, our operations in a number of ways, including supply chain
disruptions, reduced traffic to our stores, cancellations of large gatherings such as proms and weddings, temporary store closures and
disruptions to our employees working at our stores, distribution centers and offices. More generally, our business depends on consumer
discretionary spending, and as such, our results are particularly sensitive to economic conditions and consumer confidence. COVID-19 has
significantly impacted economic conditions. For example, during March 2020, the U.S. economy experienced an unprecedented increase
in the number of people seeking jobless benefits and global financial markets experienced significant declines. These and other effects
make it more challenging for management to estimate future performance of our business, particularly over the near-to-medium term. While
we cannot reasonably estimate the impact of COVID-19 on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows, we do expect such
impact to be significantly negative.
The extent to which COVID-19 impacts our operations will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among
others, the duration of the outbreak, new information that may emerge concerning the severity of COVID-19 and the actions, especially
those taken by governmental authorities, to contain the pandemic or treat its impact. As events are rapidly changing, additional impacts may
arise that we are not aware of currently. Our business could be materially adversely affected by the following factors, categorized by the
primary nature of the associated risk, related to COVID-19:
Operational Impacts
●

Our rental product business is dependent upon special occasions with large gatherings of people, including proms and weddings.
Beginning in early March 2020, we experienced and continue to experience a significant decrease in store traffic and comparable
sales as well as cancellations of high school proms and other events. Our rental product business is a material source of our overall
profitability and the cancellations/postponement of such events, particularly with regards to proms which are unlikely to be
rescheduled, will negatively impact our results of operations.

●

On March 17, 2020, we announced the temporary closure of our retail locations in the U.S. and Canada starting March 17, 2020
through March 28, 2020. On March 19, 2020, we announced the closure of our e-commerce fulfillment centers starting March 20,
2020 through March 28, 2020.
On March 26, 2020, we extended the temporary closing of our retail stores until at least May 4, 2020. In conjunction with our
decision to extend the temporary closure of our stores, we have also furloughed all of our U.S. store employees as well as a
significant portion of employees in our U.S. distribution network and offices, and we implemented the temporary layoff of all
Canadian store employees and a significant portion of Canadian employees in our Canadian distribution network and offices. It is
not possible to predict the duration of these
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temporary store closings, or to anticipate consumers’ willingness to visit our stores and employees’ willingness to staff our stores
when they reopen. As a result of our temporary store closures, we may incur impairments to certain long-lived assets in our stores,
goodwill and our Jos. A. Bank tradename, which could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations. In addition,
social distancing measures or changes in consumer spending behaviors may continue to impact our stores after they resume normal
operations and such actions could materially impact our results of operations.
Furthermore, in light of our store closures, we have taken certain actions with respect to some or all of our existing leases, including
engaging with landlords to discuss rent reductions and/or rent deferrals, or discontinuing payment. We expect to continue to explore
and take these and similar actions, which may subject us to legal, reputational and financial risks.
On March 31, 2020, we announced that, after instituting enhanced social distancing and sanitation protocols that meet or exceed
those recommended by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”), our e-commerce fulfillment centers were
reopened. We will continue to monitor this ongoing situation, relying on recommendations from the CDC, the World Health
Organization (“WHO”) and government officials to regularly evaluate the renewed operations at our e-commerce fulfillment centers
and determine when currently closed stores will reopen.
●

Many of our vendors produce their products or source component parts of their products from areas affected by the virus and subject
to factory closures or operational reductions and quarantines. As a result, we may experience disruptions in timely acquiring the
merchandise we sell or rent to our customers. These disruptions and any future factory closures, reductions in factory operations or
government imposed travel restrictions or quarantines could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

●

In order to satisfy the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we must continue to document, test and
evaluate our internal control over financial reporting. As a result of our decision to furlough a significant portion of our employees
across the organization, it may become difficult for individuals to perform their control duties, which may increase the potential for
error in our financial statements. In addition, we may need to consider the implementation of new controls or modification of
existing controls in order to complete our financial reporting process and prepare our financial statements on a timely basis. If we
conclude in future periods that our internal control over financial reporting is not effective, it could result in lost investor confidence
in the accuracy, reliability and completeness of our financial statements. Any such events could have a material adverse effect on
our stock price and/or our ability to access capital resources in the financial markets.

Liquidity and Indebtedness Impacts
We have typically funded our operating costs, working capital requirements, repayment of our indebtedness and capital expenditures
primarily with cash flow from operating activities as well as availability under our ABL Facility. As reflected in our consolidated financial
statements, as of February 1, 2020, we had $14.4 million of cash and cash equivalents, working capital of $206.4 million and long-term
debt totaling $1.1 billion. In addition, as of February 1, 2020, $50.0 million of borrowings were outstanding under our ABL Facility and
letters of credit totaling approximately $26.6 million were also issued and outstanding.
On March 16, 2020, we drew down $260.0 million under the ABL Facility. In addition, after assessing the remaining availability under the
ABL Facility and determining that additional borrowings were prudent to maximize cash on hand, on March 19, 2020 and on March 31,
2020, respectively, we borrowed an additional $25.0 million under the ABL Facility. We note these borrowings under the ABL Facility are
proactive measures in order to increase our cash position and preserve financial flexibility in light of current uncertainty in the global
markets resulting from COVID-19. In addition, we are taking other measures to increase liquidity by eliminating or deferring most of our
discretionary spending. For example, we are significantly reducing inventory purchases, capital expenditures, advertising spend and store
and other general and administrative costs, including furloughing a significant portion of our employees and salary reductions. We are also
engaging landlords to discuss possible rent reductions and/or rent deferrals. We cannot provide assurances that these measures will be
successful, that our plans will not change or that circumstances will not change with regards to our ability to eliminate or defer discretionary
spending.
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Our indebtedness contains customary non-financial and financial covenants, including fixed charge coverage ratios, total leverage ratios and
secured leverage ratios. Specifically, our ABL Facility requires us to comply with a financial maintenance covenant under certain
circumstances. As a result of our $310.0 million in ABL borrowings during March 2020, the likelihood that this financial maintenance
covenant may be triggered has increased and continued deterioration in operating results or other adverse factors could result in our being
unable to comply with this financial maintenance covenant. If we violate this covenant and are unable to obtain a waiver from our lenders,
our debt under the ABL Facility would be in default and could be accelerated by our lenders. Because of cross-default provisions in the
agreements and instruments governing our indebtedness, a default under one agreement or instrument could result in a default under, and
the acceleration of, our other indebtedness. In addition, the lenders under the Credit Facilities could proceed against the collateral securing
that indebtedness. An acceleration of the indebtedness under our Credit Facilities would cause a cross default under the indenture
governing our Senior Notes. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain sufficient funds to enable us to repay or refinance our
debt obligations on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. If the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic are protracted and we are unable to
increase liquidity and/or effectively address our debt position, we may be forced to scale back or terminate operations and/or seek protection
under applicable bankruptcy laws. This could result in a complete loss of shareholder value.
Risks Associated with our Business Strategy
As discussed in Item 1. Business, our overall business strategy is focused on several initiatives. If we cannot successfully execute our
business strategy, our consolidated financial condition, results of operations and cash flows could be materially adversely impacted. There
are numerous risks associated with this strategy including, but not limited to, the following:
Our success depends, in part, on our ability to meet the changing style preferences and shopping expectations of our customers and
manage merchandise lead times.
Our success is dependent in part upon our ability to meet evolving customer expectations and gauge the tastes of our customers, and to
provide merchandise that satisfies customer demand in a timely manner. As some of our businesses are seasonal, we must purchase and
carry a significant amount of inventory prior to peak selling seasons.
Because of manufacturing lead times, we order merchandise well in advance of the applicable selling season. As a result, we are vulnerable
to demand and pricing shifts. In addition, manufacturing lead times may make it more difficult for us to respond quickly to new or changing
merchandise trends or consumer acceptance or rejection of our products. As a result, there could be a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations if we fail to meet the changing preferences of our customers and manage merchandise
lead times appropriately.
We believe our overall product mix makes our business less vulnerable to changes in merchandise trends than many fashion-forward and
specialty apparel retailers; however, our sales and profitability depend upon our continued ability to effectively manage a variety of
competitive challenges, including:
●

anticipating and quickly responding to changing trends and consumer demands including the ongoing casualization of
workplace attire;

●

maintaining favorable brand recognition and effectively marketing our products to consumers in several diverse market
segments;

●

developing innovative, high-quality new products and/or product and brand extensions in sizes, colors and styles that appeal to
consumers of varying age groups and tastes, including custom clothing;

●

competitively pricing our products and providing superior service and value to our customers;

●

countering the promotional or other pricing activities of our competitors; and

●

providing effective and efficient marketing support.
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Increased competition or our failure to meet these competitive challenges could result in price reductions, increased marketing expenditures
and/or loss of market share, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Certain of our strategies, including product innovations and expanding our exclusive offerings, may present greater risks.
We are continuously assessing opportunities to improve store productivity and develop new store concepts and complementary products
and services related to our retail and rental businesses, including product innovations and exclusive offerings. We may expend both capital
and management resources on such business opportunities, which may or may not be successful. Additionally, any new concept is subject
to certain risks, including customer acceptance, competition, product differentiation and the ability to obtain suitable sites. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to develop and grow new concepts, including product innovations and exclusive offerings, to a point where
they will become profitable or generate positive cash flow.
Our investments in omni-channel initiatives may not deliver the results we anticipate.
One of our strategic priorities is to further develop an omni-channel shopping experience for our customers to provide inspiring and
seamless experiences in and across every channel including our store and e-commerce channels. These initiatives involve significant
investments in information technology systems. If the implementation of our omni-channel initiatives is not successful, or we do not realize
the return on our omni-channel investments that we anticipate, our operating results would be adversely affected.
We face challenges in managing our store fleet, including limited new store growth potential.
Our growth is dependent, in large part, on our ability to successfully manage our store fleet, including new stores, expansion or remodeling
of existing stores, closure of underperforming stores and other investments in our store fleet. We may continue opening new stores to
increase our sales volume and profitability; however, we believe that our ability to increase the number of new stores in the U.S. and
Canada may be limited. Therefore, we may be limited in our ability to increase our sales volume and profitability by increasing the number
of our stores.
In addition, our ability to manage our store fleet will depend on our ability to obtain suitable locations, negotiate acceptable lease terms,
achieve sufficient levels of cash flow to support investments in our store fleet, hire qualified employees and open and operate new stores on
a timely and profitable basis. Further, the results achieved by our existing stores may not be indicative of the performance or market
acceptance of stores in other locations and the opening of new stores in existing markets may adversely affect sales and/or profitability of
established stores in those same markets.
Any future acquisitions or divestitures could result in operating difficulties and could harm our operating results.
From time to time, we may evaluate potential acquisitions or divestitures that would further our strategic objectives. Acquisitions are
subject to a variety of risks, including risks associated with an ability to integrate acquired assets, systems or operations into our existing
operations, diversion of management’s attention from core operational matters, higher costs, or unexpected difficulties or problems with
acquired assets or entities, outdated or incompatible technologies, labor difficulties or an inability to realize anticipated synergies and
efficiencies, whether within anticipated time frames or at all.
Divestitures are similarly subject to a variety of risks, including risks associated with difficulty in finding acquirers or alternative exit
strategies on terms that are favorable to us, liabilities for activities of the divested business before the transaction, including litigation claims
and disputes and the need to provide transition services to a divested business, which may result in the diversion of management resources
and focus, and potential impairment charges.
If any of these risks related to future acquisitions or divestitures are realized, our financial condition and results of operations may be
adversely affected.
Risks Associated with General Economic Conditions
Numerous economic conditions, all of which are outside of our control, could negatively affect the level of consumer spending on the
merchandise that we offer. If these economic conditions persist for a sustained period, our consolidated
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financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely impacted. These economic conditions include, but are not limited
to, the following:
Our business is particularly sensitive to economic conditions and consumer confidence.
Our performance is subject to changes in U.S., Canadian, and global economic and political conditions, particularly their impact on the
level of consumer discretionary spending and consumer confidence. Some of the factors that may influence consumer spending include
high levels of unemployment, increases in the cost of non-discretionary consumer goods, increases in consumer debt levels and applicable
interest rates, political and regulatory uncertainty, uncertainties regarding future economic prospects or a decline in consumer confidence or
credit availability. Consumer confidence may also be adversely affected by national and international security concerns such as war,
terrorism, public health events or natural disasters (or the threat of any of these). In addition, our reliance on certain external partners leaves
us subject to certain risks should one or more of these external partners encounter financial distress, become insolvent or are otherwise
unable to perform.
During an actual or perceived economic downturn, fewer customers may shop with us and those who do shop may limit the amounts of
their purchases. As a result, we could be required to take significant markdowns and/or increase our marketing and promotional expenses in
response to the lower than anticipated levels of demand for our products. In addition, promotional and/or prolonged periods of deep
discount pricing by our competitors could have a material adverse effect on our business.
We have experienced fluctuations in our sales and expect our sales to fluctuate in the future.
Our success over the long-term depends in large part on our ability to generate profitable sales. For example, if sales at Men’s Wearhouse
decrease for a sustained period of time (as was the case in fiscal 2019), the effect on our consolidated financial results would be more
significant than if sales were to decrease at any of our other brands. We believe that a variety of factors affect our sales and comparable
sales results including, but not limited to: consumer confidence and the level of consumer discretionary spending; changes in economic
conditions and consumer disposable income; spending patterns and debt levels; government shutdowns; consumer credit availability;
weather conditions; the timing of certain holiday seasons; the number and timing of new store openings; changes in the popularity of a
retail center; the timing and level of promotional pricing or markdowns; store closings, refreshes, relocations and remodels; changes in
fashion trends (including casualization of workplace attire and custom clothing) and our merchandise mix or other competitive factors.
Comparable sales fluctuations may impact our ability to leverage our fixed direct expenses, including store rent and store asset
depreciation, which may adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations.
Our business is subject to seasonality.
Our sales and net earnings are subject to seasonal fluctuations and may vary by brand. Our rental product revenues are heavily concentrated
in the second and third quarters (prom and wedding season) while the fourth quarter is the seasonal low point. Because of these
fluctuations, results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for the full year.
Risks Associated With Our Sourcing and Distribution Strategies
Our sourcing and distribution strategies are subject to numerous risks that could materially adversely impact our consolidated financial
condition and results of operations. These risks include, but are not limited to, the following:
The loss of, or disruption in, our distribution centers could result in delays in the delivery of merchandise to our stores.
We rely on our distribution centers to manage the receipt, storage, sorting, packing and distribution of our merchandise. As such, we
depend on the overall effective management of our distribution center operations including adherence to shipping schedules and proper
functioning of our information technology and inventory control systems. Events such as disruptions in operations due to fire or other
catastrophic events, government shutdowns, delays in customs clearances, software malfunctions, employee matters or shipping problems
may result in delays in the delivery of merchandise to our stores or directly to customers. For example, on March 19, 2020, in light of
evolving government and citizen response to COVID-19, we announced the closure of our e-commerce fulfillment centers starting March
20, 2020 through at least March 28, 2020, which resulted in the disruption of and delayed deliveries to customers. In addition, given our
proximity
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to the Texas gulf coast, it is possible that a hurricane or tropical storm could damage the Houston, Texas distribution center, result in
extended power outages or flood roadways into and around the distribution center, any of which would disrupt or delay deliveries to the
Houston distribution center and to our stores.
Although we have disaster recovery plans and maintain business interruption and property insurance, there can be no assurance that these
plans will work as intended, that our insurance will be sufficient, or that insurance proceeds will be paid timely to us, in the event any of our
distribution centers are damaged or shut down for any reason, or if we incur higher costs and longer lead times in connection with a
disruption at one or more of our distribution centers.
Our business is global in scope and can be impacted by factors beyond our control.
As a result of our Canadian operations and our sourcing of merchandise and rental product from manufacturers located outside of the U.S.,
we face the possibility of greater losses from a number of risks inherent in doing business in international markets and from a number of
factors that are beyond our control. Such factors that could harm our financial condition and results of operations include, among other
things:
●

political instability, civil strife or insurrection, or acts of terrorism, which disrupt trade with the countries where we operate or in
which our contractors, suppliers or customers are located;

●

recessions in foreign economies;

●

infrastructure deficiencies, logistic and other challenges in managing our foreign operations;

●

imposition of new legislation or rules relating to imports that may limit the quantity of goods which may be imported into the
U.S. from certain countries or regions;

●

obligations associated with being an importer of record, including monitoring and complying with all corresponding legal
requirements;

●

imposition of new or higher duties, taxes, tariffs, quotas or other charges on imports;

●

delays in shipping due to port security considerations, labor disputes or other restrictions;

●

supply chain disruptions as a result of climate change;

●

issues relating to compliance with domestic or international labor standards which may result in adverse publicity;

●

volatile global economic, market or political environments;

●

public health crises, such as the recent outbreak of COVID-19;

●

volatile shipping availability, fuel supplies and related costs;

●

the fluctuation in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the local currencies used by our manufacturers; and

●

increased difficulty in protecting our intellectual property rights in foreign jurisdictions.

In addition, if we were unexpectedly required to change manufacturers or if a significant manufacturer were unable to supply acceptable
merchandise in sufficient quantities on acceptable terms, particularly as it relates to custom clothing, we could experience a disruption in the
supply of merchandise or may not be able to fulfill certain customer orders.
Failure of manufacturers to adhere to applicable laws and regulations including our internal policy requirements could harm our
business.
We require our third-party manufacturers to operate in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and our internal policy
requirements. Our business could be adversely affected if our suppliers do not comply with applicable legal requirements, our supplier
policies and practices generally acceptable in the U.S. regarding social and ethical matters and acceptable labor and sourcing practices
(collectively, “Supplier Requirements”).
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The violation of our Supplier Requirements by any of our suppliers could disrupt our supply chain. In addition, any such violation could
damage our reputation, which may result in decreased customer traffic to our stores, websites and call center. In the event of any violations,
we may decide that it is necessary or desirable to seek alternative suppliers, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations.
Our business could be adversely affected by increased costs of the raw materials and other resources that are important to our business.
The raw materials used to manufacture our products are subject to availability constraints and price volatility caused by high demand for
fabrics, catastrophic events, weather conditions, supply conditions, government regulations, economic climate and other unpredictable
factors. In addition, our transportation and labor costs are subject to price volatility caused by the price of oil, supply of labor, labor
disputes, governmental regulations, economic climate, public health crises and other unpredictable factors. Increases in demand for, or the
price of, raw materials, distribution services and labor, including federal and state minimum wage rates, could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
The increase in the costs of wool and other raw materials significant to the manufacture of apparel and the costs of manufacturing could
materially affect our results of operations to the extent they cannot be mitigated through price increases and relocation to lower cost sources
of supply or other cost reductions.
We source our products globally, therefore, we may be impacted by tariffs primarily with respect to certain products imported from
foreign countries.
Most of our merchandise is produced in foreign countries, making the price and availability of our merchandise susceptible to international
trade risks, including the imposition of tariffs. In recent years, the U.S. has imposed significant tariffs on certain goods imported from
China and expressed a willingness to impose further tariffs on additional goods imported from China and other countries. Although we
believe the impact of tariffs enacted to date was immaterial to our fiscal 2019 results, given the unpredictability of the imposition of future
tariffs, as well as the potential for additional trade actions by the U.S. or other countries, the impact of current or future tariffs on our
ongoing operations and results is uncertain and could be significant, and we can provide no assurance that any strategies we implement to
address the impact of such tariffs or other trade actions will be successful. To the extent that our supply chain, costs, sales or profitability
are negatively affected by tariffs or other trade actions, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially
adversely affected.
Any significant interruption in delivery of raw materials could cause interruptions that may delay the manufacture of our products.
The principal raw material used to manufacture our products is fabric. We do not have any long-term agreements in place with fabric
suppliers; therefore, there can be no assurance that any of such suppliers will continue to do business with us in the future. If a particular
mill were to experience a delay due to fire or natural disaster and become unable to meet our supply needs, it could take a period of up to
several months for us to arrange for and receive an alternate supply of such fabric. In addition, import and export delays caused, for
example, by an extended strike at the port of entry, could prevent third-party manufacturers as well as our U.S. tailored clothing factory
from receiving fabric or other raw materials shipped by suppliers. Therefore, if there is an unexpected loss of a supplier of fabric or other
raw materials or a long interruption in shipments from any fabric or other raw material supplier, including delays related to public health
crises (such as COVID-19), our business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially adversely affected.
Labor union disputes could impact our business.
Should a labor dispute arise at any one of our union work sites, anywhere along our supply chain, or at any shopping center where we have
a store, we could experience shortages in product to sell in our stores or other operational disruptions.
Risks Associated with Our Information Technology Systems
We rely on various information technology systems to manage our operations. Information technology systems are subject to numerous
risks including unanticipated operating problems, system failures, rapid technological change, failure of the systems to operate as
anticipated, reliance on third-party technologies, the lack of available expertise for legacy systems,
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network and software providers, computer viruses, telecommunication failures, data breaches, denial of service attacks, spamming,
phishing attacks, and other similar disruptions, any of which could materially adversely impact our consolidated financial condition and
results of operations. Additional risks include, but are not limited to, the following:
If we are unable to operate information systems and implement new technologies effectively, our business could be disrupted or our
sales or profitability could be reduced.
The efficient operation of our business is dependent on our information systems, including our ability to operate them effectively and
successfully implement new technologies, systems, controls and adequate disaster recovery systems. We also maintain multiple internet
websites in the U.S. In addition, we must protect the confidentiality of our and our customers’ data. The failure of our information systems
to perform as designed or our failure to implement and operate them effectively could disrupt our business or subject us to liability and
thereby harm our profitability.
We are subject to data security risks, which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and consumer confidence in our
security measures.
Like all other retailers, we are subject to cybersecurity risks. Cybersecurity refers to the combination of technologies, processes, and
procedures established to protect information technology systems and data from unauthorized access, use, manipulation, exfiltration, or
damage. As part of our normal operations, we maintain and transmit confidential information as well as proprietary company information,
including credit card information, and information about our customers, our employees and other third parties. As a result, like other
retailers, our business may be targeted more than other businesses because third parties may focus on the amount and type of personal and
business information that we maintain and transmit. To date, we believe cybersecurity incidents have not had a material adverse impact on
our business. We may, however, experience them in the future, potentially with more frequency and/or sophistication and we may not be
able to anticipate or prevent rapidly evolving types of cybersecurity incidents.
We are focused on safeguarding and protecting personal and business information, and we devote significant resources to maintain and
regularly update our systems and processes including providing employee awareness training around cyber risks and security breaches.
However, while we have implemented measures reasonably designed to detect and prevent security breaches and cyber incidents, our
systems or our third-party service providers’ systems may still be vulnerable to privacy and security incidents including attacks by
unauthorized users, corruption by computer viruses or other malicious software code, emerging cybersecurity risks, inadvertent or
intentional release of confidential or proprietary information, or other similar events. The occurrence of any security breach involving the
misappropriation, loss or other unauthorized disclosure of information about us or our customers, whether by us or by one of our third-party
service providers, could, among other things:
●

cause damage to our reputation;

●

allow competitors access to our proprietary business information;

●

subject us to liability for a failure to safeguard customer data;

●

subject us to financial and legal risks, including regulatory action or litigation;

●

impact our ability to process credit card transactions; and

●

require significant capital and operating expenditures to investigate and remediate the breach.

Furthermore, the storage and transmission of such data is regulated at the international, federal, state and local levels. Privacy and
information security laws and regulation changes, and compliance with those changes, may result in cost increases due to system changes
and the development of new administrative processes. For example, the California Consumer Protection Act (“CCPA”), which became
effective on January 1, 2020, imposes significant new requirements on how we collect, process and transfer personal data. If we or our
employees fail to comply with existing or future laws and regulations or experience a data security breach, our reputation could be
damaged, possibly resulting in lost future business, and we could be subjected to fines, penalties, administrative orders and other legal risks
as a result of a breach or non-compliance. In addition, the CCPA may restrict our ability to use personal California user and subscriber
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information in connection with our various products, services and operations, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations.
Other Risks Affecting Our Business
Our business is subject to numerous other risks that could materially adversely impact our consolidated financial condition and results of
operations. These risks include, but are not limited to, the following:
We may be negatively impacted by competition.
The men’s retail industry in which we operate is highly competitive with numerous participants. We compete with traditional department
stores, other specialty men’s clothing stores, online retailers, online formalwear rental providers, off-price retailers, manufacturer-owned
and independently-owned outlet stores, independently-owned formalwear rental stores, as well as their respective e-commerce channels. In
addition, some of our primary competitors sell their products in stores that are located in the same shopping malls or retail centers as our
stores, which results in competition for favorable site locations and lease terms in these shopping malls and retail centers. Increased
competition or our failure to meet these competitive challenges could result in price reductions, increased marketing expenditures and loss
of market share, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Our success depends on our ability to attract and retain key employees.
Our success depends upon the personal efforts and abilities of our management team and other key employees, including our customer
facing employees. In 2019, we experienced a number of significant leadership changes including appointing a new Chief Executive
Officer, the departures of our Brand President of Jos. A. Bank and our Chief Human Resources Officer and the creation of a new Chief
Customer Officer role providing common leadership for our retail brands. Although we believe we have a strong team with significant
industry expertise, we face intense competition in hiring and retaining these employees and the extended loss of the services of key people
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, our business is subject to
employment laws and regulations, including minimum wage requirements, overtime pay, sick pay, paid time off and healthcare benefits.
The implementation of potential regulatory changes relating to these items, among other things, could result in increased labor costs to our
business and negatively impact our operating results.
If we are unable to retain and motivate our current employees and attract talented new employees, our business, financial condition and
results of operations could be adversely affected.
The occurrence of an event that impacts our reputation could have a material adverse effect on our brands.
Our ability to maintain our reputation is critical to our brands. Our reputation could be jeopardized if we fail to maintain high standards for
merchandise quality and integrity and customer service. Any negative publicity about these types of concerns may reduce demand for our
merchandise. Failure to comply with ethical, social, product, labor, health and safety or environmental standards could also jeopardize our
reputation and potentially lead to various adverse consumer actions, including boycotts. Public perception about our company as a whole,
our products or our stores, whether justified or not, could impair our reputation, involve us in litigation, damage our brands and have a
material adverse effect on our business. In addition, if our reputation is negatively affected by the actions of our employees or otherwise,
our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. Failure to comply with local laws and regulations, to
maintain an effective system of internal controls and provide accurate and timely financial statement information, or to prevent security
breaches could also hurt our reputation. Damage to our reputation or loss of consumer confidence for any of these or other reasons could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition, as well as require additional time and resources to
rebuild our reputation.
We may be unable to protect our trademarks and other intellectual property rights.
We believe that our trademarks and service marks, as described in Item 1. Business, are important to our success and our competitive
position due to their name recognition with our customers. We devote substantial resources to establishing and protecting our trademarks
and service marks. We are not aware of any material claims of infringement or material challenges to our right to use any of our trademarks.
Nevertheless, the actions we have taken, including to establish and protect our trademarks and service marks, may not be adequate to
prevent others from imitating our products or to prevent
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others from seeking to block sales of our products. Other parties may also claim that some of our products infringe on their trademarks,
copyrights or other intellectual property rights. In addition, the laws of certain foreign countries may not protect our proprietary rights to the
same extent as do the laws of the U.S. Litigation regarding our trademarks and other intellectual property rights could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.
War, acts of terrorism, public health crises, or weather catastrophes could have a material adverse effect on our business.
In the event of war, acts of terrorism or the threat of terrorist attacks, public health crises, or weather catastrophes, consumer spending could
significantly decrease for a sustained period. In addition, local authorities or shopping center management could close in response to any
immediate security concern, public health concern or weather catastrophe such as hurricanes, floods, wildfires, earthquakes, or tornadoes.
Similarly, war, acts of terrorism, threats of terrorist attacks, public health crises or a weather catastrophe could severely and adversely affect
our offices, distribution centers, or our entire supply chain.
Certain provisions of our certificate of formation and our amended and restated bylaws, Texas law, and our short-term shareholder
rights plan could prevent or delay a potential acquisition of control of our Company, which could decrease the trading price of our
common stock.
Our certificate of formation, amended and restated bylaws and the laws in the State of Texas contain provisions that are intended to deter
coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids by making such practices or bids unacceptably expensive to the prospective
acquirer and to encourage prospective acquirers to negotiate with our Board of Directors rather than to attempt a hostile takeover. Texas
law also imposes restrictions on mergers and other business combinations between us and any holder of 20% or more of our outstanding
common stock. In March 2020, the Board of Directors adopted a short-term shareholder rights plan, which may cause substantial dilution to
a person or group that attempts to acquire control of the Company on terms not approved by our Board of Directors.
We believe that these provisions protect our shareholders from coercive or otherwise unfair takeover tactics by effectively requiring those
who seek to obtain control of the Company to negotiate with our Board of Directors and by providing our Board of Directors with more
time to assess any acquisition of control. However, these provisions could apply even if an acquisition of control of the Company may be
considered beneficial by some shareholders and could delay or prevent an acquisition of control that our Board of Directors determines is
not in the best interests of our Company and our shareholders.
Our business could be adversely impacted as a result of actions by activist shareholders or others.
We value constructive input from investors and regularly engages in dialogue with our shareholders regarding strategy and performance.
The Board of Directors and management team are committed to acting in the best interests of all of our shareholders. There is no assurance
that the actions taken by the Board of Directors and management in seeking to maintain constructive engagement with our shareholders will
be successful, and we may be subject to formal or informal actions or requests from shareholders or others. Responding to such actions
could be costly and time-consuming, divert attention of management and employees, and may have an adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and cash flow and the market price of our common stock.
Fluctuations in exchange rates may cause us to experience currency exchange losses.
We are subject to exposure from fluctuations in U.S. dollar/Canadian dollar (“CAD”) exchange rates as a result of our direct sourcing
programs and our operations in Canada. Moores, our Canadian subsidiary, conducts most of its business in CAD but purchases a significant
portion of its merchandise in U.S. dollars. Historically, the exchange rate between CAD and U.S. dollars has fluctuated. A decline in the
value of the CAD as compared to the U.S. dollar may adversely impact our Canadian operations as the revenues and earnings of our
Canadian operations will be reduced when they are translated to U.S. dollars. Also, the value of our Canadian net assets as expressed in U.S.
dollars may decline. We utilize foreign currency hedging contracts related to our merchandise purchases to limit exposure to changes in
U.S. dollar/CAD exchange rates; however, these hedging activities may not adequately protect our Canadian operations from exchange rate
risk.
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Compliance with ever-changing legal, regulatory and corporate governance requirements and standards for accounting could result in
increased administrative expenses or litigation and could adversely impact our business, results of operations and reported financial
results.
Our policies, procedures and internal controls are designed to help us comply with all applicable laws, regulations, accounting and reporting
requirements, including those imposed by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act, the Affordable Care Act, the payment card industry (PCI), the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, the SEC and the NYSE.
In addition, our business is subject to laws, rules and regulations promulgated by international, national, state and local authorities,
including laws, rules and regulations relating to privacy, use of consumer information, credit cards and advertising. All of these laws, rules
and regulations and their interpretation are subject to change and often their application may be unclear. As a result, from time to time, we
are subject to inquiries, investigations, and/or litigation, including class action lawsuits, and administrative actions related to compliance
with these laws, rules and regulations.
Shareholder activism, the current political environment, financial reform legislation and instances of government intervention and
regulatory reform has led, and may continue to lead, to substantial new regulations and compliance obligations. Any changes in regulations,
the imposition of additional regulations or the enactment of any new legislation that affects employment and labor, trade, product safety,
transportation and logistics, health care, or privacy, among other things, may increase the complexity of the regulatory environment in
which we operate and the related cost of compliance.
Failure to comply with the various laws and regulations, as well as changes in laws and regulations, could have an adverse impact on our
reputation, financial condition or results of operations.
Legislative or regulatory initiatives related to climate change concerns may negatively affect our business.
Concern over climate change may result in new or additional legal, legislative, and regulatory requirements to reduce or mitigate the effects
of climate change on the environment, which could result in future tax, transportation, and utility increases, which could adversely affect
our business. There is also increased focus, including by investors, customers, and other stakeholders on these and other sustainability
matters, including the use of plastic, energy, waste, and worker safety. Our reputation could be damaged if we do not (or are perceived not
to) act responsibly with respect to sustainability matters, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial position
and cash flows.
Changes in applicable tax regulations and resolutions of tax disputes could negatively affect our financial results.
We are subject to taxation in the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions. We record tax expense based on our estimates of future payments,
which include reserves for estimates of probable settlements of foreign and domestic tax audits. At any one time, many tax years are
subject to audit by various taxing jurisdictions. The results of these audits and negotiations with taxing authorities may affect the ultimate
settlement of these issues. As a result, we expect that throughout the year there could be ongoing variability in our quarterly tax rates as
taxable events occur and exposures are evaluated. In addition, our effective tax rate in any given financial reporting period may be
materially impacted by changes in the mix and level of earnings or losses by taxing jurisdictions or by changes to existing accounting rules
or regulations.
For example, in 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Reform Act”) significantly changed how the U.S. taxes corporations. In the
future, the U.S. Treasury Department, the IRS, and other standard-setting bodies could interpret or issue guidance on how provisions of the
Tax Reform Act will be applied or otherwise administered. Any new interpretations or guidance on the Tax Reform Act could have a
material impact on our results of operations, financial position and cash flows.
Changes to accounting standards and estimates could materially impact our results of operations, financial position and cash flows.
Generally accepted accounting principles and the related authoritative guidance for many aspects of our business, including revenue
recognition, inventories, goodwill and intangible assets, leases and income taxes, are complex, continually evolving and involve subjective
judgments. For example, recently adopted authoritative guidance for lease accounting resulted in a significant increase in our assets and
liabilities given we have a considerable number of operating leases. These and other future changes in accounting rules or changes in the
underlying estimates, assumptions or judgments by our management could have a material impact on our results of operations, financial
position and cash flows.
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We could incur losses due to impairment on long-lived assets, goodwill and intangible assets.
Under generally accepted accounting principles, we review our long-lived assets for impairment whenever economic events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. Identifiable intangible assets with an indefinite useful
life, including goodwill, are not amortized but are evaluated annually for impairment. A more frequent evaluation is performed if events or
circumstances indicate that impairment could have occurred. In the future, significant negative industry or general economic trends
(including the impact of COVID-19), unanticipated changes in the competitive environment, decisions to significantly modify or dispose of
operations or a significant sustained decline in the market price of our common stock may result in additional impairments to our goodwill,
intangible assets and other long-lived assets. Any reduction in or impairment of the value of long-lived assets, goodwill or intangible assets
will result in a charge against earnings, which could have a material adverse impact on our reported results of operations and financial
condition.
Our advertising, marketing and promotional activities have been the subject of review by state regulators and subject to lawsuits.
In the past we have been, and may from time to time in the future be, required to respond to inquiries from State Attorneys General related
to our advertising practices. These advertising practices have also been, and continue to be, the subject of class action litigation. In
addition, it is possible that the advertising, marketing and promotional activities of all our brands may be reviewed by state or other
regulators or become the subject of litigation. Although we endeavor to monitor and comply with all applicable laws and regulations to
ensure that all advertising, marketing and promotional activities comply with all applicable legal requirements, many of the applicable legal
requirements involve subjective judgments. It is possible that any resolution we may reach with any governmental authority or the results of
any litigation may materially impact our current or future planned marketing program and could have an adverse impact on our business.
We are subject to various proceedings, lawsuits, disputes, and claims, from time to time, which could adversely affect our results of
operations, financial position and cash flows.
As a multinational company, we are subject to various proceedings, lawsuits, disputes, and claims (“Actions”) arising in the ordinary course
of business. Many of these Actions raise complex factual and legal issues and are subject to numerous uncertainties. Actions are filed
against us from time to time and include commercial, securities, intellectual property, customer, employment and data privacy claims,
including class action lawsuits. Current Actions are in various procedural stages and some are covered in whole or in part by insurance.
We cannot predict with assurance the outcome of any of the Actions brought against us and an adverse result in any Actions could have an
adverse impact on our financial results.
Rights of our shareholders may be negatively affected if we issue any of the shares of preferred stock which our Board of Directors has
authorized for issuance.
We have available for issuance 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $.01 per share. Our Board is authorized to issue any or all of
this preferred stock, in one or more series, without any further action on the part of shareholders. The rights of our shareholders may be
negatively affected if we issue a series of preferred stock in the future that has preference over our common stock with respect to the
payment of dividends or distribution upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up. See Note 15 of the consolidated financial statements
for more information.
Our stock price is volatile and may decline regardless of our operating performance.
The market price of our common stock has fluctuated substantially in the past and may continue to do so in the future. Future
announcements or management discussions concerning us or our competitors, sales and profitability results, quarterly variations in
operating results or comparable sales, changes in earnings estimates by analysts or others, among other factors, could cause the market price
of our common stock to fluctuate substantially. In addition, broad market and industry factors may adversely impact the market price of our
common stock regardless of our actual operating performance.

21

Table of Contents

Risks Associated with Our Indebtedness
There are numerous risks associated with our indebtedness including, but not limited to, the following:
Our current level of indebtedness could adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital to fund our operations, limit our ability to
react to changes in the economy or our industry, expose us to interest rate risk to the extent of our variable rate debt and prevent us
from meeting our obligations under the Credit Facilities or the indenture governing the Senior Notes.
As of February 1, 2020, we have $881.6 million outstanding our on Term Loan Facility (the “Term Loan”), which matures on April 9,
2025, subject to a springing maturity provision that would accelerate the maturity of the Term Loan to April 1, 2022 if any of the
Company’s obligations under its Senior Notes remain outstanding on April 1, 2022. In October 2017, we amended our then existing
$500.0 million asset-based revolving facility in part to increase the principal amount available to $550.0 million and extend the maturity
date to October 2022 (the amended “ABL Facility”) (the ABL Facility together with the Term Loan, the “Credit Facilities”). Also, as of
February 1, 2020, $173.8 million of our 7.0% Senior Notes due 2022 (the “Senior Notes”) are outstanding. In summary, as of February 1,
2020, our total indebtedness is approximately $1.1 billion. In addition, as of February 1, 2020, we had up to $400.5 million of additional
borrowing availability under the ABL Facility, excluding letters of credit totaling approximately $26.6 million issued and outstanding.
Subsequent to February 1, 2020, in response to COVID-19 and as a proactive measure, on March 16, 2020, we executed a borrowing of
$260.0 million under our ABL Facility. In addition, after assessing the remaining availability under the ABL Facility and determining that
additional borrowings were prudent to maximize cash on hand, on March 19, 2020 and on March 31, 2020, respectively, we borrowed an
additional $25.0 million under the ABL Facility.
Our indebtedness could have important consequences, including:
●

increasing our vulnerability to adverse economic, industry or competitive developments;

●

requiring a substantial portion of cash flow from operations to be dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on our
indebtedness, therefore reducing our ability to use our cash flow to fund our operations, capital expenditures and future
business opportunities;

●

making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our indebtedness and any failure to comply with the
obligations of any of our debt instruments, including restrictive covenants and borrowing conditions, could result in an event of
default under the Credit Facilities and the indenture governing the Senior Notes;

●

restricting us from making strategic acquisitions or causing us to make non-strategic divestitures;

●

limiting our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, product development, debt service
requirements, acquisitions and general corporate or other purposes; and

●

limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business or market conditions and placing us at a
competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors who have less debt than we do and who therefore may be able to take
advantage of opportunities that our indebtedness prevents us from exploiting.

Despite our indebtedness level, we will still be able to incur significant additional amounts of debt, which could exacerbate the risks
associated with our substantial indebtedness.
We and our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future. Although the Credit Facilities and the
indenture governing the Senior Notes contain restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness, these restrictions are subject to a
number of significant qualifications and exceptions, and, under certain circumstances, the amount of indebtedness that could be incurred in
compliance with these restrictions could be substantial. If new debt is added to our and our subsidiaries’ existing debt levels, the related
risks that we now face would increase. In addition, the Credit Facilities and the indenture governing the Senior Notes will not prevent us
from incurring obligations that do not constitute indebtedness under those agreements.
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We may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service all of our indebtedness and fund our working capital and capital expenditures,
and we may be forced to take other actions to satisfy our obligations under our indebtedness, which may not be successful.
Our ability to make scheduled payments on our indebtedness will depend upon our future operating performance and on our ability to
generate cash flow in the future, which is subject to general economic, financial, business, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other
factors that are beyond our control. There can be no assurance that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations, or that
future borrowings, including borrowings under the ABL Facility, will be available to us in an amount sufficient to enable us to pay our
indebtedness or to fund our other liquidity needs. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.”
If our cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt service obligations, we could face substantial liquidity problems and
could be forced to reduce or delay investment and capital expenditures or to dispose of material assets or operations, seek additional equity
capital or restructure or refinance our indebtedness. We may not be able to affect any such alternative measures, if necessary, on
commercially reasonable terms or at all and, even if successful, such alternative actions may not allow us to meet our scheduled debt
service obligations. The Credit Facilities and the indenture that governs the Senior Notes contain restrictions on our ability to dispose of
assets and use the proceeds from any such disposition.
In addition, we rely on our subsidiaries to generate cash. Accordingly, repayment of our indebtedness, is dependent, to a certain extent, on
the generation of cash flow by our subsidiaries and their ability to make such cash available to us, by dividend, debt repayment or otherwise.
Each of our subsidiaries are distinct legal entities and they do not have any obligation to pay amounts due on the Senior Notes or to make
funds available for that purpose (other than the subsidiary guarantors in connection with their guarantees) or other obligations in the form of
loans, distributions or otherwise. Our subsidiaries may not generate sufficient cash from operations to enable us to make principal and
interest payments on our indebtedness or to fund our and our subsidiaries’ other cash obligations.
If we cannot make scheduled payments on our debt, we will be in default and, as a result, the holders of the Senior Notes could declare all
outstanding principal and interest to be due and payable, the lenders under the Credit Facilities could declare all outstanding amounts under
such facilities due and payable and, with respect to the ABL Facility, terminate their commitments to loan money, and, in each case,
foreclose against the assets securing the borrowings under the Credit Facilities, and we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation.
If our indebtedness is accelerated, we may need to refinance all or a portion of our indebtedness before maturity. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to refinance any of our indebtedness, including the Credit Facilities, on commercially reasonable terms or at all. There
can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain sufficient funds to enable us to repay or refinance our debt obligations on commercially
reasonable terms, or at all.
The agreements and instruments governing our debt impose restrictions that may limit our operating and financial flexibility.
The Credit Facilities and the indenture governing the Senior Notes contain a number of significant restrictions and covenants that may limit
our ability to:
●

incur additional indebtedness;

●

sell assets or consolidate or merge with or into other companies;

●

pay dividends or repurchase or redeem capital stock;

●

make certain investments;

●

issue capital stock of our subsidiaries;

●

incur liens;

●

prepay, redeem or repurchase subordinated debt; and

●

enter into certain types of transactions with our affiliates.
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These covenants could have the effect of limiting our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes in our business and the markets in
which we compete. In addition, the ABL Facility requires us to comply with a financial maintenance covenant under certain circumstances.
As a result of our $310.0 million borrowings in March 2020, the likelihood that this financial maintenance covenant may be triggered has
increased and continued deterioration in operating results or other adverse factors could result in our being unable to comply with the
financial covenants contained in the ABL Facility, if applicable. If we violate this covenant and are unable to obtain a waiver from our
lenders, our debt under the ABL Facility would be in default and could be accelerated by our lenders. Because of cross-default provisions
in the agreements and instruments governing our indebtedness, a default under one agreement or instrument could result in a default under,
and the acceleration of, our other indebtedness. In addition, the lenders under the Credit Facilities could proceed against the collateral
securing that indebtedness.
If our indebtedness is accelerated, we may not be able to repay our debt or borrow sufficient funds to refinance it. Even if we are able to
obtain new financing, it may not be on commercially reasonable terms, on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all. If our debt is in default
for any reason, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. In addition, complying
with these covenants may also cause us to take actions that make it more difficult for us to successfully execute our business strategy and
compete against companies that are not subject to such restrictions.
Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to interest rate risk, which could cause our debt service obligations to increase.
We are exposed to interest rate risk through our variable rate borrowings under the Credit Facilities. Borrowings under such facilities bear
interest at a variable rate, based on a LIBOR rate, plus an applicable margin. Interest rates are currently at historically low levels but may
increase. Should interest rates increase, our debt service obligations on the variable rate indebtedness increase even though the amount
borrowed remains the same, and our net income and cash flows, including cash available for servicing our indebtedness, will
correspondingly decrease. Currently, we are exposed to interest rate risk on our Term Loan and borrowings on our ABL Facility. To
partially mitigate such interest rate risk, we entered into interest rate swaps to exchange variable interest rate payments for fixed interest rate
payments for a portion of the outstanding Term Loan balance. At February 1, 2020, the notional amount of the interest rate swaps totaled
$705.0 million. As of February 1, 2020, approximately 80% of our Term Loan was at a fixed rate with the remainder at a variable rate. As
a result, we believe our interest rate risk is substantially mitigated. After considering the impact of these interest rate swaps, at February 1,
2020, the effect of a one percentage point change in interest rates would result in an approximate $1.8 million change in annual interest
expense on our Term Loan. At February 1, 2020, assuming all capacity under the ABL Facility is fully drawn, each one percentage point
change in interest rates would result in an approximate $5.5 million change in annual interest expense.
Uncertainty relating to the LIBOR calculation process and potential phasing out of LIBOR may adversely affect our results of
operations.
On July 27, 2017, the UK’s Financial Conduct Authority, which regulates LIBOR, announced that it intends to phase out LIBOR by the end
of 2021. It is unclear if at that time LIBOR will cease to exist or if new methods of calculating LIBOR will be established such that it
continues to exist after 2021. The U.S. Federal Reserve, in conjunction with the Alternative Reference Rates Committee, a steering
committee comprised of large U.S. financial institutions, announced replacement of U.S. dollar LIBOR with a new index calculated by
short-term repurchase agreements, backed by U.S. Treasury securities called the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”). The first
publication of SOFR was released in April 2018. Since the initial publication of SOFR in 2018, daily changes in SOFR have at times been
more volatile than daily changes in comparable benchmark or market rates.
Whether or not SOFR attains market traction as a LIBOR replacement tool remains in question and the future of LIBOR at this time is
uncertain, which also may impact the accounting for our existing interest rate swaps. If LIBOR rates are no longer available, we may incur
significant expenses in effecting the transition and may be subject to disputes or litigation related to our Credit Facilities over the
appropriateness or comparability to LIBOR of the substitute indices, which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations. We
will continue to monitor developments with respect to the phasing out of LIBOR and will work to minimize the impact of any LIBOR
transition.
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
As of February 1, 2020, we operated 1,324 retail apparel and rental stores in 50 states and the District of Columbia and 126 retail apparel
stores in ten Canadian provinces. As of February 1, 2020, our stores aggregated approximately 9.1 million square feet. Almost all of these
stores are leased, generally for five to ten year initial terms with one or more renewal options after the initial term. The following tables set
forth the location, by state, territory or province, of these stores:
Men’s
Wearhouse(1)
61
80
49
41
29
32
25
20
23
17
20
18
19
23
14
14
14
11
16
11
15
11
14
12
13
13
7
7
11
9
5
8
6
5
6
5
4
3
2
4
1
2
3
3
2
2
2
2
1
1
1
717

United States
Texas
California
Florida
New York
Pennsylvania
Illinois
Ohio
Virginia
Michigan
North Carolina
New Jersey
Maryland
Georgia
Massachusetts
Indiana
Colorado
Tennessee
Connecticut
Washington
Alabama
Arizona
South Carolina
Minnesota
Louisiana
Missouri
Wisconsin
Kansas
Kentucky
Oregon
Iowa
Oklahoma
Utah
Mississippi
New Hampshire
Nevada
Arkansas
Nebraska
Delaware
District of Columbia
New Mexico
Rhode Island
West Virginia
Idaho
North Dakota
Alaska
Maine
Montana
South Dakota
Hawaii
Vermont
Wyoming
Total
(1)

Includes one Joseph Abboud store in New York, which closed in February 2020.
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Men’s
Wearhouse
and Tux
1
2
6
1
2
3
3
4
5
5
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1

1

44

Jos. A.
Bank
44
28
35
25
29
21
19
24
13
22
22
20
20
17
9
8
9
10
4
10
7
9
5
4
6
4
4
6
1
2
5
3
3
4
3
3
3
2
3
1
3
3
1

474

K&G
12
1
5
3
3
6
5
3
7
4
5
6
5
3
2
2
2
2
2
1
1
2
3
1
1
1

1

89

Total
118
111
95
70
63
62
52
51
48
48
47
46
44
44
26
25
25
23
23
22
22
22
21
20
20
18
14
14
12
11
11
11
9
9
9
8
7
5
5
5
5
5
4
3
2
2
2
2
1
1
1
1,324
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Canada

Moores

Ontario
Quebec
British Columbia
Alberta
Manitoba
Nova Scotia
New Brunswick
Saskatchewan
Newfoundland
Prince Edward Island
Total

54
25
16
15
5
4
3
2
1
1
126

We own or lease properties in various parts of the U.S. and Canada to facilitate the distribution of retail and rental product to our stores.
Total owned and leased space for distribution is approximately 3.2 million square feet and 2.0 million square feet, respectively.
In addition, we have primary office locations in Houston, Texas, Fremont, California, New York, New York and Hampstead, Maryland
with additional satellite offices in other parts of the U.S. and Canada. We lease approximately 0.4 million square feet and own
approximately 0.3 million square feet of office space.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are involved in various routine legal proceedings, including ongoing litigation. Management believes that none of these matters will
have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. See Note 20 of the consolidated financial
statements for a discussion of our legal proceedings.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock trades on the NYSE under the symbol “TLRD.” On March 20, 2020, there were approximately 815 shareholders of
record and approximately 17,200 beneficial shareholders of our common stock.
The information required by this item regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans is incorporated by
reference from Item 12 of this Form 10-K.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
We did not purchase any of our equity securities during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2019. In March 2013, the Board approved a share
repurchase program for our common stock. At February 1, 2020, the balance available under the authorization was $38.0 million.
Performance Graph
The following Performance Graph and related information shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933
or Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amended, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates it by reference into
such filing.
The following graph compares, as of each of the dates indicated, the percentage change in the Company’s cumulative total shareholder
return on its common stock with the cumulative total return of the S&P 500 Index and a subset of companies in the S&P Retail Select Index
(“Select Group”).
The graph assumes that the value of the investment in our common stock and each index was $100 at January 31, 2015 and that all
dividends paid by those companies included in the indices were reinvested. The graph is based on historical data and is not necessarily
indicative of future performance.

Measurement Period (Fiscal Year Covered)
Tailored Brands, Inc.
S&P 500 Index
Select Group(1)
(1)

January 31,
2015

January 30,
2016

January 28,
2017

February 3,
2018

February 2,
2019

February 1,
2020

$

$

$

$

$

$

100.00
100.00
100.00

30.09
99.33
102.88

44.62
120.06
101.23

55.56
147.48
111.53

31.28
147.40
124.97

10.87
179.17
139.31

For purposes of this graph, the select group currently consists of the following companies: Abercrombie & Fitch Co., American Eagle
Outfitters, Inc., Boot Barn Holdings, Inc., Burlington Stores, Inc., Caleres, Inc., Chico’s FAS, Inc., Designer Brands, Inc., Foot
Locker, Inc., Genesco, Inc., Guess?, Inc., L Brands, Inc., Ross Stores, Inc., The Buckle, Inc., The Cato Corporation, The Children’s
Place, Inc., The Gap, Inc., The TJX Companies, Inc., Urban Outfitters, Inc. and Zumiez, Inc.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following selected statement of earnings (loss) data and, balance sheet and cash flow information for the fiscal years indicated has been
derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The Selected Financial Data should be read in conjunction with
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto. Effective January 31, 2016, Tailored Brands, Inc., became the successor reporting company to The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc.
pursuant to a holding company reorganization. Amounts in the following tables for periods prior to January 31, 2016, refer to Men’s
Wearhouse, which was the parent company and the registrant prior to the reorganization, and, for periods after the reorganization, to
Tailored Brands, which is the current parent holding company, in each case including its consolidated subsidiaries.
References herein to years are to the Company’s 52-week or 53-week fiscal year, which ends on the Saturday nearest January 31 in the
following calendar year. For example, references to “2019” mean the fiscal year ended February 1, 2020. All fiscal years for which
financial information is included herein had 52 weeks with the exception of fiscal 2017, which ended on February 3, 2018 and had
53 weeks. Amounts presented for all periods in the following tables excludes our corporate apparel business, which is presented as
discontinued operations. See Note 2 for additional information.
2019 (1)

Statement of Earnings (Loss) Data:
Total net sales
Total gross margin
Goodwill and intangible asset
impairment charges(3)
Operating income (loss)
Net earnings (loss) from continuing
operations
Per Common Share Data:
Diluted net earnings (loss) from
continuing operations per common
share allocated to common
shareholders
Cash dividends declared
Weighted-average common shares
outstanding—diluted
Operating Information:
Percentage increase/(decrease) in
comparable sales(4):
Men’s Wearhouse
Jos. A. Bank
Moores
K&G
Average net sales per square foot(5):
Men’s Wearhouse
Jos. A. Bank
Moores
K&G
Average square footage(6):
Men’s Wearhouse
Men’s Wearhouse and Tux
Jos. A. Bank
Moores
K&G

$

$
$

$
$
$
$

2018 (2)
2017
2016
(Dollars and shares in thousands, except per share and per
square foot data)

2,881,261
1,168,612

$

3,004,511
1,310,608

$

3,053,021
1,341,428

$

3,098,401
1,352,958

2015

$

3,252,474
1,413,459

—
97,838

—
225,562

1,500
216,096

—
106,222

1,243,354
(1,086,029)

25,367

98,596

87,017

7,158

(1,034,799)

0.51
0.36

$
$

1.94
0.72

$
$

1.76
0.72

$
$

0.15
0.72

$
$

(21.43)
0.72

49,929

50,725

49,468

48,786

48,288

(3.5)%
(2.3)%
(5.4)%
(0.3)%

0.8%
1.4%
2.4%
1.5%

(1.1)%
5.4%
(2.0)%
(3.1)%

(0.6)%
(9.5)%
(2.6)%
(2.4)%

4.9%
(16.3)%
(1.7)%
5.0%

388
259
341
158

$
$
$
$

5,613
1,489
4,716
6,186
22,896

404
265
357
162
5,613
1,496
4,711
6,249
22,357

28

$
$
$
$

407
267
355
156
5,616
1,510
4,698
6,250
22,945

$
$
$
$

407
252
368
156
5,620
1,483
4,715
5,897
23,226

$
$
$
$

411
261
370
160
5,642
1,397
4,665
6,289
23,619
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2019

Number of retail stores:
Open at beginning of the period
Opened(7)
Closed
Open at end of the period
Men’s Wearhouse(8)
Men’s Wearhouse and Tux
Tuxedo Shops @ Macy’s
Jos. A. Bank(9)
Moores
K&G
Total
Cash Flow Information:
Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization
Repurchases of common stock

1,464
3
(17)
1,450
717
44
—
474
126
89
1,450
$

85,811
102,622
10,000

February 1,
2020

Balance Sheet Information:
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Working capital
Total assets
Long-term debt, including current portion
Total (deficit) equity
(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)
(8)
(9)

2018

$

14,420
696,657
206,388
2,418,959
1,103,398
(98,306)

1,477
3
(16)
1,464
720
46
—
484
126
88
1,464
$

78,608
99,743
—

February 2,
2019

$

2017
(Dollars in thousands)

32,671
724,086
359,696
1,624,043
1,164,861
3,631

1,667
4
(194)
1,477
719
51
—
491
126
90
1,477
$

91,552
101,911
—

February 3,
2018

$

84,271
732,924
549,135
1,761,606
1,396,808
2,192

2016

1,724
178
(235)
1,667
716
58
170
506
126
91
1,667
$

96,254
110,566
—

January 28,
2017

$

2015

42,248 $
844,036
574,304
1,872,827
1,595,529
(107,618)

1,758
42
(76)
1,724
714
160
12
625
124
89
1,724
$

111,419
127,437
277

January 30,
2016

9,699
906,662
594,792
2,009,787
1,655,924
(100,086)

Effective February 3, 2019, we adopted ASC 842, Leases and all related amendments, using the modified retrospective approach. The
comparative period information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the accounting standards in effect for the
periods presented. See Note 17 for additional information.
Effective February 4, 2018, we adopted ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers and all related amendments (“ASC 606”), to
all contracts using the modified retrospective approach. The comparative period information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under the accounting standards in effect for the periods presented. See Note 7 for additional information.
On March 3, 2018, we divested the MW Cleaners business; see Note 3 of the consolidated financial statements for additional
information. In addition, during 2015, the performance of Jos. A. Bank was far below our expectations. As a result, we recorded a total
of $1.24 billion in goodwill and intangible asset impairment charges.
Comparable sales is defined as net sales from stores open at least twelve months at period end, excluding stores where the square
footage has changed by more than 25% within the past year, and includes e-commerce net sales. While our customers may engage with
us through multiple channels, we operate our business using an omni-channel approach and do not differentiate e-commerce sales from
our other channels. Comparable sales percentages for Moores are calculated using Canadian dollars. Comparable sales for Jos. A. Bank
are calculated in the same manner as our other brands except that for fiscal 2015, it is based on Jos. A. Bank’s entire fiscal 2014, a
portion of which was prior to our acquisition on June 18, 2014. In addition, as a result of our decision to close all factory stores at Jos.
A. Bank in fiscal 2016, we have excluded the results of these stores from our comparable sales calculation for Jos. A. Bank for all
periods presented. For fiscal 2017, the calculation excludes the 53rd week.
Average net sales per square foot is calculated by dividing total square footage for all stores owned or open the entire year into net sales
for those stores. The calculation for Men’s Wearhouse includes Men’s Wearhouse and Tux stores and excludes tuxedo shops within
Macy’s. For comparability purposes, the calculation for Jos. A. Bank excludes factory stores for all periods presented. The calculation
for Moores is based upon the Canadian dollar. For fiscal 2017, the calculation excludes total sales for the 53rd week.
Average square footage is calculated by dividing the total square footage for all stores open at the end of the period by the number of
stores open at the end of such period. For comparability purposes, the Jos. A. Bank information excludes factory stores for all periods
presented.
For 2016 and 2015 includes 158 and 12 tuxedo shops within Macy’s, respectively.
Includes one Joseph Abboud store for all periods presented. Store closed in February 2020.
Excludes 14 franchise stores for all periods presented.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Executive Overview
Background
We are a leading omni-channel specialty retailer of menswear, including suits, formalwear, and a broad selection of polished and business
casual offerings. We help our customers look and feel their best by delivering personalized products and services through our convenient
network of stores and e-commerce sites. Our brands include Men’s Wearhouse, Jos. A. Bank, Moores Clothing for Men (“Moores”) and
K&G.
Our U.S. stores operate under the Men’s Wearhouse, Men’s Wearhouse and Tux, Jos. A. Bank, and K&G brand names and are located in
50 states and the District of Columbia. Our Canadian stores operate under the Moores brand name and are located in 10 Canadian provinces.
As of February 1, 2020, the Company operated 1,450 stores throughout the U.S. and Canada.
See Note 2 of the consolidated financial statements for information concerning the divestiture of our corporate apparel business on August
16, 2019. Subsequent to this divestiture, we reassessed our segment presentation and determined that the results of our four retail brands,
Men’s Wearhouse, Jos. A. Bank, Moores and K&G are separate operating segments that should continue to be aggregated into a reportable
segment and, as a result, we have only one reportable segment.
All fiscal years for which financial information is included herein had 52 weeks with the exception of fiscal 2017, which ended on
February 3, 2018 and had 53 weeks.
Summary of Fiscal 2019 Financial Performance
During fiscal 2019, we focused our efforts to position the Company for long-term success by executing on our three key strategic
initiatives: (1) offering personalized products and services, (2) providing inspiring and seamless experiences in and across every channel
and (3) telling the stories of our brands in the digital channels where our customers are increasingly spending their time. Although we
believe we are making progress on these initiatives, we experienced lower than anticipated full year net sales and gross margins in fiscal
2019, primarily related to a 3% decrease in comparable sales and increased promotional activities.
From a balance sheet and liquidity perspective, we took several actions intended to accelerate debt reduction and provide additional
financial flexibility to invest in our customer-facing transformation strategies. These actions included: 1) the sale of our corporate apparel
business with the proceeds used to repurchase approximately $55 million of our senior notes, 2) suspension of our quarterly cash dividend,
which will make available approximately $36.5 million of cash on an annualized basis and 3) an agreement to sell the Joseph Abboud
trademarks for $115 million, which closed on March 4, 2020. Per the provisions of our term loan, we plan to reinvest these proceeds in our
business.
Recent Developments
Fiscal 2020 got off to a solid start, with total retail comparable sales up 2.4% for the month of February and all brands positive. However,
beginning in early March 2020, a major global health pandemic related to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) resulted in
a significant decrease in store traffic and comparable sales as well as cancellations of high school proms and other special events,
coinciding with heightened actions taken by governments and citizens to curb the spread of virus. In response, we are taking aggressive and
prudent actions to reduce expenses, and defer discretionary capital expenditures and inventory purchases to preserve our cash.
On March 16, 2020, in an abundance of caution and as a proactive measure, we executed a borrowing of $260.0 million under our ABL
Facility. Furthermore, after assessing the remaining availability under the ABL Facility and determining that additional borrowings were
prudent to maximize cash on hand, on March 19, 2020 and on March 31, 2020, respectively, we borrowed an additional $25.0 million under
the ABL Facility.
On March 17, 2020, we announced the temporary closure of our retail locations in the U.S. and Canada starting March 17, 2020 through
March 28, 2020. On March 19, 2020, we announced the closure of our e-commerce fulfillment centers starting March 20, 2020 through
March 28, 2020. On March 26, 2020, we extended the temporary closing of our retail stores until at least May 4, 2020. In conjunction
with our decision to extend the temporary closure of our stores, we also furloughed all of our U.S. store employees as well as a significant
portion of employees in our U.S. distribution network
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and offices, and we implemented the temporary layoff of all Canadian store employees and a significant portion of Canadian employees in
our Canadian distribution network and offices. Furthermore, in light of our store closures, we have taken certain actions with respect to
some or all of our existing leases, including engaging with landlords to discuss rent reductions and/or rent deferrals, or discontinuing
payment.
Effective March 29, 2020, the base salary of our Chief Executive Officer will be reduced by 50%. The base salary of all other named
executive officers and other executives directly reporting to our Chief Executive Officer will be reduced by 25%. In addition, the base
salaries of other members of our senior management team will be also be reduced. The Board of Directors has also agreed to a 50%
reduction in its retainer fees. Effective April 5, 2020, all employees with a base salary in excess of $100,000 will have their salaries reduced
by 10%.
On March 31, 2020, we announced that, after instituting enhanced social distancing and sanitation protocols that meet or exceed those
recommended by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”), our e-commerce fulfillment centers were reopened. We will
continue to monitor this ongoing situation, relying on recommendations from the CDC, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) and
government officials to regularly evaluate the renewed operations at our e-commerce fulfillment centers and determine when currently
closed facilities will reopen.
While we cannot reasonably estimate the impact of COVID-19 on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows, we do expect
such impact to be significantly negative. The extent to which COVID-19 impacts our operations will depend on future developments, which
are highly uncertain, including, among others, the duration of the outbreak, new information that may emerge concerning the severity of
COVID-19 and the actions, especially those taken by governmental authorities, to contain the pandemic or treat its impact. As events are
rapidly changing, additional impacts may arise that we are not aware of currently.
Key Performance Indicators
We consider a variety of operational and financial measures in assessing the performance of our business. The key measures we use to
determine how our business is performing are net sales, comparable sales, gross margin, operating income and earnings per share.
Comparable sales is defined as net sales (excluding alteration and other services sales) from stores open at least 12 months at period end,
excluding stores where the square footage has changed by more than 25% within the past year, and includes e-commerce sales. While our
customers may engage with us through multiple channels, we operate our business using an omni-channel approach and do not differentiate
e-commerce sales from our other channels.
We believe that comparable sales is a useful measure as it allows management and investors to evaluate the sales performance of our
business while eliminating the impact of new and closed stores. Management uses comparable sales to evaluate the effectiveness of our
selling and merchandising strategies and to compare our performance against that of other peer companies using similar measures.
Definitions and calculations of comparable sales differ among companies in the retail industry; therefore comparable sales metrics disclosed
by us may not be comparable to similar data disclosed by other retailers.
Key Metrics for Fiscal 2019
Key operating metrics for continuing operations for the year ended February 1, 2020 include:
●

Net sales decreased 4.1% primarily due to a decrease of 3.0% in comparable sales and the impact of a $17.6 million reduction
of the deferred revenue liability as a result of changes made to our loyalty programs during the fourth quarter of 2018.

●

Total comparable sales decreased 3.0% with Men’s Wearhouse decreasing 3.5%, Jos. A. Bank decreasing 2.3%, Moores
decreasing 5.4% and K&G decreasing 0.3%.

●

As a percentage of sales, gross margin decreased 300 basis points primarily as a result of increased promotional activities and
deleveraging of occupancy costs.

●

Operating income was $97.8 million in fiscal 2019, compared to operating income of $225.6 million in fiscal 2018.

●

Diluted earnings per share were $0.51 in fiscal 2019, compared to diluted earnings per share of $1.94 in fiscal 2018.
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Key liquidity metrics for the year ended February 1, 2020 include:
●

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of fiscal 2019 were $14.4 million, a decrease of $18.3 million compared to the end of
fiscal 2018, primarily due to the decrease in sales and the use of cash on hand for costs related to our multi-year cost savings
and operational excellence programs, and debt reduction.

●

Cash provided by operating activities was $99.6 million in fiscal 2019 compared to $322.7 million in fiscal 2018. The decrease
was primarily driven by lower net earnings after adjusting for non-cash items other than non-cash lease expense and timing
fluctuations in accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other current liabilities.

●

Capital expenditures were $88.5 million in fiscal 2019 compared to $82.3 million in fiscal 2018.

●

Total debt at the end of fiscal 2019 was approximately $1.1 billion, down $61.5 million compared to the end of fiscal 2018.
During fiscal 2019, we repurchased and retired $54.8 million in face value of our 7% Senior Notes due 2022 (“Senior Notes”)
and repaid $9.4 million on our Term Loan Facility (“Term Loan”).

●

We had $50.0 million borrowings outstanding on our revolving credit facility as of February 1, 2020.

●

We repurchased 2.4 million shares for a total of $10.0 million at an average price of $4.28.

Items Affecting Comparability of Results from Continuing Operations
The following table depicts the effect on pretax income from continuing operations related to certain items that have impacted the
comparability of our results in 2019, 2018 and 2017 (dollars in millions):
2019

Costs related to multi-year cost savings and operational excellence programs(1)
Costs related to the agreement to sell the Joseph Abboud trademarks(2)
Loss on extinguishment of debt (3)
Loyalty program changes(4)
CEO retirement costs
Closure of rental product distribution center(5)
Loss on divestiture of MW Cleaners(6)
Costs to terminate Macy's agreement(7)
Goodwill impairment charge
Asset impairment charges related to tuxedo shops within Macy's
Total

$

$

27.1
17.4
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
44.5

Fiscal Year
2018

$

$

—
—
29.4
(17.6)
6.4
5.0
3.8
—
—
—
27.0

2017

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
16.0
1.5
1.2
18.7

(1)

Consists of $17.9 million in consulting costs, $5.7 million in severance costs, $2.9 million of rental product write-offs related to the
closure of a distribution center in Canada and $0.6 million in lease termination costs.

(2)

Consists of a $13.4 million write-off of inventory related to the closure of the Joseph Abboud store and e-commerce site, $2.6 million of
impairment/accelerated depreciation charges for the Joseph Abboud store and $1.4 million of other transaction-related costs.

(3)

Consists of $11.9 million related to the refinancing of our Term Loan, $9.4 million related to the repricing of the Term Loan, and $8.1
million related to the partial redemption of our Senior Notes. See Note 6 of the consolidated financial statements for additional
information.

(4)

Consists of a favorable non-cash adjustment to net sales totaling $17.6 million reflecting the impact of changes made to our loyalty
programs in the fourth quarter of 2018. See Note 7 of the consolidated financial statements for additional information.

(5)

Consists of $4.0 million of rental product write-offs, $0.4 million of severance costs, $0.3 million of closure related costs and $0.3
million of accelerated depreciation.

(6)

See Note 3 of the consolidated financial statements for additional information.

(7)

See Note 4 of the consolidated financial statements for additional information.
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The following table summarizes the items in the above table by line item in our statements of (loss) earnings:
Fiscal Year
2018

2019

Net sales
Cost of sales
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Goodwill impairment charge
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Total

$

$

—
16.5
28.0
—
—
44.5

$

(17.6)
4.1
11.1
—
29.4
27.0

$

2017

$

—
1.4
15.8
1.5
—
18.7

$

Store Information
During fiscal 2019, we opened two Men’s Wearhouse stores and one K&G store and closed 17 stores (ten Jos. A. Bank stores, five Men’s
Wearhouse stores, and two Men’s Wearhouse and Tux stores).
Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our results of operations expressed as a percentage of net sales for the periods indicated:
2019

Net sales:
Retail clothing product
Rental services
Alteration and other services
Total net sales
Cost of sales(2):
Retail clothing product
Rental services
Alteration and other services
Occupancy costs
Total cost of sales
Gross margin(2):
Retail clothing product
Rental services
Alteration and other services
Occupancy costs
Total gross margin
Advertising expense
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Goodwill impairment charge
Operating income
Interest income
Interest expense
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of debt, net
Earnings before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net earnings from continuing operations
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net (loss) earnings
(1)
(2)

Fiscal Year(1)
2018

81.9 %
13.3
4.8
100.0 %

81.7 %
13.3
5.0
100.0 %

79.9 %
14.0
6.1
100.0 %

47.0
14.8
94.9
14.4
59.4

44.6
14.8
88.0
13.5
56.4

44.5
16.3
75.7
13.6
56.1

53.0
85.2
5.1
(14.4)
40.6
5.5
31.6
—
3.4
0.0
(2.5)
(0.0)

55.4
85.2
12.0
(13.5)
43.6
5.5
30.6
—
7.5
0.0
(2.6)
(1.0)

55.5
83.7
24.3
(13.6)
43.9
5.6
31.2
0.0
7.1
0.0
(3.3)
0.2

0.9
0.1
0.9
(3.7)
(2.9) %

Percentage line items may not sum to totals due to the effect of rounding.
Calculated as a percentage of related sales.
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2017

3.9
0.6
3.3
(0.5)
2.8 %

4.0
1.1
2.9
0.3
3.2 %
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2019 Compared with 2018
The following discussion of our results of operations relates to our continuing operations. See Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements for information concerning discontinued operations.
Net Sales
Total net sales decreased $123.3 million, or 4.1%, to $2,881.3 million for fiscal 2019 as compared to fiscal 2018 primarily due to a
$96.4 million decrease in clothing product revenues primarily due to the decrease in comparable sales and anniversarying last year’s $17.6
million favorable adjustment related to changes to our loyalty programs. In addition, rental services revenue decreased $15.6 million
primarily reflecting a decrease in rental transactions, while alterations and other services revenue decreased $11.3 million. The decrease in
total net sales is further described below:
(in millions)

$

$
(1)

(55.8)
(15.7)
(0.9)
(10.9)
(6.4)
(3.3)
(30.3)
(123.3)

Amount attributed to

3.5% decrease in comparable sales at Men's Wearhouse.
2.3% decrease in comparable sales at Jos. A. Bank.
0.3% decrease in comparable sales at K&G.
5.4% decrease in comparable sales at Moores(1).
Decrease in non-comparable sales.
Decrease in net sales resulting from change in U.S./Canadian dollar exchange rate.
Other (primarily due to the impact of changes to our loyalty programs in 2018 and a decrease in alterations revenue).
Decrease in total net sales.

Comparable sales percentages for Moores are calculated using Canadian dollars.

The decrease in comparable sales at Men's Wearhouse resulted primarily from a decrease in average unit retail (net selling prices) while
both transactions for clothing and units per transaction were essentially flat. At Men's Wearhouse, rental service comparable sales decreased
3.1% primarily due to a decrease in number of rentals. The decrease in comparable sales at Jos. A. Bank resulted primarily from decreases
in both average unit retail and transactions partially offset by an increase in units per transaction. The decrease in comparable sales at K&G
resulted primarily from a decrease in both units per transaction and transactions partially offset by an increase in average unit retail. The
decrease in comparable sales at Moores resulted primarily from a decrease in transactions while both average unit retail and units per
transaction were essentially flat.
Gross Margin
Procurement and distribution costs are included in determining our retail clothing product gross margins. Our gross margin may not be
comparable to other specialty retailers, as some companies exclude costs related to their distribution network from cost of sales while
others, like us, include all or a portion of such costs in cost of sales and exclude them from selling, general and administrative expenses
(“SG&A”). Distribution costs are not included in determining our rental services gross margin as these costs are included in SG&A
expenses.
Our total gross margin decreased $142.0 million, or 10.8%, to $1,168.6 million for fiscal 2019 as compared to fiscal 2018 primarily due to
the decrease in sales and the write-off of $13.4 million of inventory related to the closure of our Joseph Abboud store and e-commerce site.
Total gross margin as a percentage of sales decreased to 40.6% in fiscal 2019 from 43.6% in fiscal 2018 primarily due to increased
promotional activities, deleveraging of occupancy costs and the aforementioned write-off of Joseph Abboud inventory.
Occupancy costs increased $9.9 million primarily due to increased lease costs and the impact of store refreshes and other enhancements of
our store fleet. Occupancy costs include store related operating lease costs, utilities, repairs and maintenance, security, property taxes and
depreciation and, as a percentage of sales, increased to 14.4% in fiscal 2019 from 13.5% in fiscal 2018 primarily due to deleveraging from
lower sales.
Advertising Expense
Advertising expense decreased to $159.1 million in fiscal 2019 from $165.2 million in fiscal 2018, a decrease of $6.2 million or 3.7%. The
decrease in advertising expense was driven primarily by reductions in television advertising reflecting a shift to more efficient online
advertising. As a percentage of total net sales, advertising expense was flat at 5.5% in fiscal 2019 compared to fiscal 2018.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
SG&A expenses decreased to $911.7 million in fiscal 2019 from $919.8 million in fiscal 2018, a decrease of $8.1 million or 0.9%. As a
percentage of total net sales, these expenses increased to 31.6% in fiscal 2019 from 30.6% in fiscal 2018. The components of this 1.0%
increase in SG&A expenses as a percentage of total net sales and the related dollar changes were as follows:
%

0.6

in millions

$

16.9

0.2

(9.5)

0.2

(15.5)

1.0

$

(8.1)

Attributed to

In fiscal 2019, we incurred certain costs that impact the comparability of our results totaling $28.0 million
including $24.0 million related to our multi-year cost savings and operational excellence programs and
$4.0 million relating to the agreement to sell the Joseph Abboud trademarks. In fiscal 2018, costs that
impacted the comparability of our results totaled $11.1 million including $6.4 million related to the
retirement of our former CEO, a $3.8 million loss on divestiture of our MW Cleaners business and $0.9
million related to the closure of a rental product distribution center. As a percentage of sales, these costs
increased to 1.0% in fiscal 2019 from 0.4% in fiscal 2018.
Store salaries decreased $9.5 million and increased as a percentage of sales to 13.7% in fiscal 2019 from
13.5% in fiscal 2018 primarily due to deleveraging from lower sales.
Other SG&A expenses decreased $15.5 million primarily due to lower incentive and share-based
compensation costs as well as lower employee-related benefit and travel and entertainment costs. As a
percentage of sales, other SG&A expenses increased to 16.9% in fiscal 2019 from 16.7% in fiscal 2018
due to deleveraging from lower sales.
Total

Interest Expense
Interest expense decreased to $71.3 million in fiscal 2019 from $79.6 million in fiscal 2018, a decrease of $8.3 million or 10.4%, due to
repayment of our indebtedness including repurchase and retirement of $54.8 million face value of our Senior Notes and $9.4 million of
payments on our Term Loan.
Net Loss on Extinguishment of Debt
Net loss on extinguishment of debt was $0.1 million in fiscal 2019 compared to a net loss on extinguishment of $30.3 million in fiscal 2018.
The net loss on extinguishment in fiscal 2019 relates to open market repurchases of our Senior Notes. The $30.3 million net loss on
extinguishment in fiscal 2018 consists of the elimination of unamortized deferred financing costs and original issue discount (“OID”)
related to the refinancing and repricing of our Term Loan totaling $21.4 million and an $8.9 million loss on extinguishment related to our
Senior Notes.
Provision for Income Tax
In fiscal 2019, our effective income tax rate from continuing operations was 6.1% and is lower than the U.S. statutory rate primarily due to
benefit from foreign tax credits offset by a net increased valuation allowance. Our foreign jurisdictions in which we operate had taxable
income, which requires us to provide for income tax, specifically, our operations in Canada and Hong Kong. For fiscal 2019, the statutory
tax rates were approximately 26% in Canada and 16.5% in Hong Kong. For fiscal 2019, tax expense for our operations in foreign
jurisdictions totaled $4.1 million.
In future periods, our income tax expense from continuing operations and related effective income tax rate may be impacted by many
factors, including our geographic mix of earnings and changes in tax laws.
In addition, if our financial results in fiscal 2020 generate a loss or certain deferred tax liabilities decrease, we may need to establish a
valuation allowance on our U.S. deferred tax assets, which could have a material impact on our financial condition and results of
operations. Lastly, we are currently undergoing several federal, foreign and state audits; however, we currently do not believe these audits
will result in any material change to tax expense in the future.
Net Earnings from Continuing Operations
Net earnings from continuing operations were $25.4 million for fiscal 2019 compared with net earnings from continuing operations of $98.6
million for fiscal 2018.
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2018 Compared with 2017
The following discussion of our results of operations relates to our continuing operations. See Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements for information concerning discontinued operations.
Net Sales
Total net sales decreased $48.5 million, or 1.6%, to $3,004.5 million in fiscal 2018 as compared to fiscal 2017 due to a $29.2 million
decrease in rental services revenue primarily reflecting a decrease in units rented and a $34.2 million decrease in alteration and other
services revenue primarily reflecting the divestiture of MW Cleaners. These decreases were offset by a $14.9 million increase in clothing
product revenues primarily due to the increase in comparable sales and the $17.6 million adjustment related to the changes to our loyalty
programs, partially offset by the impact of the 53rd week in 2017. The decrease in total net sales is further described below:
(in millions)

$

$
(1)

13.2
9.7
4.4
4.9
(66.3)
(2.1)
(12.3)
(48.5)

Amount Attributed to

0.8% increase in comparable sales at Men's Wearhouse.
1.4% increase in comparable sales at Jos. A. Bank.
1.5% increase in comparable sales at K&G.
2.4% increase in comparable sales at Moores(1).
Decrease in non-comparable sales (primarily due to the impact of the 53rd week and closed stores).
Decrease in net sales resulting from change in U.S./Canadian dollar exchange rate.
Other (primarily due to divestiture of MW Cleaners offset by the impact of changes to our loyalty programs).
Decrease in total net sales.

Comparable sales percentages for Moores are calculated using Canadian dollars.

The increase in comparable sales at Men's Wearhouse resulted primarily from increases in both average unit retail (net selling prices) and
transactions for clothing, partially offset by a decrease in units per transaction. At Men's Wearhouse, rental service comparable sales
decreased 4.9% primarily due to a decrease in number of rentals. The increase in comparable sales at Jos. A. Bank resulted primarily from
an increase in transactions partially offset by a decrease in units per transaction, while average unit retail was flat. The increase in
comparable sales at K&G resulted primarily from increases in both units per transaction and average unit retail, partially offset by a
decrease in transactions. The increase in comparable sales at Moores resulted primarily from increases in both average unit retail and
transactions partially offset by a decrease in units per transaction.
Gross Margin
Procurement and distribution costs are included in determining our retail clothing product gross margins. Our gross margin may not be
comparable to other specialty retailers, as some companies exclude costs related to their distribution network from cost of sales while
others, like us, include all or a portion of such costs in cost of sales and exclude them from SG&A expenses. Distribution costs are not
included in determining our rental services gross margin as these costs are included in SG&A expenses.
Our total gross margin decreased $30.8 million, or 2.3%, to $1,310.6 million for fiscal 2018 as compared to fiscal 2017 primarily due to the
aforementioned decreases in rental services and alteration and other services revenue partially offset by the impact of the changes to our
loyalty programs.
Total gross margin as a percentage of sales decreased to 43.6% in fiscal 2018 from 43.9% in fiscal 2017. The decrease was primarily due to
the mix shift from rental services to retail clothing sales and the divestiture of the MW Cleaners business.
Occupancy costs decreased $9.9 million primarily due to the impact of the MW Cleaners divestiture and the closure of our tuxedo shops
within Macy’s in 2017. Occupancy costs include store related rent, utilities, repairs and maintenance, security, property taxes and
depreciation and, as a percentage of total net sales, decreased to 13.5% in fiscal 2018 from 13.6% in fiscal 2017.
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Advertising Expense
Advertising expense decreased to $165.2 million in fiscal 2018 from $172.0 million in fiscal 2017, a decrease of $6.8 million or 3.9%. The
decrease in advertising expense was driven primarily by reductions in television advertising reflecting a shift to digital advertising. As a
percentage of total net sales, advertising expense decreased to 5.5% in fiscal 2018 from 5.6% in fiscal 2017.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
SG&A expenses decreased to $919.8 million in fiscal 2018 from $951.8 million in fiscal 2017, a decrease of $32.0 million or 3.4%. As a
percentage of total net sales, these expenses decreased to 30.6% in fiscal 2018 from 31.2% in fiscal 2017. The components of this 0.6%
decrease in SG&A expenses as a percentage of total net sales and the related dollar changes were as follows:
%

(0.1)

in millions

$

(4.6)

—

(6.6)

(0.5)

(20.8)

(0.6) % $

(32.0)

Attributed to

In fiscal 2018, we incurred certain costs that impact the comparability of our results totaling $11.1 million
including $6.4 million related to the retirement of our former CEO, a $3.8 million loss on divestiture of our MW
Cleaners business and $0.9 million related to the closure of a rental product distribution center. In fiscal 2017,
costs that impacted the comparability of our results totaled $15.7 million and primarily related to costs to
terminate the Macy's agreement. As a percentage of sales, these costs decreased to 0.4% in fiscal 2018 from
0.5% in fiscal 2017.
Store salaries decreased $6.6 million primarily due to the impact of the 53rd week in 2017 as well as the
divestiture of MW Cleaners. As a percentage of sales, store salaries were flat at 13.5% for both fiscal 2018 and
fiscal 2017.
Other SG&A expenses decreased $20.8 million primarily due to the impact of the 53rd week in 2017, lower
operating costs resulting from the divestiture of MW Cleaners and lower share-based and incentive
compensation expense. As a percentage of sales, other SG&A expenses decreased to 16.7% in fiscal 2018 from
17.2% in fiscal 2017.
Total

Interest Expense
Interest expense decreased to $79.6 million in fiscal 2018 from $100.5 million in fiscal 2017, a decrease of $20.9 million or 20.8%, due to
repayment of our indebtedness including repurchase and retirement of $192.6 million face value of our Senior Notes and $102.4 million of
payments on our Term Loan.
Net (Loss) Gain on Extinguishment of Debt
Net loss on extinguishment of debt was $30.3 million in fiscal 2018 compared to a net gain on extinguishment of $5.4 million in fiscal 2017.
The $30.3 million net loss on extinguishment of debt in fiscal 2018 consists of the elimination of unamortized deferred financing costs and
OID related to the refinancing and repricing of our Term Loan totaling $21.4 million and an $8.9 million loss on extinguishment related to
our Senior Notes.
The net gain on extinguishment in fiscal 2017 relates to open market repurchases of our Senior Notes.
Provision for Income Tax
In December 2017, the U.S. enacted comprehensive tax legislation commonly referred to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Reform
Act”). The changes included in the Tax Reform Act are broad and complex, which impacted our consolidated financial statements in both
fiscal 2018 and 2017 including, but not limited to: reducing the U.S. federal corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% effective January 1, 2018
and requiring a one-time transition tax on certain unrepatriated earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries that may electively be paid over eight
years. The transition tax resulted in certain previously untaxed non-U.S. earnings being included in the U.S. federal and state 2017 taxable
income.
The Tax Reform Act also enacted new tax laws which include, but are not limited to: a Base Erosion Anti-abuse Tax (“BEAT”), which is a
new minimum tax, generally eliminating U.S. federal income taxes on dividends from foreign subsidiaries, a provision designed to tax
currently global intangible low taxed income (“GILTI”), a provision that may

37

Table of Contents

limit the amount of currently deductible interest expense, the repeal of the domestic production incentives, limitations on the deductibility of
certain executive compensation, and limitations on the utilization of foreign tax credits to reduce the U.S. income tax liability.
Shortly after the Tax Reform Act was enacted, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118, Income
Tax Accounting Implications of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“SAB 118”) which provides guidance on accounting for the Tax Reform Act’s
impact. SAB 118 provides a measurement period, which in no case should extend beyond one year from the Tax Reform Act enactment
date, during which a company acting in good faith may complete the accounting for the impacts of the Tax Reform Act. In accordance with
SAB 118, a company must reflect the income tax effects of the Tax Reform Act in the reporting period in which the accounting is complete.
To the extent that a company’s accounting for certain income tax effects of the Tax Reform Act is incomplete, a company can determine a
reasonable estimate for those effects and record a provisional estimate in the financial statements in the first reporting period in which a
reasonable estimate can be determined.
As a result, in fiscal 2017, we recorded a provisional discrete net tax benefit of $0.3 million related to the Tax Reform Act, which consisted
of a benefit from deferred tax remeasurement offset by additional provision for transition tax. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2018, we
completed our accounting for the effects of the Tax Reform Act and recorded a discrete net tax benefit of $6.1 million, including
finalization of deferred tax remeasurement, transition tax and a rate change for foreign exchange remeasurement on previously taxed
earnings and profits.
In fiscal 2018, our effective income tax rate from continuing operations was 15.2% and is lower than the U.S. statutory rate primarily due
to the impact of the Tax Reform Act and usage of tax credits, which are partially offset by state income tax changes related to the Tax
Reform Act and foreign earnings with higher tax rates in these jurisdictions. Our foreign jurisdictions in which we operate had taxable
income, which requires us to provide for income tax, specifically, our operations in Canada and Hong Kong. For fiscal 2018, the statutory
tax rates were approximately 26% in Canada and 16.5% in Hong Kong. For fiscal 2018, tax expense for our operations in foreign
jurisdictions totaled $8.0 million.
Net Earnings from Continuing Operations
Net earnings from continuing operations were $98.6 million for fiscal 2018 compared with net earnings from continuing operations of
$87.0 million for fiscal 2017.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our primary sources of working capital are cash flows from operations and available borrowings under our revolving credit agreement, as
described below. The following table provides details on our cash and cash equivalents and working capital position as of February 1, 2020
and February 2, 2019 (in thousands):
February 1,
2020

$
$

Cash and cash equivalents
Working capital

14,420
206,388

February 2,
2019

$
$

32,671
359,696

The decrease in working capital from February 1, 2020 compared to February 2, 2019 is primarily due to the adoption of new accounting
guidance related to leases, specifically the current portion of operating lease liabilities which totals $186.3 million as of February 1, 2020.
See Note 17 for additional information.
We hold cash and cash equivalents at various foreign subsidiaries, which totaled $12.0 million at February 1, 2020. As a result of
reductions to the U.S. taxation of dividends from foreign subsidiaries under the Tax Reform Act, in future years, we may decide to
repatriate amounts from our foreign subsidiaries. Although the cash and cash equivalents held by our foreign subsidiaries may be more
readily available to meet domestic cash requirements, they would continue to be subject to applicable foreign withholding tax that would be
incurred upon repatriation.
In 2014, The Men's Wearhouse entered into a term loan credit agreement that provided for a senior secured term loan in the aggregate
principal amount of $1.1 billion (the "Original Term Loan") and a $500.0 million asset-based revolving credit agreement (the "ABL
Facility", and together with the Original Term Loan, the "Credit Facilities") with certain of our U.S. subsidiaries and Moores the Suit
People, one of our Canadian subsidiaries, as co-borrowers. In addition, in 2014, The Men's Wearhouse issued $600.0 million in aggregate
principal amount of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022 (the "Senior Notes").
In October 2017, The Men’s Wearhouse amended the ABL Facility in part to increase the principal amount available to $550.0 million and
extend the maturity date to October 2022. In April 2018, The Men’s Wearhouse refinanced its Original Term Loan, and, in October 2018,
amended its term loan to reduce the interest rate margin. See Credit Facilities section below for additional information.
The Credit Facilities and the Senior Notes contain customary non-financial and financial covenants, including fixed charge coverage ratios,
total leverage ratios and secured leverage ratios. Should our total leverage ratio and secured leverage ratio exceed certain thresholds
specified in the agreements, we would be subject to certain additional restrictions, including limitations on our ability to make significant
acquisitions and incur additional indebtedness. As of February 1, 2020, our total leverage ratio is below the maximum specified in the
agreements, however, our secured leverage ratio is above the maximum level. As a result, we are now subject to additional restrictions,
primarily related to the size of any incremental term loan facilities being limited to a maximum of $250 million. In addition, as a result of
the refinancing of the Term Loan and amending of our ABL Facility, our ability to pay dividends on our common stock has increased from
a maximum of $10.0 million per quarter to a maximum of $15.0 million per quarter. See Note 13 for additional information on the
suspension of our dividend in 2019.
Credit Facilities
In April 2018, we refinanced our Original Term Loan. Immediately prior to the refinancing, the Original Term Loan consisted of $593.4
million in aggregate principal amount with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 3.50% (with a floor of 1.0%) and $400.0 million in aggregate
principal amount with a fixed rate of 5.0% per annum. Upon entering into the refinancing, we made a prepayment of $93.4 million on the
Original Term Loan using cash on hand.
As a result, we refinanced $900.0 million in aggregate principal amount of term loans then outstanding with a new Term Loan totaling
$900.0 million (the “New Term Loan”). Additionally, we may continue to request additional term loans or incremental equivalent debt
borrowings, all of which are uncommitted, in an aggregate amount up to the greater of (1) $250.0 million and (2) an aggregate principal
amount such that, on a pro forma basis (giving effect to such borrowings), our senior secured leverage ratio will not exceed 2.5 to 1.0.
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The New Term Loan will amortize in an annual amount equal to 1.0% of the principal amount of the New Term Loan, payable quarterly
commencing on May 1, 2018. The New Term Loan extends the maturity date of the Original Term Loan from June 18, 2021 until April 9,
2025, subject to a springing maturity provision that would accelerate the maturity of the New Term Loan to April 1, 2022 if any of the
Company’s obligations under its Senior Notes remain outstanding on April 1, 2022.
The New Term Loan bears interest at a rate per annum equal to an applicable margin plus, at the Company’s option, either LIBOR (with a
floor of 1.0%) or the base rate (with a floor of 2.0%). In October 2018, we amended the New Term Loan resulting in a reduction in the
interest rate margin of 25 basis points. As a result of the amendment, the margins for borrowings under the New Term Loan are 3.25% for
LIBOR and 2.25% for the base rate. The maturity date for the New Term Loan remains April 9, 2025, and all other material provisions of
the New Term Loan remain unchanged.
The interest rate on the New Term Loan is based on 1-month LIBOR, which was 1.66% at February 1, 2020, plus the applicable margin of
3.25%, resulting in a total interest rate of 4.91%. We have two interest rate swap agreements where the variable rates due under the New
Term Loan have been exchanged for a fixed rate. At February 1, 2020, the total notional amount under these interest rate swaps is $705.0
million. See Note 19 for additional information on our interest rate swaps.
As a result of our interest rate swaps, 80% of the variable interest rate under the New Term Loan has been converted to a fixed rate and, as
of February 1, 2020, the New Term Loan had a weighted average interest rate of 5.63%.
In October 2017, we amended our ABL Facility, which now provides for a senior secured revolving credit facility of $550.0 million, with
possible future increases to $650.0 million under an expansion feature that matures in October 2022, and is guaranteed, jointly and
severally, by Tailored Brands, Inc. and certain of our U.S. subsidiaries. The ABL Facility has several borrowing and interest rate options
including the following indices: (i) adjusted LIBOR, (ii) Canadian Dollar Offered Rate (“CDOR”) rate, (iii) Canadian prime rate or (iv) an
alternate base rate (equal to the greater of the prime rate, the New York Federal Reserve Bank (“NYFRB”) rate plus 0.5% or adjusted
LIBOR for a one-month interest period plus 1.0%). Advances under the ABL Facility bear interest at a rate per annum using the applicable
indices plus a varying interest rate margin of up to 1.75%. The ABL Facility also provides for fees applicable to amounts available to be
drawn under outstanding letters of credit which range from 1.25% to 1.75%, and a fee on unused commitments of 0.25%. As of February 1,
2020, $50.0 million in borrowings were outstanding under the ABL Facility at a weighted average interest rate of approximately 3.2%.
During fiscal 2019, the maximum borrowing outstanding under the ABL Facility was $100.0 million.
We utilize letters of credit primarily as collateral for workers compensation claims. At February 1, 2020, letters of credit totaling
approximately $26.6 million were issued and outstanding. Borrowings available under the ABL Facility as of February 1, 2020 were
$400.5 million.
The obligations under the Credit Facilities are secured on a senior basis by a first priority lien on substantially all of the assets of the
Company, certain of its U.S. subsidiaries and, in the case of the ABL Facility, Moores The Suit People. The Credit Facilities and the related
guarantees and security interests granted thereunder are senior secured obligations of, and will rank equally with all present and future
senior indebtedness of the Company, the co-borrowers and the respective guarantors.
Senior Notes
The Senior Notes are guaranteed, jointly and severally, on an unsecured basis by Tailored Brands, Inc. and certain of our U.S. subsidiaries.
The Senior Notes and the related guarantees are senior unsecured obligations of The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. and the guarantors,
respectively, and will rank equally with all of The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc.’s and each guarantor’s present and future senior indebtedness.
The Senior Notes will mature in July 2022. Interest on the Senior Notes is payable on January 1 and July 1 of each year.
We may redeem some or all of the Senior Notes at any time on or after July 1, 2017 at the redemption prices set forth in the indenture
governing the Senior Notes. As of February 1, 2020, the redemption price is 101.75% of the face value and steps down to 100% of the face
value on July 1, 2020. Upon the occurrence of certain specific changes of control, we may be required to offer to purchase the Senior Notes
at 101% of their aggregate principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the date of purchase.
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Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities was $99.6 million and $322.7 million for 2019 and 2018, respectively. The adoption of new lease
accounting guidance in 2019 resulted in the recognition of non-cash lease expense totaling $194.5 million and a corresponding use of cash
totaling approximately $195.8 million related to operating lease liabilities included in other liabilities. As the adoption of the lease
accounting guidance did not materially impact our cash flow from operations for 2019, our explanation of the year-over-year decrease
excludes these amounts.
The $223.0 million decrease in cash flow from operations was driven primarily by a $123.7 million decrease in our net earnings, after
adjusting for non-cash items other than non-cash lease expense, primarily driven by the decrease in our operating income this year
compared to last year and an $83.0 million change in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities primarily related to
fluctuations in accounts payable due to timing of inventory receipts and related vendor payments, vendor payment terms and capital
expenditure projects.
In addition, cash flow from operations was negatively impacted by an increase in net cash paid for taxes totaling $26.6 million primarily
due to a $15.0 million tax refund received last year and an approximate $14.3 million planned increase in purchases of rental product.
These unfavorable impacts were partially offset by a $30.7 million decrease in inventories related to our strategies to evolve our inventory
offerings.
Net cash provided by operating activities was $322.7 million and $350.8 million for 2018 and 2017, respectively. The $28.1 million
decrease was driven by higher inventory purchases compared to last year. The increase in inventory purchases was partially offset by higher
net earnings, after adjusting for certain items primarily related to extinguishment of debt and goodwill impairment as well as favorable
fluctuations in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities primarily due to timing.
Cash Used in Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities was $43.2 million and $64.5 million for 2019 and 2018, respectively. The $21.4 million decrease was
primarily driven by a $27.3 million increase in net proceeds from business divestitures.
Net cash used in investing activities was $64.5 million and $89.9 million for 2018 and 2017, respectively. The $25.4 million decrease was
primarily driven by $17.8 million of net proceeds from the divestiture of MW Cleaners as well as a timing shift of certain capital
expenditure projects to fiscal 2019.
Cash Used in Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities was $100.0 million and $302.7 million for 2019 and 2018, respectively. The $202.7 million decrease
primarily reflects the impact of a decrease in debt repayments in 2019 compared to 2018.
Net cash used in financing activities was $302.7 million and $236.9 million for 2018 and 2017, respectively. The $65.8 million increase
primarily reflects the impact of additional debt repayments in 2018 compared to 2017.
Capital allocation policy update — On September 11, 2019, after extensive review, the Company announced an update to the Company’s
capital allocation policy. Effective in the fourth quarter of 2019, our quarterly cash dividend was suspended and the cash was redeployed
for accelerated debt reduction and opportunistic share repurchases. Suspending the quarterly cash dividend of $0.18 per share is expected
to make available approximately $36.5 million on an annualized basis.
Share repurchase program— In March 2013, the Board approved a share repurchase program for our common stock. During fiscal 2019,
we repurchased 2,336,852 shares through open market repurchases at a cost of $10.0 million for an average price of $4.28 per share.
During fiscal 2018 and 2017, no shares were repurchased in open market transactions under the Board’s authorization. At
February 1, 2020, the remaining balance available under the authorization was $38.0 million.
Dividends— Cash dividends paid were approximately $28.1 million, $36.9 million and $35.8 million during fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. In fiscal 2019, a dividend of $0.18 per share was declared in each of the first two quarters, for an annual dividend of $0.36 per
share. In fiscal 2018 and 2017, a dividend of $0.18 per share was declared in each quarter, for an annual dividend of $0.72 per share,
respectively.
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Future sources and uses of cash
Our primary uses of cash are to finance working capital requirements of our operations and to repay our indebtedness. In addition, we will
use cash to fund capital expenditures, income taxes, operating leases, opportunistic share repurchases and various other commitments and
obligations, as they arise.
Beginning in March 2020, in response to the outbreak of COVID-19, we have taken aggressive and prudent actions to reduce expenses and
defer discretionary capital expenditures and inventory purchases to preserve our cash and liquidity. In addition to these efforts, in an
abundance of caution and as a proactive measure, on March 16, 2020, we executed a borrowing of $260.0 million under our ABL Facility.
Furthermore, after assessing the remaining availability under the ABL Facility and determining that additional borrowings were prudent to
maximize cash on hand, on March 19, 2020 and on March 31, 2020, respectively, we borrowed an additional $25.0 million under the ABL
Facility.
Although we have not yet finalized our outlook for capital expenditures in fiscal 2020, we currently expect capital expenditures to decrease
substantially compared to fiscal 2019, primarily as a result of actions taken in response to the COVID-19 outbreak. Capital expenditures for
2020 will include costs for store refreshes and other enhancements of our store fleet and investments in technology.
As described more fully in Item 1A, current and future domestic and global economic conditions, including the impact of COVID-19, could
negatively affect our future operating results as well as our existing cash and cash equivalents balances and availability under our ABL
Facility. In addition, conditions in the financial markets could limit our access to further capital resources, if needed, and could increase
associated costs. Because of the COVID-19 pandemic, there is significant uncertainty surrounding the potential impact on our results of
operations and cash flows. We are proactively taking measures to increase available cash on hand including, but not limited to, significant
reductions in discretionary operating expenses, reducing inventory purchases and capital expenditures, extension of vendor payment terms,
employee furloughs, salary reductions, discussions with our landlords regarding rent reductions and/or rent deferrals and, as described
above, borrowings under our ABL Facility.
Contractual Obligations
As of February 1, 2020, we are obligated to make cash payments in connection with our long-term debt, operating leases and other
contractual obligations in the amounts listed below. In addition, we utilize letters of credit primarily as collateral for workers compensation
claims. At February 1, 2020, letters of credit totaling approximately $26.6 million were issued and outstanding.
Payments Due by Period
(In millions)
Contractual obligations

Long-term debt(1)
Operating leases(2)
Other contractual obligations (3)
Total contractual obligations(4)

Total

$
$

<1 Year

1,393.9
1,053.7
50.0
2,497.6

$
$

72.0
228.9
30.2
331.1

1 - 3 Years

$
$

362.0
434.3
18.1
814.4

4 - 5 Years

$
$

111.4
256.3
1.7
369.4

> 5 Years

$
$

848.5
134.2
—
982.7

(1)

Includes interest payments of $63.0 million within one year, $120.2 million between one and three years, $93.4 million between four and
five years and $11.8 million beyond five years, at current interest rates including the impact of our interest rate swaps. The payments due
by period do not consider amounts which may become payable under the excess cash flow provision of our New Term Loan. Interest on
our ABL borrowings is excluded from the amounts presented in the table due to our inability to predict the timing and settlement of our
ABL borrowings. See Notes 6 and 19 of the consolidated financial statements for additional information.

(2)

We lease retail business locations, office and warehouse facilities and equipment under various operating leases. See Note 17 of the
consolidated financial statements for additional information.

(3)

Other contractual obligations consist primarily of commitments for products and services used in the normal course of business as well
as minimum payments under our agreement with Vera Wang that gives us the exclusive right to “Black by Vera Wang” tuxedo products
and our partnership with Kenneth Cole.

(4)

Excluded from the table above is $0.6 million related to uncertain tax positions. These amounts are not included due to our inability to
predict the timing of the settlement of these amounts. See Note 9 of the consolidated financial statements for additional information.
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In the normal course of business, we issue purchase orders to suppliers for merchandise. The purchase orders represent executory contracts
requiring performance by the suppliers, including the delivery of the merchandise prior to a specified cancellation date and compliance with
product specifications, quality standards and other requirements. In the event of the supplier’s failure to meet the agreed upon terms and
conditions, we may cancel the order.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Other than other contractual obligations and letters of credit discussed above, we do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that are
material to our financial position or results of operations.
Inflation
We believe the impact of inflation on the results of operations during the periods presented has been minimal. However, there can be no
assurance that our business will not be affected by inflation in the future.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires the appropriate application of accounting policies in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. In many instances, this also requires management to make estimates and assumptions about future
events that affect the amounts and disclosures included in our financial statements. We base our estimates on historical experience and
various assumptions that we believe are reasonable under our current business model. However, because future events and conditions and
their effects cannot be determined with certainty, actual results will differ from our estimates and such differences could be material to our
financial statements.
Our accounting policies are described in Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements. We consistently apply these policies and
periodically evaluate the reasonableness of our estimates in light of actual events. Historically, we have found our accounting policies to be
appropriate and our estimates and assumptions reasonable. Our critical accounting policies, which are those most significant to the
presentation of our financial position and results of operations and those that require significant judgment or complex estimates by
management, are discussed below.
Revenue Recognition— For retail clothing product revenue, we transfer control and recognize revenue at a point in time, upon sale or
shipment of the merchandise, net of actual sales returns and an accrual for estimated sales returns. For rental and alteration services, we
transfer control and recognize revenue at a point in time, upon receipt of the completed service by the customer. Revenue is measured as
the amount of consideration we expect to receive in exchange for transferring goods or providing services. Sales, use and value added taxes
we collect from our customers and are remitted to governmental agencies are excluded from revenue.
Loyalty Program Accounting—Effective February 4, 2018, we adopted ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers and all related
amendments (“ASC 606”). As a result, we no longer use the incremental cost method approach but record our obligation for future point
redemptions using a deferred revenue model.
We maintain a customer loyalty program for our Men’s Wearhouse, Men’s Wearhouse and Tux, Jos. A. Bank and Moores brands in which
customers receive points for purchases. Points are generally equivalent to dollars spent on a one-to-one basis, excluding any sales tax
dollars, and do not expire. Upon reaching 500 points, customers are issued a $50 rewards certificate which they may redeem for purchases
at our stores or online. Generally, reward certificates earned must be redeemed no later than six months from the date of issuance.
When loyalty program members earn points, we recognize a portion of the transaction as revenue for merchandise product sales or services
and defer a portion of the transaction representing the value of the related points. The value of the points is recorded in deferred revenue on
our consolidated balance sheet and recognized into revenue when the points are converted into a rewards certificate and the certificate is
used.
We account for points earned and certificates issued that will not be redeemed by loyalty members, which we refer to as breakage. We
review our breakage estimates at least annually based upon the latest available information regarding redemption and expiration patterns.
During the fourth quarter of 2018, we redeemed certain loyalty members’ cumulative outstanding points into reward certificates prior to
them reaching 500 total points, and these certificates expired on February 2, 2019. In addition, we finalized our decision to implement an
expiration policy for loyalty program points beginning in the second quarter of
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fiscal 2019, which was completed. As a result of these changes in the loyalty programs, during the fourth quarter of 2018, we recorded a
decrease to our deferred revenue liability related to outstanding loyalty program points of $17.6 million, $14.3 million net of income taxes,
or $0.28 earnings per diluted share.
Our estimate of the expected usage of points and certificates requires significant management judgment. Current and future changes to our
assumptions or to loyalty program rules may result in material changes to the deferred revenue balance as well as recognized revenues from
our loyalty programs.
Inventories—Our inventory is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined based on the average cost method.
Our inventory cost also includes estimated procurement and distribution costs (warehousing, freight, hangers and merchandising costs)
associated with the inventory, with the balance of such costs included in cost of sales. Procurement and distribution costs are generally
allocated to inventory based on the ratio of annual product purchases to inventory cost. If this ratio were to change significantly, it could
materially affect the amount of procurement and distribution costs included in cost of sales. We make assumptions, based primarily on
historical experience, as to items in our inventory that may be damaged, obsolete or salable only at marked down prices to reflect the net
realizable value of these items. If actual damages, obsolescence or market demand is significantly different from our estimates, additional
inventory write-downs could be required.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets—Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, operating lease right-of-use assets and identifiable
intangibles with finite useful lives, are periodically evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level of which there are
identifiable cash flows, which is generally at a store level. Assets are reviewed using factors including, but not limited to, our future
operating plans and projected cash flows. The determination of whether impairment has occurred is based on an estimate of undiscounted
future cash flows directly related to the assets, compared to the carrying value of the assets. If the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows
of the assets does not exceed the carrying value of the assets, full or partial impairment may exist. If the asset carrying amount exceeds its
fair value, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the asset. See Notes 1
and 4 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information.
Fair value is determined using an income approach, which requires discounting the estimated future cash flows associated with the asset.
Estimating future cash flows requires management to make assumptions and to apply judgment, including forecasting future sales, costs and
useful lives of assets. Significant judgment is also involved in selecting the appropriate discount rate to be applied in determining the
estimated fair value of an asset. Changes to our key assumptions related to future performance, market conditions and other economic
factors can significantly affect our impairment evaluation and result in future impairment charges. Unanticipated long-term adverse market
conditions may cause individual stores to become unprofitable and can result in an impairment charge for the long-lived assets in those
stores. For example, as a result of our temporary store closures in response to the outbreak of COVID-19, we may incur impairments to
certain long-lived assets in our stores during fiscal 2020.
Goodwill and Other Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets—As of February 1, 2020, goodwill totaled $79.3 million, with $58.3 million
allocated to our Men’s Wearhouse reporting unit and $21.0 million allocated to our Moores reporting unit. Goodwill and other indefinitelived intangible assets are initially recorded at their fair values. Identifiable intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, including
goodwill, are not amortized but are evaluated annually for impairment. A more frequent evaluation is performed if events or circumstances
indicate that impairment could have occurred. Such events or circumstances could include, but are not limited to, significant negative
industry or economic trends, unanticipated changes in the competitive environment, decisions to significantly modify or dispose of
operations and a significant sustained decline in the market price of our stock.
Fiscal 2019 Annual Impairment Assessment Results
Our goodwill assessment consists of either using a qualitative approach to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of
the assets is less than their respective carrying values or a quantitative impairment test, if necessary. In performing the qualitative
assessment, we consider many factors in evaluating whether the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable, including
macroeconomic conditions, retail industry considerations, recent financial performance and declines in stock price and market
capitalization. For our annual 2019 impairment tests, we applied the quantitative approach test for all reporting units.
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We estimated the fair values of each of our reporting units using a combined income and market comparable approach. Our income
approach uses projected future cash flows that are discounted using a weighted-average cost of capital analysis that reflects current market
conditions. The market comparable approach primarily considers earnings multiples of comparable companies and applies those multiples
to certain key drivers of the reporting unit.
Management judgment is a significant factor in the goodwill impairment evaluation process. The computations require management to make
estimates and assumptions. Actual values may differ significantly from these judgments, particularly if there are significant adverse changes
in the operating environment for our reporting units. Critical assumptions that are used as part of these evaluations include:
●

●

●

The potential future cash flows of the reporting unit. The income approach relies on the timing and estimates of future cash flows.
The projections use management’s estimates of economic and market conditions over the projected period, including growth rates in
revenue, gross margin and expense. The cash flows are based on our most recent business operating plans and various growth rates
have been assumed for years beyond the current business plan period.
Selection of an appropriate discount rate. The income approach requires the selection of an appropriate discount rate, which is
based on a weighted-average cost of capital analysis. The discount rate is affected by changes in short-term interest rates and longterm yield as well as variances in the typical capital structure of marketplace participants. Given current economic conditions, it is
possible that the discount rate will fluctuate in the near-term. The weighted-average cost of capital used to discount the cash flows
for the annual goodwill impairment test for the reporting units that have goodwill ranged from 9.0% to 10.0%.
Selection of comparable companies within the industry. For purposes of the market comparable approach, valuations were
determined by calculating average earnings multiples of relevant key drivers from a group of companies that are comparable to the
reporting unit being tested and applying those earnings multiples to the key drivers of the reporting unit. While the market earnings
multiple is not an assumption, a presumption that it provides an indicator of value of the reporting unit is inherent in the valuation.
The determination of the market comparable also involves a degree of judgment. Earnings multiples used in the market comparable
approach for the annual goodwill impairment test for the reporting units that have goodwill ranged from 6.3 to 7.5.

We believe these two approaches are appropriate valuation techniques, and we weighted the two values equally as an estimate of reporting
unit fair value for the purposes of our impairment testing. In addition, we compared the total fair values of our reporting units to our market
capitalization and noted that the implied control premium was within what we consider to be a reasonable range. As the reporting units
have fair values that significantly exceed their carrying values, as of February 1, 2020, no reporting units are currently deemed “at risk” for
goodwill impairment.
If the current market price of our stock further decreases or does not increase from current levels in the near future, or if other events or
circumstances change (such as the impact of COVID-19) that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of our reporting units below
their respective carrying values, all or a portion of our goodwill may be impaired in future periods and such an impairment charge could
have a material effect on our results of operations and financial condition.
As of February 1, 2020, our indefinite-lived intangible assets consisted of the Jos. A. Bank tradename with a carrying value of $113.2
million. Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not subject to amortization but are reviewed at least annually for impairment. The indefinitelived intangible asset impairment evaluation is performed by comparing the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible assets to their
carrying values. Similar to the goodwill approach described above, our annual impairment assessment for indefinite-lived intangible assets
contemplates the use of either a qualitative approach to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of the assets is less
than their respective carrying values or a quantitative impairment test. In 2019, we applied the quantitative approach test to our Jos. A.
Bank tradename.
We estimated the fair value of the Jos. A. Bank tradename based on an income approach using the relief-from-royalty method. This
approach is dependent upon a number of factors, including estimates of future growth and trends, royalty rates, discount rates and other
variables. We base our fair value estimates on assumptions we believe to be reasonable, but which are unpredictable and inherently
uncertain. If the carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds the estimated fair value of the asset.
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As of February 1, 2020, we determined that there is no impairment of our Jos. A. Bank tradename. However, if events or circumstances
change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of the Jos. A. Bank tradename below its carrying value, we may be required to
record an impairment charge, which could have a material effect on our results of operations and financial condition. For example, as a
result of our temporary store closures in response to the outbreak of COVID-19, we may incur an impairment charge during fiscal 2020
related to the Jos. A. Bank tradename as revenue attributable to the Jos. A. Bank brand is a significant input to the relief-from-royalty
method.
Income Taxes—Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax liabilities or assets are established for
temporary differences between financial and tax reporting bases and are subsequently adjusted to reflect changes in enacted tax rates
expected to be in effect when the temporary differences reverse. The deferred tax assets are reduced, if necessary, by a valuation allowance
if the future realization of those tax benefits is not more likely than not.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes, related taxes payable and deferred tax assets and liabilities
since, in the ordinary course of business, there are transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax outcome is uncertain. Additionally,
our tax returns are subject to audit by various domestic and foreign tax authorities that could result in material adjustments or differing
interpretations of the tax laws. Although we believe that our estimates are reasonable and are based on the best available information at the
time we prepare the provision, actual results could differ from these estimates resulting in a final tax outcome that may be materially
different from that which is reflected in our consolidated financial statements.
The changes included in the Tax Reform Act are broad and complex and, in the future, the U.S. Treasury Department, the IRS, and other
standard-setting bodies could interpret or issue guidance on how provisions of the Tax Reform Act will be applied or otherwise
administered. Any new interpretations or guidance on the Tax Reform Act could have a material impact on our results of operations,
financial position and cash flows.
The tax benefit from an uncertain tax position is recognized only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on
examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the consolidated financial
statements from such positions are then measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon
settlement. Additionally, interest and/or penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recognized in income tax expense. Significant
judgment is required in determining our uncertain tax positions. We have established reserves for uncertain tax positions using our best
judgment and adjust these reserves, as warranted, due to changing facts and circumstances. A change in our uncertain tax positions, in any
given period, could have a significant impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows for that period.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Except as discussed in Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements, we have considered all new accounting pronouncements and have
concluded that there are no new pronouncements that may have a material impact on our results of operations, financial condition, or cash
flows, based on current information.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Currency Risk
We are subject to exposure from fluctuations in U.S. dollar/Canadian dollar (“CAD”) exchange rates as a result of our direct sourcing
programs and our operations in Canada. Moores, our Canadian subsidiary, conducts most of its business in CAD but purchases a significant
portion of its merchandise in U.S. dollars. Historically, the exchange rate between CAD and U.S. dollars has fluctuated. A decline in the
value of the CAD as compared to the U.S. dollar may adversely impact our Canadian operations as the revenues and earnings of our
Canadian operations will be reduced when they are translated to U.S. dollars. Also, the value of our Canadian net assets as expressed in U.S.
dollars may decline. We utilize foreign currency hedging contracts related to our merchandise purchases to limit exposure to changes in
U.S. dollar/CAD exchange rates; however, these hedging activities may not adequately protect our Canadian operations from exchange rate
risk.
As the foreign exchange forward contracts are with financial institutions, we are exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by
these parties. However, due to the creditworthiness of these major financial institutions, full performance is anticipated.
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For information on our derivative instruments, see Note 19 of the consolidated financial statements. A hypothetical 10% increase or
decrease in applicable February 1, 2020 forward rates for these derivative financial instruments could impact their fair value by
$0.5 million. However, it should be noted that any change in the value of these contracts, whether real or hypothetical, would be
significantly offset by an inverse change in the value of the underlying hedged item.
Interest Rate Risk
As discussed in Note 6 and Note 19 of the consolidated financial statements, we have undertaken steps to mitigate our exposure to changes
in interest rates on our Term Loan. As of February 1, 2020, 80% of the variable interest rate under our Term Loan has been converted to a
fixed rate. At February 1, 2020, the effect of one percentage point change in interest rates would result in an approximate $1.8 million
change in annual interest expense on our Term Loan.
In addition, borrowings under our ABL Facility bear a floating rate of interest. As of February 1, 2020, the outstanding borrowings under
the ABL Facility were $50.0 million. At February 1, 2020, the effect of a one percentage point change in interest rates would result in an
approximate $0.5 million change in annual interest expense on our ABL borrowings.
We also have exposure to market rate risk for changes in interest rates as those rates relate to our cash and cash equivalents. We do not
believe our cash and cash equivalents are subject to material interest rate risk, however, future investment income earned on our cash
equivalents will fluctuate in line with short-term interest rates.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Tailored Brands, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tailored Brands, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of February
1, 2020 and February 2, 2019, the related consolidated statements of (loss) earnings, comprehensive (loss) income, shareholders' (deficit)
equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended February 1, 2020, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the
"financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company
as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended February 1, 2020, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of February 1, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated April 8, 2020,
expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
Change in Accounting Principle
As discussed in Note 17 to the financial statements, effective February 3, 2019 the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 842, Leases, using the modified retrospective transition approach. As
discussed in Note 7 to the financial statements, effective February 4, 2018 the Company adopted FASB ASC Topic 606, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, using the modified retrospective transition approach.
Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our
audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud,
and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
/s/DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Houston, Texas
April 8, 2020
We have served as the Company’s auditor since at least 1991; however, an earlier year could not be reliably determined.
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TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
February 1,
2020

February 2,
2019

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Assets held for sale
Other current assets
Current assets - discontinued operations
Total current assets
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, AT COST:
Land
Buildings
Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

$

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net
OPERATING LEASE RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
RENTAL PRODUCT, net
GOODWILL
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net
OTHER ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Income taxes payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Current liabilities - discontinued operations
Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM DEBT, net
OPERATING LEASE LIABILITIES
DEFERRED TAXES, net AND OTHER LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 2,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 50,909,984 and 50,180,832 shares
issued
Capital in excess of par
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury stock, 2,336,852 and 0 shares, at cost
Total shareholders' (deficit) equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY

$

$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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14,420
39,973
696,657
34,935
49,130
—
835,115
17,181
149,942
650,778
575,986
1,393,887
(998,075)
395,812
880,291
92,897
79,271
116,843
18,730
—
2,418,959

183,897
246,110
186,304
3,416
9,000
—
628,727
1,094,398

$

$

$

32,671
34,686
724,086
—
66,823
171,376
1,029,642
19,162
151,071
628,572
647,241
1,446,046
(1,021,730)
424,316
—
99,770
79,491
153,711
8,489
25,071
1,820,490

204,775
268,698
—
13,478
11,619
40,025
538,595
1,153,242

726,327
67,813
—
2,517,265

—
119,545
5,477
1,816,859

—

—

508
514,397
(568,697)
(34,514)
(10,000)
(98,306)
2,418,959

501
505,157
(468,048)
(33,979)
—
3,631
1,820,490

$
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TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF (LOSS) EARNINGS
For the Years Ended
February 1, 2020, February 2, 2019, and February 3, 2018
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Fiscal Year
2018

2019

Net sales:
Retail clothing product
Rental services
Alteration and other services
Total net sales
Cost of sales:
Retail clothing product
Rental services
Alteration and other services
Occupancy costs
Total cost of sales
Gross margin:
Retail clothing product
Rental services
Alteration and other services
Occupancy costs
Total gross margin
Advertising expense
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Goodwill impairment charge
Operating income
Interest income
Interest expense
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of debt, net
Earnings before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net earnings from continuing operations
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net (loss) earnings
Net earnings from continuing operations per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Net (loss) earnings from discontinued operations per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Net (loss) earnings per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

$

2,358,392
383,521
139,348
2,881,261

$

2,454,747
399,146
150,618
3,004,511

$

2,439,817
428,355
184,849
3,053,021

1,107,642
56,750
132,302
415,955
1,712,649

1,096,032
59,243
132,591
406,037
1,693,903

1,085,799
69,973
139,840
415,981
1,711,593

$

1,250,750
326,771
7,046
(415,955)
1,168,612
159,052
911,722
—
97,838
523
(71,272)
(77)
27,012
1,645
25,367
(107,643)
(82,276)

$

1,358,715
339,903
18,027
(406,037)
1,310,608
165,248
919,798
—
225,562
563
(79,570)
(30,253)
116,302
17,706
98,596
(15,356)
83,240

$

1,354,018
358,382
45,009
(415,981)
1,341,428
172,001
951,831
1,500
216,096
564
(100,471)
5,445
121,634
34,617
87,017
9,686
96,703

$
$

0.51
0.51

$
$

1.98
1.94

$
$

1.77
1.76

$
$

(2.16)
(2.16)

$
$

(0.31)
(0.30)

$
$

0.20
0.20

$
$

(1.65)
(1.65)

$
$

1.67
1.64

$
$

1.97
1.95

49,774
49,929

49,856
50,725

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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49,094
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TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
For the Years Ended
February 1, 2020, February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018
(In thousands)
Fiscal Year
2018

2019

Net (loss) earnings
Currency translation adjustments, net of tax
Unrealized (loss) gain on cash flow hedges, net of tax
Adjustment to minimum pension liability, net of tax
Release of cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment to loss from discontinued
operations
Comprehensive (loss) income

$

$

(82,276)
(4,847)
(22,054)
(519)
26,885
(82,811)

$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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83,240
(18,704)
(4,459)
(34)
—
60,043

2017

$

$

96,703
29,089
227
(15)
—
126,004
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TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY
(In thousands, except shares)

BALANCES — January 28, 2017
Net earnings
Other comprehensive income
Cash dividends — $0.72 per share
Share-based compensation
Common stock issued — 504,156 shares
Tax payments related to vested deferred stock units
BALANCES — February 3, 2018
Net earnings
Other comprehensive loss
Cumulative adjustment upon ASC 606 adoption (see
Note 7)
Cash dividends — $0.72 per share
Share-based compensation
Common stock issued — 892,976 shares
Tax payments related to vested deferred stock units
BALANCES —February 2, 2019
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss
Cumulative adjustment upon ASC 842 adoption (see
Note 17)
Cash dividends — $0.36 per share
Release of cumulative foreign currency translation
adjustment to loss from discontinued operations
Share-based compensation
Common stock issued —729,152 shares
Tax payments related to vested deferred stock units
Treasury stock repurchased — 2,336,852 shares
BALANCES — February 1, 2020

Capital
Common
in Excess
Stock
of Par
$
487 $ 470,801
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
20,636
5
1,898
—
(1,687)
492
491,648
—
—
—
—

$

Accumulated
Deficit
$
(538,823)
96,703
—
(37,046)
—
—
—
(479,166)
83,240
—

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss
$
(40,083)
—
29,301
—
—
—
—
(10,782)
—
(23,197)

Treasury
Stock, at
Cost
$
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

Total
(Deficit)
Equity
$ (107,618)
96,703
29,301
(37,046)
20,636
1,903
(1,687)
2,192
83,240
(23,197)

—
—
—
9
—
501
—
—

—
—
14,770
6,640
(7,901)
505,157
—
—

(35,824)
(36,298)
—
—
—
(468,048)
(82,276)
—

—
—
—
—
—
(33,979)
—
(27,420)

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

(35,824)
(36,298)
14,770
6,649
(7,901)
3,631
(82,276)
(27,420)

—
—

—
—

(402)
(17,971)

—
—

—
—

(402)
(17,971)

—
—
7
—
—
508

—
8,902
1,554
(1,216)
—
514,397

—
—
—
—
—
(568,697)

26,885
—
—
—
—
(34,514)

—
—
—
—
(10,000)
(10,000)

26,885
8,902
1,561
(1,216)
(10,000)
(98,306)

$

$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended
February 1, 2020, February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018
(In thousands)
Fiscal Year
2018

2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net (loss) earnings
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash lease expense
Rental product amortization
Goodwill impairment charge
Loss (gain) on extinguishment of debt, net
Amortization of deferred financing costs and discount on long-term debt
Loss on divestiture of business
Loss on release of cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment
Loss on disposition of assets
Asset impairment charges
Share-based compensation
Deferred tax benefit
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Rental product
Other assets
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Income taxes payable
Operating lease and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from divestiture of business, net
Acquisition of business, net of cash
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on original term loan
Proceeds from new term loan
Payments on new term loan
Proceeds from asset-based revolving credit facility
Payments on asset-based revolving credit facility
Repurchase and retirement of senior notes
Deferred financing costs
Cash dividends paid
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Tax payments related to vested deferred stock units
Repurchases of common stock
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balance at beginning of period
Balance at end of period
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$

$

(82,276)

$

83,240

2017

$

96,703

107,174
194,529
34,289
—
77
1,878
83,513
26,885
2,628
3,404
8,902
(13,461)
80

104,216
—
35,058
23,991
30,253
3,422
3,766
—
4,821
1,026
14,770
(8,009)
272

106,493
—
38,021
1,500
(5,445)
7,066
—
—
1,237
3,547
20,636
(5,763)
938

3,161
26,243
(30,513)
(20,015)
(39,325)
(11,750)
(195,782)
99,641

2,264
(4,482)
(16,217)
9,385
43,706
9,993
(18,803)
322,672

(9,440)
114,652
(9,582)
(5,956)
(10,843)
4,650
2,354
350,768

(88,502)
45,034
—
311
(43,157)

(82,286)
17,755
—
—
(64,531)

(94,958)
—
(457)
5,480
(89,935)

—
—
(9,370)
1,333,000
(1,331,500)
(54,425)
—
(28,071)
1,561
(1,216)
(10,000)
(100,021)
2,526
(41,011)
55,431
14,420

(993,420)
895,500
(9,000)
655,500
(607,000)
(199,365)
(6,713)
(36,946)
6,649
(7,901)
—
(302,696)
(3,621)
(48,176)
103,607
55,431

(53,379)
—
—
276,300
(276,300)
(145,371)
(2,580)
(35,761)
1,903
(1,687)
—
(236,875)
8,760
32,718
70,889
103,607

$

$
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SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for:
Interest
Income taxes, net
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Accounts receivable related to the sale of corporate apparel business

$
$

65,669
38,031

$
$

77,571
11,431

$
$

106,372
39,537

$

6,048

$

—

$

—

We had unpaid capital expenditure purchases included in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities and current
liabilities – discontinued operations of approximately $2.8 million, $11.7 million and $2.9 million in fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Capital expenditure purchases are recorded as cash outflows from investing activities in the consolidated statement of cash
flows in the period in which they are paid.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization and Business—Tailored Brands, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”, “we”, “us”, and “our”) is a leading omni-channel
specialty apparel retailer of menswear, including suits, formalwear and a broad selection of polished and business casual offerings. We also
offer a full selection of special occasion offerings including tuxedo and suit rental product (collectively “rental product”). We serve our
customers through an expansive omni-channel network including over 1,400 stores in the United States (“U.S.”) and Canada as well as our
branded e-commerce websites at www.menswearhouse.com and www.josbank.com.
Our retail stores operate under the Men’s Wearhouse, Men’s Wearhouse and Tux, Jos. A. Bank Clothiers (“Jos. A. Bank”), Moores
Clothing for Men (“Moores”) and K&G names and carry a wide selection of exclusive and non-exclusive merchandise brands. In addition,
we offer our customers alteration services and most of our K&G stores also offer women’s career and casual apparel, sportswear and
accessories, including shoes, and children’s apparel. Also, prior to its divestiture in 2018, we conducted retail dry cleaning, laundry and
heirlooming operations through MW Cleaners in Texas. See Note 3 for information on our divestiture of MW Cleaners.
On August 16, 2019, we completed the sale of MWUK Limited, our UK corporate apparel operations conducted by Dimensions,
Alexandra, and Yaffy to Project Dart Bidco Limited, pursuant to a Share Purchase Agreement entered into on that same date. In addition,
we also completed the sale of Twin Hill Acquisition Company, Inc. (“Twin Hill”), to TH Holdco Inc., pursuant to a Stock Purchase
Agreement entered into on August 16, 2019. The aggregate consideration for all of the outstanding equity of MWUK Limited and Twin
Hill (collectively, the “corporate apparel business”) was approximately $62 million, subject to certain working capital adjustments. See
Note 2 for additional information. Unless noted otherwise, discussion in these notes to the consolidated financial statements pertain to our
continuing operations.
We follow the standard fiscal year of the retail industry, which is a 52-week or 53-week period ending on the Saturday closest to January 31.
The periods presented in these financial statements are the fiscal years ended February 1, 2020 (“fiscal 2019”), February 2, 2019 (“fiscal
2018”), and February 3, 2018 (“fiscal 2017”). Each of these periods had 52 weeks except for fiscal 2017, which consisted of53 weeks.
Principles of Consolidation— The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tailored Brands, Inc. and its subsidiaries.
Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
Reclassifications— Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.
Use of Estimates— The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Segment information— As a result of the sale of our corporate apparel business, we reassessed our segment reporting presentation. We
determined that the results from our four retail brands: Men’s Wearhouse/Men’s Wearhouse and Tux, Jos. A. Bank, K&G and Moores
represent separate operating segments that should continue to be aggregated into a reportable segment and, as a result, we have
only one reportable segment. See Note 7 for revenue information by brand and by major source. Long-lived assets of our Canadian
operations were $32.3 million and $36.6 million as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019, respectively.
Cash and Cash Equivalents— Cash and cash equivalents includes all cash in banks, cash on hand and all highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less.
Accounts Receivable—Accounts receivable consists of our receivables from third-party credit card providers and other trade receivables.
Collectability is reviewed regularly and recorded net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts, which is adjusted as necessary. As of
February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019, the allowance for uncollectible accounts was $0.8 million and $0.9 million, respectively.
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TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Inventories—Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined based on the average cost method. Our
inventory cost also includes estimated procurement and distribution costs (warehousing, freight, hangers and merchandising costs)
associated with the inventory, with the balance of such costs included in cost of sales. Procurement and distribution costs are generally
allocated to inventory based on the ratio of annual product purchases to inventory cost. We make assumptions, based primarily on historical
experience, as to items in our inventory that may be damaged, obsolete or salable only at marked down prices to reflect the net realizable
value of these items.
Assets Held for Sale—Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. As of February
1, 2020, assets held for sale totaled $34.9 million including $30.0 million related to the Joseph Abboud tradename, which we sold in the
first quarter of 2020. See Note 23 for additional information. The remaining $4.9 million of assets held for sale are primarily related to
recently closed distribution centers which we intend to sell in fiscal 2020. As we believe the fair value less costs to sell for the assets held
for sale exceeds their carrying amount, no adjustment to their carrying value was recorded in fiscal 2019.
Property and Equipment—Property and equipment are stated at cost. Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to earnings as
incurred and additions and major improvements are capitalized. The cost of assets retired or otherwise disposed of and the related
allowances for depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the period of disposal and the resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to
earnings.
Buildings are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 25 years. Depreciation of leasehold
improvements is computed on the straight-line method over the term of the lease, which is generally five to ten years based on the initial
lease term plus first renewal option periods that are reasonably certain of being exercised, or the useful life of the assets, whichever is
shorter. Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated using primarily the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of two to
15 years.
Depreciation expense was $102.4 million, $98.1 million and $100.1 million for fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Rental Product—Rental product is amortized to cost of sales based on the cost of each unit rented. The cost of each unit rented is estimated
based on the number of times the unit is expected to be rented and the average cost of the rental product. Lost, damaged and retired rental
product is also charged to cost of sales. Rental product is amortized to expense generally over a four year period. We make assumptions,
based primarily on historical experience, as to the number of times each unit can be rented. Amortization expense was $34.3 million,
$35.1 million and $38.0 million for fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets—Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, operating lease right-of-use assets and identifiable
intangibles with finite useful lives, are periodically evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level of which there are
identifiable cash flows, which is generally at a store level. Assets are reviewed using factors including, but not limited to, our future
operating plans and projected cash flows. The determination of whether impairment has occurred is based on an estimate of undiscounted
future cash flows directly related to the assets, compared to the carrying value of the assets. If the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows
of the assets does not exceed the carrying value of the assets, full or partial impairment may exist. If the asset carrying amount exceeds its
fair value, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair value is
determined using an income approach, which requires discounting the estimated future cash flows associated with the asset.
Asset impairment charges totaled $3.4 million, $1.0 million and $3.5 million for fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The $3.4 million
and $1.0 million of asset impairment charges recorded in fiscal 2019 and 2018, respectively, relates to long-lived assets at our Joseph
Abboud store and other underperforming stores. Of the $3.5 million recorded in fiscal 2017, $1.2 million relates to fixed assets in our
tuxedo shops within Macy’s (see Note 4 for additional information) and the remainder relates to underperforming stores.
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Goodwill and Other Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets—Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets are initially recorded at their
fair values. Identifiable intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, including goodwill, are not amortized but are evaluated annually for
impairment. A more frequent evaluation is performed if events or circumstances indicate that impairment could have occurred. Such
events or circumstances could include, but are not limited to, significant negative industry or economic trends, unanticipated changes in the
competitive environment, decisions to significantly modify or dispose of operations and a significant sustained decline in the market price
of our stock.
For purposes of our goodwill impairment evaluation, each of our merchandising brands are separate reporting units. Goodwill has been
assigned to the reporting units based on prior business combinations related to the reporting units and our annual impairment assessment
occurs on the last day of the second month of our fiscal fourth quarter.
Our goodwill assessment consists of either using a qualitative approach to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of
the assets is less than their respective carrying values or a quantitative impairment test, if necessary. In performing the qualitative
assessment, we consider many factors in evaluating whether the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable, including
macroeconomic conditions, retail industry considerations, recent financial performance and declines in stock price and market
capitalization.
Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not subject to amortization but are reviewed at least annually for impairment. The indefinite-lived
intangible asset impairment evaluation is performed by comparing the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible assets to their carrying
values. Similar to the goodwill approach described above, our annual impairment assessment for indefinite-lived intangible assets
contemplates the use of either a qualitative approach to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of the assets is less
than their respective carrying values or a quantitative impairment test, if necessary.
We estimate the fair values of these intangible assets based on an income approach using the relief-from-royalty method. This approach is
dependent upon a number of factors, including estimates of future growth and trends, royalty rates, discount rates and other variables. We
base our fair value estimates on assumptions we believe to be reasonable, but which are unpredictable and inherently uncertain. If the
carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the
estimated fair value of the asset.
As a result of our annual impairment evaluations, we believe that, as of February 1, 2020, none of our goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets are impaired.
Derivative Financial Instruments—Derivative financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value as other
current assets, other assets, accrued expenses and other current liabilities or other liabilities. For derivative instruments for which hedge
accounting was not designated, the gain or loss is recorded in cost of sales in the consolidated statements of (loss) earnings. For derivative
instruments that qualify for hedge accounting treatment, the effective portion of the derivative is recorded as a component of other
comprehensive income (loss) and reclassified to earnings in the period when the hedged item affects earnings. Gains and losses on
derivative instruments are reflected within cash flow from operating activities on the statement of cash flows. See Note 19 for further
information regarding our derivative instruments.
Self-Insurance— We self-insure significant portions of our workers’ compensation and employee medical costs. We estimate our liability
for future payments under these programs based on historical experience and various assumptions as to participating employees, health care
costs, number of claims and other factors, including industry trends and information provided to us by third parties. We also use actuarial
estimates. If the number of claims or the costs associated with those claims were to increase significantly over our estimates, additional
charges to earnings could be necessary to cover required payments.
Sabbatical Leave—Beginning in fiscal 2016, employees no longer earn a sabbatical leave and, as a result, we are no longer accruing
benefits for sabbatical leave. The accrued liability for sabbatical leave earned prior to fiscal 2016, which is included in accrued expenses
and other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets, was $1.5 million and $2.4 million as of fiscal 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Income Taxes—Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax liabilities or assets are established for
temporary differences between financial and tax reporting bases and subsequently adjusted to reflect changes in enacted tax rates expected
to be in effect when the temporary differences reverse. The deferred tax assets are reduced, if necessary, by a valuation allowance if the
future realization of those tax benefits is not more likely than not. See Note 9 for further information regarding income taxes, including
impacts related to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Reform Act”).
The tax benefit from an uncertain tax position is recognized only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on
examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements
from such positions are then measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement.
Interest and/or penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recognized in income tax expense.
Revenue Recognition— Effective February 4, 2018, we adopted Accounting Standards Codification 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers ("ASC 606"). Under ASC 606, revenue is recognized when performance obligations under the terms of the contracts with our
customers are satisfied. See Note 7 for additional discussion related to revenue recognition.
Leases— Effective February 3, 2019, we adopted ASC 842, Leases ("ASC 842"). The adoption of ASC 842 resulted in a significant
increase in our assets and liabilities given our considerable number of operating leases. See Note 17 for additional discussion related to
leases.
Advertising—Advertising costs are expensed as incurred or, in the case of media production costs, when the advertisement first appears.
New Store Costs—Promotion and other costs associated with the opening of new stores are expensed as incurred.
Store Closures and Relocations—Costs associated with store closures or relocations are charged to expense when the liability is incurred.
Share-Based Compensation—In recognizing share-based compensation, we follow the provisions of the authoritative guidance regarding
share-based awards. This guidance establishes fair value as the measurement objective in accounting for stock awards and requires the
application of a fair value based measurement method in accounting for compensation cost, which is recognized over the requisite service
period.
During the first quarter of fiscal 2017, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-09, Compensation-Stock
Compensation. ASU 2016-09 simplified several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including income tax
consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows. The recognition of
excess tax benefits and deficiencies related to the vesting of stock-based awards in the statement of earnings and presentation of excess tax
benefits on the statement of cash flows were adopted prospectively, with no adjustments made to prior periods. In addition, upon adoption,
we did not change our policy on accounting for forfeitures, which is to estimate the number of awards expected to be forfeited and adjusting
the estimate as needed. Overall, the adoption of ASU 2016-09 did not have a material impact on our financial statements.
We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock options and stock appreciation rights on the date of grant.
The fair value of deferred stock units, performance units, and restricted stock is determined based on the number of shares granted and the
quoted closing price of our common stock on the date of grant. Awards settled in cash are classified as liabilities and the fair value of
awards settled in cash will be remeasured at each reporting period until the awards are settled.
The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service period.
Compensation expense for performance-based awards is recorded based on the amount of the award ultimately expected to vest and the
level and likelihood of the performance condition to be met. For grants with a service condition
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only that are subject to graded vesting, we recognize expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award.
Share-based compensation expense, including cash settled awards, recognized for fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017 was $8.6 million, $17.7
million and $24.1 million, respectively. Total income tax benefit recognized in net (loss) earnings for share-based compensation
arrangements was $2.2 million, $4.4 million and $9.1 million for fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. See Note 15 for additional
disclosures regarding share-based compensation.
Foreign Currency Translation—Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect
at each balance sheet date. Equity is translated at applicable historical exchange rates. Income, expense and cash flow items are translated at
average exchange rates during the year. Resulting translation adjustments are reported as a separate component of comprehensive (loss)
income.
Comprehensive (Loss) Income—Comprehensive (loss) income includes all changes in equity during the periods presented that result from
transactions and other economic events other than transactions with shareholders. We present comprehensive (loss) income in a separate
statement in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
(Loss) earnings per share— Basic (loss) earnings per common share is computed by dividing net (loss) earnings by the weighted-average
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted (loss) earnings per common share is calculated using the treasury stock method. See
Note 5 for disclosures regarding (loss) earnings per share.
Treasury stock— Treasury stock purchases are accounted for under the cost method whereby the entire cost of the acquired stock is
recorded as treasury stock. Gains and losses on the subsequent reissuance of shares are credited or charged to capital in excess of par value
using the average-cost method. Upon retirement of treasury stock, the amounts in excess of par value are charged entirely to accumulated
deficit.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements—We have considered all new accounting pronouncements and have concluded that the following
new pronouncements may have a material impact on our results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows.
In August 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU 2018-15, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Internal Use
Software: Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service Contract. ASU
2018-15 aligns the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a cloud computing arrangement that is a service contract
with the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software. ASU 2018-15 is effective
for public companies for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early
adoption of ASU 2018-15 is permitted. We will adopt ASU 2018-15 in the first quarter of fiscal 2020 and do not expect the adoption to
have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On August 16, 2019, we completed the sale of MWUK Limited, our UK corporate apparel operations conducted under the Dimensions,
Alexandra, and Yaffy brand names to Project Dart Bidco Limited, pursuant to a Share Purchase Agreement entered into on August 16,
2019. In addition, we also completed the sale of Twin Hill Acquisition Company, Inc. (“Twin Hill”), our U.S. corporate apparel operation,
to TH Holdco Inc., pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement entered into on August 16, 2019. The aggregate consideration for all of the
outstanding equity of MWUK Limited and Twin Hill (collectively, the “corporate apparel business”) was approximately $ 62 million,
subject to certain working capital adjustments. After consideration of working capital adjustments and other related items, we received
$49.3 million in cash during the third quarter of 2019 and approximately $6.0 million will be received in the first quarter of fiscal 2020.
During the fourth quarter of 2019, we recorded an additional working capital adjustment totaling $0.6 million, which was paid in the first
quarter of 2020. Prior to its sale, the corporate apparel business was its own reportable segment.
We determined that the sale of the corporate apparel business represents a strategic shift that will have a major effect on our results of
operations and, as a result, have reported the disposal as discontinued operations. We have presented the results of the corporate apparel
business including the loss on the sale of the corporate apparel business within loss from discontinued operations, net in the consolidated
statement of (loss) earnings for all periods presented. Certain costs previously allocated to the corporate apparel business for segment
reporting purposes do not qualify for classification within discontinued operations and have been reallocated to continuing operations. In
addition, the goodwill impairment charge of $24.0 million recorded during the third quarter of 2018 and related to the corporate apparel
business has been reclassified to discontinued operations.
Also, U.S. GAAP requires cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment balances to be released into earnings once the sale or
liquidation of the net assets of a foreign entity occurs. As we sold the operating entities associated with the corporate apparel business
during the third quarter of 2019, we determined the cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment balance totaling $26.9 million
should be released to earnings and classified within loss from discontinued operations.
The related assets and liabilities of the corporate apparel business are presented as current and non-current assets and liabilities of
discontinued operations in the consolidated balance sheets as of February 2, 2019. The following table provides details of the carrying
amounts of major classes of assets and liabilities related to discontinued operations as of February 2, 2019 (in thousands):
February 2,
2019
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Other assets
Total assets

$

$

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

$

$
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22,760
38,387
106,340
3,889
171,376
14,856
10,215
196,447

24,204
15,821
40,025
5,477
45,502
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The following table provides details of the amounts reflected in (loss) earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax in the consolidated
statements of (loss) earnings for fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017 (in thousands):

Net sales
Cost of sales
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Goodwill impairment charge
Interest expense, net
Loss on sale of corporate apparel business
Loss on release of cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations before taxes
Income tax (benefit) expense
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax

Fiscal Year
2018
$
235,391
168,532
56,491
23,991
3
—
—
(13,626)
1,730
$
(15,356)

2019
117,444
85,042
30,049
—
—
83,513
26,885
(108,045)
(402)
(107,643)

$

$

$

2017
251,325
183,987
54,018
—
—
—
13,320
3,634
9,686

$

The cash flows related to discontinued operations have not been segregated, and are included in the consolidated statements of cash flows.
The following table provides selected information on cash flows related to discontinued operations for fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017 (in
thousands):
Fiscal Year
2018

2019

Depreciation and amortization
Capital expenditures
Significant non-cash operating and investing items:
Goodwill impairment charge
Loss on divestiture of business
Loss on release of cumulative foreign currency
translation adjustment
Receivable related to sale of corporate apparel
business

$

3,102
2,691

$

$

2017

6,501
3,744

$

6,197
3,663

—
83,513

23,991
—

—
—

26,885

—

—

6,048

$

—

$

—

3. DIVESTITURE OF MW CLEANERS
On February 28, 2018, we entered into a definitive agreement to divest our MW Cleaners business for approximately $18.0 million, subject
to certain adjustments, and the transaction closed on March 3, 2018. During fiscal 2018, we received cash proceeds of $17.8 million and
recorded a total loss on the divestiture totaling $3.8 million, which is included within SG&A in the consolidated statement of (loss)
earnings. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2017, based on an indicator of the fair value of the business, we recorded a goodwill
impairment charge of $1.5 million for MW Cleaners.
We determined that the sale of the MW Cleaners business did not represent a strategic shift and will not have a major effect on our
consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows. Accordingly, we have not presented the sale as a discontinued operation
in the consolidated financial statements.

61

Table of Contents

TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4. TERMINATION OF TUXEDO RENTAL LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH MACY’S
During the first quarter of fiscal 2017, we reached an agreement with Macy's to wind down operations under the tuxedo rental license
agreement established between Macy's and The Men's Wearhouse in 2015. During fiscal 2017, we completed the winding down of our
operations related to our tuxedo shops within Macy's and all tuxedo shops within Macy's closed in the second quarter of 2017.
As a result of the agreement, during the first quarter of fiscal 2017, we incurred $17.2 million of termination-related costs, of which $14.6
million were cash charges. These costs included $12.3 million related to contract termination, $1.4 million of rental product write-offs,
$1.2 million of asset impairment charges and $2.3 million of other costs. Of the $17.2 million in termination-related costs, $15.8 million is
recorded in SG&A and $1.4 million is included in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of (loss) earnings. At February 3, 2018, all
termination-related costs had been paid.
5. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per common share are computed using the actual net (loss) earnings and the actual weighted-average
common shares outstanding rather than the rounded numbers presented within our consolidated statement of (loss) earnings and the
accompanying notes. As a result, it may not be possible to recalculate (loss) earnings per common share in our consolidated statement of
(loss) earnings and the accompanying notes. The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per common
share (in thousands, except per share amounts):
Fiscal Year
2019

Numerator
Net earnings from continuing operations
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net (loss) earnings
Denominator
Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding
Dilutive effect of share-based awards
Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding
Net earnings from continuing operations per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Net (loss) earnings from discontinued operations per common
share:
Basic
Diluted
Net (loss) earnings per common share:
Basic
Diluted

$
$

25,367
(107,643)
(82,276)

2018

$
$

49,774
155
49,929

98,596
(15,356)
83,240

2017

$
$

49,856
869
50,725

87,017
9,686
96,703
49,094
374
49,468

$
$

0.51
0.51

$
$

1.98
1.94

$
$

1.77
1.76

$
$

(2.16)
(2.16)

$
$

(0.31)
(0.30)

$
$

0.20
0.20

$
$

(1.65)
(1.65)

$
$

1.67
1.64

$
$

1.97
1.95

For fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, 3.9 million, 0.8 million, and 1.8 million anti-dilutive shares of common stock were excluded from the
calculation of diluted (loss) earnings per common share, respectively.
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6. DEBT
In 2014, The Men's Wearhouse entered into a term loan credit agreement that provided for a senior secured term loan in the aggregate
principal amount of $1.1 billion (the "Original Term Loan") and a $500.0 million asset-based revolving credit agreement (the "ABL
Facility", and together with the Original Term Loan, the "Credit Facilities") with certain of our U.S. subsidiaries and Moores the Suit
People, one of our Canadian subsidiaries, as co-borrowers. Proceeds from the Original Term Loan were reduced by an $11.0 million
original issue discount ("OID"), which was presented as a reduction of the outstanding balance on the Original Term Loan on the balance
sheet and amortized to interest expense over the contractual life of the Original Term Loan. In addition, in 2014, The Men's Wearhouse
issued $600.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022 (the "Senior Notes").
In October 2017, The Men’s Wearhouse amended the ABL Facility in part to increase the principal amount available to $550.0 million and
extend the maturity date to October 2022. In April 2018, The Men’s Wearhouse refinanced its Original Term Loan, and in October 2018,
amended its term loan to reduce the interest rate margin. See Credit Facilities section below for additional information.
The Credit Facilities and the Senior Notes contain customary non-financial and financial covenants, including fixed charge coverage ratios,
total leverage ratios and secured leverage ratios. Should our total leverage ratio and secured leverage ratio exceed certain thresholds
specified in the agreements, we would be subject to certain additional restrictions, including limitations on our ability to make significant
acquisitions and incur additional indebtedness. As of February 1, 2020 our total leverage is below the maximum specified in the
agreements, however, our secured leverage ratio is above the maximum level. As a result, we are now subject to additional restrictions,
primarily related to the size of any incremental term loan facilities being limited to a maximum of $250.0 million. In addition, as a result of
the refinancing of the Term Loan and amending of our ABL Facility, our ability to pay dividends on our common stock has increased from
a maximum of $10.0 million per quarter to a maximum of $15.0 million per quarter. See Note 13 for additional information on the
suspension of our dividend in 2019.
Credit Facilities
In April 2018, we refinanced our Original Term Loan. Immediately prior to the refinancing, the Original Term Loan consisted of $593.4
million in aggregate principal amount with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 3.50% (with a floor of 1.0%) and $400.0 million in aggregate
principal amount with a fixed rate of 5.0% per annum. Upon entering into the refinancing, we made a prepayment of $93.4 million on the
Original Term Loan using cash on hand.
As a result, we refinanced $900.0 million in aggregate principal amount of term loans then outstanding with a new Term Loan totaling
$900.0 million (the “New Term Loan”). Additionally, we may continue to request additional term loans or incremental equivalent debt
borrowings, all of which are uncommitted, in an aggregate amount up to the greater of (1) $250.0 million and (2) an aggregate principal
amount such that, on a pro forma basis (giving effect to such borrowings), our senior secured leverage ratio will not exceed 2.5 to 1.0. As
noted above, we are currently limited to a maximum of $250.0 million for such incremental borrowings.
The New Term Loan will amortize in an annual amount equal to 1.0% of the principal amount of the New Term Loan, payable quarterly
commencing on May 1, 2018. Proceeds from the New Term Loan were reduced by a $4.5 million OID, which was presented as a reduction
of the outstanding balance on the New Term Loan on the balance sheet and was to be amortized to interest expense over the contractual life
of the New Term Loan. The New Term Loan extends the maturity date of the Original Term Loan from June 18, 2021 until April 9, 2025,
subject to a springing maturity provision that would accelerate the maturity of the New Term Loan to April 1, 2022 if any of the Company’s
obligations under its Senior Notes remain outstanding on April 1, 2022.
The New Term Loan bears interest at a rate per annum equal to an applicable margin plus, at the Company’s option, either LIBOR (with a
floor of 1.0%) or the base rate (with a floor of2.0%). In October 2018, we amended the New Term Loan resulting in a reduction in the
interest rate margin of 25 basis points. As a result of the amendment, the margins for borrowings under the New Term Loan are 3.25% for
LIBOR and 2.25% for the base rate and the OID was eliminated. In
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connection with the October 2018 amendment of the New Term Loan, we incurred deferred financing costs of $1.1 million, which will be
amortized over the life of the New Term Loan using the interest method. The maturity date for the New Term Loan remains April 9, 2025,
and all other material provisions of the New Term Loan remain unchanged.
The interest rate on the New Term Loan is based on 1-month LIBOR, which was 1.66% at February 1, 2020, plus the applicable margin of
3.25%, resulting in a total interest rate of4.91%. We have two interest rate swap agreements where the variable rates due under the New
Term Loan have been exchanged for a fixed rate. At February 1, 2020, the total notional amount under these interest rate swaps is $ 705.0
million. See Note 19 for additional information on our interest rate swaps.
As a result of our interest rate swaps,80% of the variable interest rate under the New Term Loan has been converted to a fixed rate and, as
of February 1, 2020, the New Term Loan had a weighted average interest rate of 5.63%.
In October 2017, we amended our ABL Facility, which now provides for a senior secured revolving credit facility of $550.0 million, with
possible future increases to $650.0 million under an expansion feature that matures in October 2022, and is guaranteed, jointly and
severally, by Tailored Brands, Inc. and certain of our U.S. subsidiaries. The ABL Facility has several borrowing and interest rate options
including the following indices: (i) adjusted LIBOR, (ii) Canadian Dollar Offered Rate (“CDOR”) rate, (iii) Canadian prime rate or (iv) an
alternate base rate (equal to the greater of the prime rate, the New York Federal Reserve Bank (“NYFRB”) rate plus 0.5% or adjusted
LIBOR for a one-month interest period plus 1.0%). Advances under the ABL Facility bear interest at a rate per annum using the applicable
indices plus a varying interest rate margin of up to 1.75%. The ABL Facility also provides for fees applicable to amounts available to be
drawn under outstanding letters of credit which range from 1.25% to 1.75%, and a fee on unused commitments of 0.25%. As of February 1,
2020, $50.0 million in borrowings were outstanding under the ABL Facility at a weighted average interest rate of approximately3.2%.
During fiscal 2019, the maximum borrowing outstanding under the ABL Facility was $100.0 million.
We utilize letters of credit primarily as collateral for workers compensation claims. At February 1, 2020, letters of credit totaling
approximately $26.6 million were issued and outstanding. Borrowings available under the ABL Facility as of February 1, 2020 were
$400.5 million.
The obligations under the Credit Facilities are secured on a senior basis by a first priority lien on substantially all of the assets of the
Company, and certain of its U.S. subsidiaries and, in the case of the ABL Facility, Moores The Suit People. The Credit Facilities and the
related guarantees and security interests granted thereunder are senior secured obligations of, and will rank equally with all present and
future senior indebtedness of the Company, the co-borrowers and the respective guarantors.
Senior Notes
The Senior Notes are guaranteed, jointly and severally, on an unsecured basis by Tailored Brands, Inc. and certain of our U.S. subsidiaries.
The Senior Notes and the related guarantees are senior unsecured obligations of the Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. and the guarantors,
respectively, and will rank equally with all of The Men’s Wearhouse Inc.’s and each guarantor’s present and future senior indebtedness.
The Senior Notes will mature in July 2022. Interest on the Senior Notes is payable on January 1 and July 1 of each year.
We may redeem some or all of the Senior Notes at any time on or after July 1, 2017 at the redemption prices set forth in the indenture
governing the Senior Notes. As of February 1, 2020, the redemption price is 101.75% of the face value and steps down to 100% of the face
value on July 1, 2020. Upon the occurrence of certain specific changes of control, we may be required to offer to purchase the Senior Notes
at 101% of their aggregate principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the date of purchase.
During fiscal 2019, we repurchased and retired $54.8 million in face value of Senior Notes through open market repurchases. As a result,
we recorded a net loss on extinguishment totaling $0.1 million, consisting of the elimination of unamortized deferred financing costs
totaling $0.5 million partially offset by a $0.4 million gain upon repurchase, which is included as a separate line in the consolidated
statement of (loss) earnings.
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Long-Term Debt
The following table provides details on our long-term debt as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019 (in thousands):
February 1,
2020

Term Loan
Senior Notes
ABL Facility
Less: Deferred financing costs related to the Term Loan and Senior Notes
Total long-term debt, net
Current portion of long-term debt
Total long-term debt, net of current portion

$

$

881,630
173,816
50,000
(2,048)
1,103,398
(9,000)
1,094,398

February 2,
2019

$

$

891,000
228,607
48,500
(3,246)
1,164,861
(11,619)
1,153,242

The following table provides principal payments due on long-term debt in the next five fiscal years and the remaining years thereafter (in
thousands):
Fiscal Year

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter
Total long-term debt
Deferred financing costs
Total long-term debt, net

$

$
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7. REVENUE RECOGNITION
Adoption of ASC 606
Effective February 4, 2018, we adopted ASC 606 to all contracts using the modified retrospective approach. We recognized the cumulative
effect of initially applying ASC 606 as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. The adoption had no impact to our
previously reported results of operations or cash flows.
The following table depicts the cumulative effect of the changes made to our February 3, 2018 balance sheet for the adoption of ASC 606
(in thousands):
Reported

Assets:
Accounts receivable, net
Other current assets
Current assets - discontinued operations
Liabilities:
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Current liabilities - discontinued operations
Deferred taxes, net and other liabilities
Non-current liabilities - discontinued operations
Equity:
Accumulated deficit

$

Adjusted

Balance at

Impact of

Balance at

February 3,
2018

Adoption of
ASC 606

February 3,
2018

36,288
77,228
182,862

$

246,946
62,188
160,163
4,028
$

(479,166)

(303)
2,753
(17,837)

$

52,673
(20,295)
(12,555)
614
$

(35,824)

35,985
79,981
165,025
299,619
41,893
147,608
4,642

$

(514,990)

The adoption of ASC 606 primarily impacted the timing of revenue recognition related to our customer loyalty programs, gift cards and ecommerce sales, as discussed in more detail below. In addition, for our corporate apparel business, which has been reclassified to
discontinued operations, certain deferred revenue balances along with related inventory amounts were eliminated as part of the cumulative
adjustment to opening retained earnings. Also, for estimated sales returns, we now recognize allowances for estimated sales returns on a
gross basis rather than a net basis on the consolidated balance sheets.
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Revenues
The following table sets forth supplemental products and services sales information for the Company (in thousands):
Fiscal Year
2018

2019

Net sales:
Men's tailored clothing product
Men's non-tailored clothing product
Women's clothing product
Other (1)
Total retail clothing product
Rental services
Alteration services
Retail dry cleaning services (2)
Total alteration and other services
Total net sales
(1)
(2)

$ 1,305,913
971,509
68,354
12,616
2,358,392
383,521
139,348
—
139,348
$ 2,881,261

$

$

1,385,320
988,973
68,518
11,936
2,454,747
399,146
148,067
2,551
150,618
3,004,511

2017

$

$

1,351,881
1,008,663
70,630
8,643
2,439,817
428,355
150,005
34,844
184,849
3,053,021

Other consists of franchise and licensing revenues and gift card breakage. Franchise revenues are generally recognized at a point in time
while licensing revenues consist primarily of minimum guaranteed royalty amounts recognized over an elapsed time period.
On March 3, 2018, we completed the divestiture of our MW Cleaners business. See Note 3 for additional information.

Additional net sales information is as follows (in thousands):

Net sales:
Men's Wearhouse(1)
Jos. A. Bank
K&G
Moores
MW Cleaners(2)
Total net sales

2019

Fiscal Year
2018

$ 1,655,924
706,040
318,363
200,934
—
$ 2,881,261

$ 1,741,983
722,887
319,476
217,614
2,551
$ 3,004,511

2017

$

$

1,742,668
735,149
323,994
216,366
34,844
3,053,021

(1)

Consists of Men’s Wearhouse, Men’s Wearhouse and Tux, tuxedo shops within Macy's (all 170 of which were closed during 2017) and
Joseph Abboud.

(2)

On March 3, 2018, we completed the divestiture of our MW Cleaners business. See Note 3 for additional information.
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The table below presents information related to geographic areas in which we operate, with net sales classified based primarily on the
geographic area where our customer is located (in thousands):
Fiscal Year
2018

2019

Net sales:
U.S.
Canada
Total net sales

$
$

2,680,327
200,934
2,881,261

$
$

2,786,897
217,614
3,004,511

2017

$
$

2,836,655
216,366
3,053,021

For retail clothing product revenue, we transfer control and recognize revenue at a point in time, upon sale or shipment of the merchandise,
net of actual sales returns and an accrual for estimated sales returns. For rental and alteration services, we transfer control and recognize
revenue at a point in time, upon receipt of the completed service by the customer. Revenue is measured as the amount of consideration we
expect to receive in exchange for transferring goods or providing services. Sales, use and value added taxes we collect from our customers
and are remitted to governmental agencies are excluded from revenue.
Loyalty Programs
We maintain a customer loyalty program for our Men’s Wearhouse, Men’s Wearhouse and Tux, Jos. A. Bank and Moores brands in which
customers receive points for purchases. Points are generally equivalent to dollars spent on a one-to-one basis, excluding any sales tax
dollars, and, historically, did not expire. During the fourth quarter of 2018, we finalized our decision to implement an expiration policy for
loyalty program points beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2019, which was completed. Upon reaching 500 points, customers are
issued a $50 rewards certificate which they may redeem for purchases at our stores or online. Generally, reward certificates earned must be
redeemed no later than six months from the date of issuance. We believe our loyalty programs represents a customer option that is a
material right and, accordingly, is a performance obligation in the contract with our customer. Therefore, we record our obligation for
future point redemptions using a deferred revenue model.
When loyalty program members earn points, we recognize a portion of the transaction as revenue for merchandise product sales or services
and defer a portion of the transaction representing the value of the related points. The value of the points is recorded in deferred revenue on
our consolidated balance sheet and recognized into revenue when the points are converted into a rewards certificate and the certificate is
used.
We account for points earned and certificates issued that will not be redeemed by loyalty members, which we refer to as breakage. We
review our breakage estimates at least annually based upon the latest available information regarding redemption and expiration patterns.
During the fourth quarter of 2018, we redeemed certain loyalty members’ cumulative outstanding points into reward certificates prior to
them reaching 500 total points, and these certificates expired on February 2, 2019. In addition, we finalized our decision to implement an
expiration policy for loyalty program points beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2019, which was completed. As a result of these
changes in the loyalty programs, in fiscal 2018, we recorded a decrease to our deferred revenue liability related to outstanding loyalty
program points of $17.6 million, $14.3 million net of income taxes, or $0.28 earnings per diluted share.
Our estimate of the expected usage of points and certificates requires significant management judgment. Current and future changes to our
assumptions or to loyalty program rules may result in material changes to the deferred revenue balance as well as recognized revenues from
the loyalty programs.
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Gift Card Breakage
Proceeds from the sale of gift cards are recorded as a liability and are recognized as net sales from products and services when the cards are
redeemed. Our gift cards do not have expiration dates. In addition, we recognize revenue for gift cards for which the likelihood of
redemption is deemed to be remote and for which there is no legal obligation to remit the value of such unredeemed gift cards to any
relevant jurisdictions (commonly referred to as gift card breakage) under the redemption recognition method. This method records gift card
breakage as revenue on a proportional basis over the redemption period based on our historical gift card breakage rate. We review our gift
card breakage estimate based on our historical redemption patterns. Pre-tax breakage income of $3.5 and $3.1 million was recognized
during fiscal 2019 and 2018, respectively. In prior years, we recognized income from breakage of gift cards as a reduction of SG&A when
the likelihood of redemption of the gift card was remote. Pre-tax breakage income of $3.2 million was recognized during fiscal 2017.
Sales Returns
Revenue from merchandise product sales is reported net of sales returns, which includes an estimate of future returns based on historical
return rates, with a corresponding reduction to cost of sales. Our refund liability for sales returns was $5.8 million and $6.4 million at
February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019, respectively, which is included in accrued and other current liabilities and represents the expected
value of the refund that will be due to our customers. We also have a corresponding asset included in other current assets that represents
the right to recover products from customers associated with sales returns of $3.0 million and $3.2 million at February 1, 2020 and
February 2, 2019, respectively.
Contract Liabilities
The following table summarizes the opening and closing balances of our contract liabilities (in thousands):
Balance at
February 2, 2019

Contract liabilities

$

121,796

Increase
(Decrease)

$

Balance at
February 3, 2018
As Adjusted

Contract liabilities

$

139,809

Balance at
February 1, 2020

(261)

$

Increase
(Decrease)

$

(18,013)

121,535

Balance at
February 2, 2019

$

121,796

Contract liabilities include cash payments received from customers in advance of our performance, including amounts which are
refundable. These liabilities primarily consist of customer deposits related to rental product or custom clothing transactions since we
typically receive payment from our customers prior to our performance and deferred revenue related to our loyalty programs and
unredeemed gift cards. These amounts are primarily included as “Customer deposits, prepayments and refunds payable,” “Loyalty program
liabilities” and “Unredeemed gift cards,” respectively, within the accrued expenses and other current liabilities line item on our consolidated
balance sheets. See Note 11 for additional information on our accrued expenses and other current liabilities.
The amount of revenue recognized for fiscal 2019 and 2018 that was included in the opening contract liability balance was $81.7 million
and $100.0 million, respectively. This revenue primarily consists of recognition of deposits for completed transactions as well as redeemed
certificates related to our loyalty program and gift card redemptions. Fiscal 2018 also includes the impact of changes related to our loyalty
programs of $17.6 million.
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8. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
Changes in the net carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019 are as follows (in thousands):
Total

Balance at February 3, 2018
Goodwill of divested business (see Note 3)
Translation adjustment
Balance at February 2, 2019
Translation adjustment
Balance at February 1, 2020

$

94,305
(13,588)
(1,226)
79,491
(220)
79,271

$
$

As of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019, accumulated goodwill impairment totaled $780.0 million.
Intangible Assets
The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of our identifiable intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):
February 1,
2020

Amortizable intangible assets:
Carrying amount:
Trademarks, tradenames and franchise agreements
Favorable leases
Total carrying amount
Accumulated amortization:
Trademarks, tradenames and franchise agreements
Favorable leases
Total accumulated amortization
Total amortizable intangible assets, net
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trademarks and tradename
Total intangible assets, net

$

13,506
—
13,506

February 2,
2019

$

(9,863)
—
(9,863)
3,643
113,200
$ 116,843

13,506
11,844
25,350
(9,677)
(5,162)
(14,839)
10,511

$

143,200
153,711

The elimination of favorable leases is due to the adoption of ASC 842, effective February 3, 2019. See Note 17 for additional information.
The decrease in trademarks, tradenames and franchise agreements and the elimination of customer relationships is due to the sale of our
corporate apparel business. See Note 2 for additional information. In addition, the decrease in indefinite-lived trademarks and tradenames
reflects the reclassification of the Joseph Abboud tradename totaling $30.0 million as an asset held for sale in the consolidated balance
sheets due to the sale of the Joseph Abboud trademarks which closed on March 4, 2020. See Note 23 for additional information.
Amortization expense associated with intangible assets subject to amortization totaled approximately $0.2 million, $1.6 million and $1.8
million for fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Amortization expense associated with intangible assets subject to amortization at
February 1, 2020 is estimated to be approximately $0.2 million each year for fiscal years 2020-2024.
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9. INCOME TAXES
The following table provides details on our earnings before income taxes (in thousands):
Fiscal Year
2018

2019

United States
Foreign
Total

$ (17,678)
44,690
$ 27,012

2017

$

73,775
42,527
$ 116,302

$

90,629
31,005
$ 121,634

The provision for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):
2019

Current tax expense:
Federal
State
Foreign
Deferred tax (benefit) expense:
Federal and state
Foreign
Total

$

4,231
2,196
4,726

(8,919)
(589)
$ 1,645

Fiscal Year
2018

$

7,295
4,853
13,764

(2,472)
(5,734)
$ 17,706

2017

$

$

25,578
5,055
10,049
(21,607)
15,542
34,617

In December 2017, the U.S. enacted the Tax Reform Act. The changes included in the Tax Reform Act are broad and complex, which
impacted our consolidated financial statements in fiscal 2017 and fiscal 2018 including, but not limited to: reducing the U.S. federal
corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% effective January 1, 2018 and requiring a one-time transition tax on certain unrepatriated earnings of
non-U.S. subsidiaries that may electively be paid over eight years. The transition tax resulted in certain previously untaxed non-U.S.
earnings being included in the U.S. federal and state 2017 taxable income.
The Tax Reform Act also enacted new tax laws which include, but are not limited to: a Base Erosion Anti-abuse Tax (“BEAT”), which is a
new minimum tax, generally eliminating U.S. federal income taxes on dividends from foreign subsidiaries, a provision designed to tax
currently global intangible low taxed income (“GILTI”), a provision that may limit the amount of currently deductible interest expense, the
repeal of the domestic production incentives, limitations on the deductibility of certain executive compensation, and limitations on the
utilization of foreign tax credits to reduce the U.S. income tax liability.
Shortly after the Tax Reform Act was enacted, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118, Income
Tax Accounting Implications of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“SAB 118”) which provides guidance on accounting for the Tax Reform Act’s
impact. SAB 118 provided a measurement period, which in no case should extend beyond one year from the Tax Reform Act enactment
date, during which a company acting in good faith may complete the accounting for the impacts of the Tax Reform Act. In accordance with
SAB 118, a company must reflect the income tax effects of the Tax Reform Act in the reporting period in which the accounting is complete.
To the extent that a company’s accounting for certain income tax effects of the Tax Reform Act is incomplete, a company can determine a
reasonable estimate for those effects and record a provisional estimate in the financial statements in the first reporting period in which a
reasonable estimate can be determined.
As a result, in fiscal 2017, we recorded a provisional discrete net tax benefit of $0.3 million related to the Tax Reform Act, which consisted
of a benefit from deferred tax remeasurement offset by additional provision for transition tax. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2018, we
completed our accounting for the effects of the Tax Reform Act and recorded a discrete net tax benefit of $ 6.1 million, including
finalization of deferred tax remeasurement, transition tax and a rate change for foreign exchange remeasurement on previously taxed
earnings and profits.
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In addition, during 2018, we finalized our policy and have elected to use the period cost method for GILTI provisions and therefore have
not recorded deferred taxes for basis differences expected to reverse in future periods.
A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to our effective tax rate is as follows:
2019

Federal statutory rate
State income taxes, net of federal benefit
Uncertain tax positions
Foreign tax rate differential
Amortizable tax goodwill
Foreign income taxed in the U.S.
Return to provision
Valuation allowance
Tax credits
Impact of change to permanent reinvestment of foreign earnings
Impact of Tax Reform Act
Inventory donations
Stock compensation
Impact of ASC 810
Meals and entertainment
Other

Fiscal Year
2018

21.0 %
(1.5)
0.1
(21.7)
—
15.8
(6.5)
34.5
(45.6)
2.1
—
(7.1)
9.2
3.7
2.4
(0.3)
6.1 %

21.0 %
4.1
(0.5)
4.3
(4.3)
1.8
(4.2)
1.0
(6.1)
4.6
(5.2)
(1.7)
—
0.6
0.5
(0.7)
15.2 %

2017

33.7 %
1.4
(15.1)
(1.9)
(1.2)
—
(2.5)
7.9
(9.9)
14.2
(0.2)
(1.3)
2.3
—
0.4
0.7
28.5 %

In fiscal 2019, our effective income tax rate was6.1% and is lower than the U.S. statutory rate primarily due to benefits from foreign tax
credits offset by a net increased valuation allowance. In fiscal 2018, our effective income tax rate from continuing operations was 15.2%
and is lower than the U.S. statutory rate primarily due to the impact of the Tax Reform Act and usage of tax credits, which are partially
offset by state income tax changes related to the Tax Reform Act and foreign earnings with higher tax rates in these jurisdictions.
In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that a portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of
deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. As of February 1, 2020, it is
more likely than not that we will realize the benefits of the deferred tax assets, except as discussed below.
During 2019, valuation allowances recorded against deferred tax assets increased by $9.4 million. The increase in valuation allowances
related to charitable contributions and various state tax attributes of $14.7 million and was primarily driven by uncertainties regarding the
future realization of tax attributes recorded in multiple jurisdictions. The increase in valuation allowances was partially offset by a decrease
of $5.3 million related to tax credits due to sustained profitability which allows us to release the valuation allowance on these tax attributes.
At February 1, 2020, we had tax attributes including federal net operating loss (“NOL”), state NOL and U.S. capital loss carryforwards of
approximately $6.2 million, $236.7 million and $21.1 million, respectively. The federal NOL can be can be carried forward indefinitely,
the state NOL carryforwards will expire between fiscal 2020 and 2039, and the capital loss can be carried forward 5 years. At
February 1, 2020, we also had $15.8 million of foreign tax credit carryforwards, which will expire between fiscal 2021 and fiscal 2029.
At February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019, we had net non-current deferred tax liabilities of $22.0 million and $43.0 million, respectively.
We have a valuation allowance of $30.1 million against certain state deferred tax assets and foreign tax credits for which we have
concluded it is more likely than not that we will not recognize the asset.
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Total deferred tax assets and liabilities and the related temporary differences as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019 were as follows
(in thousands):
February 1,
2020

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued rent and other expenses
Accrued compensation
Accrued inventory reserves
Interest rate swap
Operating lease liabilities
Other
Tax attributes
Total deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance
Net deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment
Capitalized inventory costs
Intangibles
Investment in foreign subsidiaries
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Other
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax liabilities

$

February 2,
2019

20,439 $
10,408
8,159
8,649
218,257
98
56,955
322,965
(30,123)
292,842

27,098
17,667
5,654
1,558
9,249
6,617
32,030
99,873
(20,686)
79,187

(40,656)
(47,287)
(12,050)
(12,538)
(40,558)
(41,176)
(11,239)
(12,321)
(206,023)
—
(4,356)
(8,863)
(314,882)
(122,185)
$ (22,040) $ (42,998)

In accordance with the guidance regarding accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, we classify uncertain tax positions as non-current
income tax liabilities unless expected to be paid within one year and recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in
income tax expense. As of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019, the total amount of accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions was
$0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively.
The following table summarizes the activity related to our uncertain tax positions (in thousands):

Gross uncertain tax positions, beginning balance
Increase in tax positions for prior years
Decrease in tax positions for prior years
Increase in tax positions due to business combinations
Increase in tax positions for current year
Decrease in tax positions for current year
Settlements
Lapse from statute of limitations
Gross uncertain tax positions, ending balance

February 1,
2020

February 2,
2019

$

$

$

619
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
619

$

1,154
—
(535)
—
—
—
—
—
619

Of the $0.6 million in uncertain tax positions as of February 1, 2020, $0.6 million, if recognized, would reduce our income tax expense and
effective tax rate. We do not expect material changes in the total amount of uncertain tax positions within the next 12 months as the
outcome of tax matters is uncertain and unforeseen results can occur.
We are subject to routine compliance examinations on tax matters by various tax jurisdictions in the ordinary course of business. Tax return
years which are open to examinations range from fiscal 2014 through fiscal 2018. Our tax jurisdictions primarily consist of the United
States, Canada, the United Kingdom, and Hong Kong as well as their states, territories, provinces and other political subdivisions. We are
currently under IRS examination for fiscal year 2016. A number of U.S. state examinations are ongoing.
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10. INVENTORIES
The following table provides details on our inventories as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019 (in thousands):
February 1,
2020

Finished goods
Raw materials and merchandise components
Total inventories

$

554,706
141,951
696,657

$

February 2,
2019

$

581,953
142,133
724,086

$

11. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED TAXES
AND OTHER LIABILITIES
The following table provides details on our other current assets as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019 (in thousands):
February 1,
2020

Prepaid expenses
Tax receivable
Other
Total other current assets

$

February 2,
2019

28,111
12,010
9,009
49,130

$

$

53,455
—
13,368
66,823

$

The decrease in prepaid expenses is primarily due to the impact on prepaid rent resulting from the adoption of ASC 842, effective February
3, 2019. See Note 17 for additional information. The following table provides details on our accrued expenses and other current liabilities
as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019 (in thousands):
February 1,
2020

Accrued salary, bonus, sabbatical, vacation and other benefits
Loyalty program liabilities
Customer deposits, prepayments and refunds payable
Unredeemed gift cards
Sales, value added, payroll, property and other taxes payable
Accrued workers compensation and medical costs
Accrued dividends
Accrued interest
Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps
Accrued royalties
Other
Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities

$

$

58,264
43,692
39,527
30,024
18,208
20,954
380
5,552
7,701
2,543
19,265
246,110

February 2,
2019

$

78,297
44,434
38,436
32,178
20,930
23,893
10,480
1,828
1,625
1,286
15,311
268,698

$

The following table provides details on our deferred taxes, net and other liabilities as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019 (in
thousands):
February 1,
2020

Deferred and other income tax liabilities, net
Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps
Deferred rent and landlord incentives
Unfavorable lease liabilities
Other
Total deferred taxes, net and other liabilities

$

$

36,373
26,885
—
—
4,555
67,813

February 2,
2019

$

48,199
7,605
57,351
1,797
4,593
$ 119,545

The elimination of deferred rent and landlord incentives and unfavorable lease liabilities is due to the adoption of ASC 842, effective
February 3, 2019. See Note 17 for additional information.
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12. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
The following table summarizes the components of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income during fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017 (in
thousands and net of tax):
Foreign
Currency
Translation

BALANCE— January 28, 2017
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassifications
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss
Tax effect
Net other comprehensive income (loss)
BALANCE— February 3, 2018
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss
Tax effect
Net other comprehensive loss
BALANCE— February 2, 2019
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss
Release of cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment to loss from
discontinued operations (see Note 2)
Tax effect
Net other comprehensive income (loss)
BALANCE— February 1, 2020

$ (40,205)
29,089
—
—
29,089
(11,116)
(18,704)
—
—
(18,704)
(29,820)
(4,847)
—

$

26,885
—
22,038
(7,782)

Cash Flow
Hedges

$

$

(82)
(3,359)
4,682
(1,096)
227
145
(8,393)
2,178
1,756
(4,459)
(4,314)
(30,578)
1,250
—
7,274
(22,054)
(26,368)

Pension
Plan

$

$

204
(20)
—
5
(15)
189
(45)

Total

$

11
(34)
155
(701)
—

(40,083)
25,710
4,682
(1,091)
29,301
(10,782)
(27,142)
2,178
1,767
(23,197)
(33,979)
(36,126)
1,250

—
182
(519)
(364)

26,885
7,456
(535)
(34,514)

$

Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive (loss) income in fiscal 2019 related to changes in the fair value of our interest rate swaps,
which is recorded in interest expense in the consolidated statement of (loss) earnings and the impact of the cancellation of cash flow hedges
related to inventory purchases for our divested corporate apparel business. Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive (loss) income in
fiscal 2018 and 2017 related to changes in the fair value of our interest rate swaps which is recorded in interest expense in the consolidated
statement of (loss) earnings and changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges related to inventory purchases, which is recorded within cost
of sales in the consolidated statement of (loss) earnings.
13. DIVIDENDS
On September 11, 2019, after extensive review, the Company announced an update to the Company’s capital allocation policy. Effective in
the fourth quarter of fiscal, 2019, our quarterly cash dividend was suspended and the cash was redeployed for accelerated debt reduction
and opportunistic share repurchases.
Cash dividends paid were approximately $28.1 million, $36.9 million and $35.8 million during fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
In fiscal 2019, a dividend of $0.18 per share was declared in each of the first two quarters, for an annual dividend of $0.36 per share. In
fiscal 2018 and 2017, a dividend of $0.18 per share was declared in each quarter, for an annual dividend of $0.72 per share, respectively.
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14. SHARE REPURCHASES
In March 2013, our Board approved a share repurchase program for our common stock. During the third quarter of 2019, we repurchased
2,336,852 shares through open market repurchases at a cost of $10.0 million for an average price of $4.28 per share. At February 1, 2020,
the remaining balance available under the Board’s authorization was $38.0 million. No shares were repurchased during fiscal 2018 or fiscal
2017.
15. EQUITY AND SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS
Preferred Stock
Our Board is authorized to issue up to 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock and to determine the dividend rights and terms, redemption rights
and terms, liquidation preferences, conversion rights, voting rights and sinking fund provisions of those shares without any further vote or
act by Company shareholders. There was no issued preferred stock as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019, respectively.
Stock Plans
In June 2016, our shareholders approved the Tailored Brands, Inc. 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “2016 LTIP”), which will be used
for equity grants after June 2016. As amended in 2017, the 2016 LTIP provides for an aggregate of up to 9,300,000 shares, subject to
adjustment, of our common stock (or the fair market value thereof) with respect to which stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock, deferred stock units and performance based awards may be granted to full-time key employees and to non-employee directors of the
Company.
In addition, we continue to administer the 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “2004 LTIP”) and the 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(“1996 Plan”) as a result of awards which remain outstanding pursuant to such plans. Awards are no longer available for grant under the
2004 LTIP and 1996 Plan.
Stock options and stock appreciation rights granted under these plans vest annually in varying increments over a period fromone to three
years and must be exercised within ten years of the date of grant. Grants of deferred stock units, performance units or restricted stock
generally vest over a period from one to three years.
As of February 1, 2020, 3,676,509 shares were available for grant under the 2016 LTIP and 8,680,893 shares of common stock were
reserved for future issuance under the existing plans.
Non-Vested Deferred Stock Units, Performance Units and Restricted Stock
The following table summarizes the activity of time-based and performance-based (collectively, “DSUs”) awards during fiscal 2019:
Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair Value
TimePerformanceBased
Based

Units
TimeBased

Non-Vested at February 2, 2019
Granted
Vested(1)
Forfeited
Non-Vested at February 1, 2020

PerformanceBased

939,086
164,662
(487,020)
(145,219)
471,509

336,906
—
(73,064)
(98,030)
165,812

(1) Includes 173,360 shares relinquished for tax payments related to vested DSUs in fiscal 2019.
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$

22.60
5.53
21.61
22.11
17.81

$

$

18.59
—
23.27
17.25
17.33
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The following table summarizes additional information about DSUs:
Fiscal Year
2018

2019

DSUs issued
Weighted average grant date fair value

$

164,662
5.53

941,328
26.81

$

2017

1,015,236
11.47

$

We have determined the performance targets for the 165,812 outstanding performance units are not probable of achievement and are not
expected to vest. Performance units that are unvested at the end of the performance period will lapse and be forfeited.
The fair value of shares vested was $12.2 million, $17.2 million and $11.6 million in fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. As of
February 1, 2020, the intrinsic value of non-vested DSUs was $2.5 million. As of February 1, 2020, we have unrecognized compensation
expense related to non-vested DSUs of approximately $4.8 million which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of
0.9 years.
Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights (“SARs”)
The following table summarizes the activity of stock options during fiscal 2019:

Number of
Shares

Outstanding at February 2, 2019
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Expired
Outstanding at February 1, 2020
Vested and expected to vest at February 1, 2020
Exercisable at February 1, 2020

1,252,072
3,258,797
—
(415,327)
(142,955)
3,952,587
3,814,766
830,093

WeightedAverage
Exercise Price

$

23.64
7.42
—
10.44
26.98
11.53
11.68
24.59

$
$
$

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Term

8.5 Years
8.4 Years
5.8 Years

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value
(in thousands)

$
$
$

—
—
—

During the first quarter of 2019, we granted SARs, which vest ratably over a period of three years, and will be settled in stock. Each vested
SAR entitles the holder to the right of the difference between the value of our common stock on the date of exercise and the common stock
price on the date of grant. We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of SARs on the date of grant.
The following table summarizes the activity of SARs during fiscal 2019:

Number of
Shares

Outstanding at February 2, 2019
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Expired
Outstanding at February 1, 2020
Vested and expected to vest at February 1, 2020
Exercisable at February 1, 2020

—
414,476
—
—
—
414,476
414,476
—
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WeightedAverage
Exercise Price

$

$
$
$

—
7.62
—
—
—
7.62
7.62
—

Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term

9.2 Years $
9.2 Years $
— Years $

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value
(in thousands)

—
—
—
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The weighted-average grant date fair value of stock options granted during fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017 was $2.98, $10.29 and $3.86,
respectively. The weighted-average grant date fair value of the SARs granted during fiscal 2019 was $ 3.01 per share. The fair value of
stock options and SARs is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following weightedaverage assumptions:

2019

Risk-free interest rate
Expected lives
Dividend yield(1)
Expected volatility
(1)

2.35%
5.0 years
4.09%
62.65%

Fiscal Year
2018

2.70%
5.0 years
4.21%
56.55%

2017

1.75%
5.0 years
4.69%
55.12%

Awards granted after announcement of the suspension of our dividend assume a dividend yield of0%.

The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The expected lives represents the period of
time the stock options and SARs are expected to be outstanding after their grant date. The dividend yield is based on the average of the
annual dividend divided by the market price of our common stock at the time of declaration. The expected volatility is based on historical
volatility of our common stock. There were no stock options or SARs exercised during fiscal 2019. The total intrinsic value of stock
options exercised during fiscal 2018 and 2017 was $1.7 million and less than $0.1 million, respectively. As of February 1, 2020, we have
unrecognized compensation expense related to non-vested stock options and SARs of approximately $8.3 million which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.5 years.
Cash Settled Awards
We have granted stock-based awards to certain employees, which vest over a period of three years, and will be settled in cash ("cash settled
awards"). The fair value of the cash settled awards at each reporting period is based on the price of our common stock. The fair value of
the cash settled awards will be remeasured at each reporting period until the awards are settled. At February 1, 2020, the liability associated
with the cash settled awards was $1.7 million and was recorded in accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheets. At February 2, 2019, the liability associated with the cash settled awards was $ 3.8 million with $2.4 million recorded in accrued
expenses and other current liabilities and $1.4 million recorded in other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
The following table summarizes the activity of cash settled awards during fiscal 2019 (in thousands):
Cash Settled Awards

Non-Vested at February 2, 2019
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Non-Vested at February 1, 2020

$

$

5,072
4,480
(2,426)
(906)
6,220

As of February 1, 2020, we have unrecognized compensation expense related to non-vested cash settled awards of approximately $2.2
million which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.6 years.
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16. RETIREMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLANS
We have 401(k) savings plans which allow eligible employees to save for retirement on a tax deferred basis. Employer matching
contributions under the 401(k) savings plans are made based on a formula set by the Board from time to time. During fiscal 2019, 2018 and
2017, our matching contributions for the plans charged to operations were $3.1 million, $2.6 million and $2.7 million, respectively.
We also maintain a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan and a post-retirement benefit plan which cover certain union and nonunion
employees at Jos. A. Bank. The plans provide for eligible employees to receive benefits based principally on years of service. Amounts
related to the defined benefit pension and post-retirement benefit plans were immaterial to our consolidated financial statements.
In addition, we have an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) which allows employees to authorize after-tax payroll deductions to be
used for the purchase of shares of our common stock at 85% of the lesser of the fair market value of our common stock on the first day of
the offering period or the fair market value of our common stock on the last day of the offering period. In 2018, our shareholders approved
amendments to the ESPP including increasing the number of shares available for purchase by 1,000,000 shares, resulting in a total of
3,137,500 shares available for purchase under the ESPP. We make no contributions to this plan but pay all brokerage, service and other
costs incurred. A participant may not purchase more than 125 shares during any calendar quarter.
During fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, employees purchased 344,433 shares, 103,081 shares and 167,673 shares, respectively, under the ESPP,
the weighted-average fair value of which was $4.53, $16.76 and $10.74 per share, respectively. We recognized approximately $ 0.6 million
of share-based compensation expense related to the ESPP for each of fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. As of February 1, 2020,
783,442 shares were reserved for future issuance under the ESPP.
17. LEASES
Adoption of ASC 842
Effective February 3, 2019, we adopted ASC 842 using the modified retrospective approach. As part of the adoption, we made the
following elections:
●
●
●
●
●

We elected the package of practical expedients under which we did not reassess our prior conclusions about lease identification,
lease classification and initial direct costs.
We elected to not separate lease and non-lease components for all leases.
We elected to exempt leases with an initial term of twelve months or less from balance sheet recognition.
We elected the land easement practical expedient under which we did not reassess whether existing land easements not accounted
for as leases under previous guidance are or contain leases under ASC 842.
We did not elect the hindsight practical expedient for all leases.

In addition, in July 2018, the FASB approved an optional transition method that removed the requirement to restate prior period financial
statements upon adoption of the standard with a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings in the period of adoption and we elected
to apply this transition method. As a result, the comparative period information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the
accounting standards in effect for the period presented. The adoption of ASC 842 had no impact to our previously reported results of
operations or cash flows.
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The following table depicts the cumulative effect of the changes made to our February 2, 2019 balance sheet for the adoption of ASC 842
effective on February 3, 2019 (in thousands):
Reported

Assets:
Other current assets
Current assets - discontinued operations

$

Adjusted

Balance at

Impact of

Balance at

February 2,
2019

Adoption of
ASC 842

February 3,
2019

66,823
171,376

$

(20,557)
(197)

$

46,266
171,179

Operating lease right-of-use assets
Intangible assets, net
Non-current assets - discontinued operations

—
153,711
25,071

884,231
(6,682)
12,039

884,231
147,029
37,110

Current Liabilities:
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Current liabilities - discontinued operations

268,698
—
40,025

(151)
181,379
2,346

268,547
181,379
42,371

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Operating lease liabilities
Deferred taxes, net and other liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities - discontinued operations

—
119,545
5,477

735,482
(59,316)
9,496

735,482
60,229
14,973

Equity:
Accumulated deficit

$

(468,048)

$

(402)

$

(468,450)

The adoption of ASC 842 primarily resulted in the recognition of operating lease liabilities totaling $869.2 million, based upon the present
value of the remaining minimum rental payments using discount rates as of the adoption date, with $183.6 million within current liabilities
and $685.7 million in noncurrent liabilities. In addition, we recorded corresponding right-of-use assets totaling $868.8 million based upon
the operating lease liabilities adjusted for favorable lease intangible assets, previously included within intangible assets, net and deferred
rent and unfavorable lease liabilities, previously included within deferred taxes, net and other liabilities. In addition, we recorded a $0.4
million cumulative effect of initially applying ASC 842 as an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated deficit.
Lease Information
We lease store locations, office and warehouse facilities, vehicles and equipment under various non-cancelable operating leases expiring in
various years through 2032.
Substantially all of our stores are leased, generally for five to ten year initial terms. Certain store leases includeone or more options to
renew, with renewal terms that range from one to ten years. Management uses its judgment to determine if a renewal option is reasonably
certain of being exercised including consideration of the significant investment related to the identification, opening and operation of these
store locations. In addition, under our real estate leases, we pay costs such as real estate taxes and common area maintenance and certain of
our lease agreements include rental payments based on a percentage of retail sales over contractual levels. These costs are generally
considered variable lease payments, and are recognized when deemed probable of payment. Our lease agreements do not contain any
material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants. In addition, we sublease certain real estate to third parties. Amounts
related to subleases were immaterial to the consolidated financial statements.
Operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date. Operating lease liabilities
represent the present value of lease payments. Operating lease right-of-use assets represent our
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right to use an underlying asset and are based upon the operating lease liabilities adjusted for prepayments or accrued lease payments, lease
incentives and impairment of operating lease right-of-use assets. To determine the present value of the lease payments, we estimated our
incremental borrowing rate based on our current credit rating as well as comparisons to comparable borrowing rates of similarly-rated
companies.
The components of lease cost are as follows (in thousands):
February 1, 2020

Operating lease cost
Variable lease cost
Total lease cost

$

248,975
73,929
322,904

$

Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Total lease costs for stores and our distribution network
are included in cost of sales while other total lease costs are included in SG&A expenses.
Supplemental balance sheet information related to operating leases consists of the following (in thousands):
February 1, 2020

Operating lease right-of-use assets

$

880,291

Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Noncurrent portion operating lease liabilities
Total operating lease liabilities

$

186,304
726,327
912,631

$

Lease term and discount rate for operating leases were as follows:
February 1, 2020

Weighted average remaining lease term
Weighted average discount rate

5.6 years
5.22%

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information consists of the following (in thousands):
February 1, 2020

Cash paid for operating leases
Operating lease assets obtained in exchange for operating lease liabilities

$
$

254,605
1,074,670

At February 1, 2020, we have approximately $912.6 million of non-cancelable operating lease commitments and no finance leases. The
following table summarizes the undiscounted annual future minimum lease payments, as of February 1, 2020, for each of the next five
years and in the aggregate (in thousands):
Operating Leases

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5
Thereafter
Total lease payments
Less: Interest
Present value of lease liabilities

$

$
$
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228,872
237,532
196,783
149,501
106,826
134,146
1,053,660
(141,029)
912,631
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Disclosures Related to Periods Prior to Adoption of ASC 842
As previously disclosed in our 2018 Annual Report on Form 10-K and under the accounting standards then in effect, our operating leases
generally contain rent escalation clauses, rent holidays, contingent rent provisions and occasionally leasehold incentives. Rent expense for
operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, which is generally five to ten years based on the initial lease
term plus first renewal option periods that are reasonably assured. Rent expense for stores is included in cost of sales as a part of occupancy
cost and other rent is included in SG&A. The lease terms commence when we take possession with the right to control use of the leased
premises, which normally includes a construction period and, for stores, is approximately 60 days prior to the date rent payments begin.
Deferred rent that results from recognition of rent expense on a straight-line basis is included in other liabilities. Landlord incentives
received for reimbursement of leasehold improvements is also included in other liabilities and amortized as a reduction to rent expense over
the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are generally based on percentages of sales and are recognized as store rent expense as they accrue.
Rent expense for operating leases for fiscal 2018 and 2017 was $247.9 million and $251.3 million respectively, and includes contingent
rentals of $1.8 million and $2.1 million, respectively. Minimum future rental payments under non-cancelable leases as of February 2, 2019
for each of the next five years and in the aggregate are as follows (in thousands):
Fiscal Year

Operating Leases

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter
Total lease payments

$

$

236,539
206,652
173,294
131,800
86,127
140,256
974,668

18. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The authoritative guidance for fair value measurements establishes a three-tier fair value
hierarchy, categorizing the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy can be described as follows: Level 1- observable inputs such as
quoted prices in active markets; Level 2 - inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or
indirectly; and Level 3- unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its own
assumptions. The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value.

82

Table of Contents

TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date
Using
Quoted Prices
in Active
Significant
Markets for
Other
Significant
Identical
Observable
Unobservable
Instruments
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

(in thousands)

February 1, 2020—
Assets:
Derivative financial instruments
Liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments
February 2, 2019—
Assets:
Derivative financial instruments
Liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments

Total

$

—

$

7

$

—

$

7

$

—

$

34,586

$

—

$ 34,586

$

—

$

2,965

$

—

$

2,965

$

—

$

9,307

$

—

$

9,307

At February 1, 2020, derivative financial instruments are comprised of interest rate swap agreements to minimize our exposure to interest
rate changes on our outstanding indebtedness and foreign currency forward exchange contracts primarily entered into related to our direct
sourcing programs, specifically related to the Canadian dollar.
These derivative financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value based upon observable market inputs,
primarily pricing models based on current market rates. Derivative financial instruments in an asset position are included within other
current assets or other assets in the consolidated balance sheets. Derivative financial instruments in a liability position are included within
accrued expenses and other current liabilities or noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. See Note 19 for further
information regarding our derivative instruments.
Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis
Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, operating lease right-of-use assets, goodwill and identifiable intangibles, are periodically
evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. If the asset carrying amount exceeds its fair value, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds the fair value of the asset.
As discussed in Note 1, during fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, we incurred $3.4 million, $1.0 million and $3.5 million, respectively, of asset
impairment charges, which is included within SG&A expenses in our consolidated statement of (loss) earnings, primarily related to
underperforming stores. The estimated fair value of the impaired long-lived assets was $1.4 million, $0.6 million and $0.7 million,
respectively. In addition, during fiscal 2019, we recognized a writeoff of $2.9 million of rental product related to the closure of a Canadian
distribution center, which is included within cost of sales in our consolidated statement of (loss) earnings. We estimated the fair value of
these long-lived assets based on an income approach using projected future cash flows discounted using a weighted-average cost of capital
analysis that reflects current market conditions. The fair values of long-lived assets are based on our own judgments about the assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing the asset and on observable market data, when available. We classify these measurements as
Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.
During fiscal 2017, we recorded a goodwill impairment charge related to MW Cleaners totaling $1.5 million. We estimated the fair value of
the MW Cleaners business based on an estimate provided to us by a market participant, which we classified as Level 2 within the fair value
hierarchy.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Our financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities and longterm debt. Management estimates that, as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019, the carrying value of cash, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities approximated their fair value due to the highly liquid or short-term
nature of these instruments. We believe that the borrowings under our ABL Facility approximate their fair value because interest rates are
adjusted on a short-term basis.
The fair values of our Term Loan were valued based upon observable market data provided by a third party for similar types of debt, which
we classify as a Level 2 input within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of our Senior Notes is based on quoted prices in active
markets, which we classify as Level 1 input within the fair value hierarchy. The table below shows the fair value and carrying value of our
Term Loan and Senior Notes (in thousands):
February 1, 2020
Carrying
Estimated
Amount(1)
Fair Value

Term Loan and Senior Notes, including current portion

$

1,053,398

$

896,851

February 2, 2019
Carrying
Estimated
Amount(1)
Fair Value

$

1,116,361

$

1,120,296

(1) The carrying value of the Term Loan and Senior Notes, including current portion is net of deferred financing costs of $2.0 million and
$3.2 million as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019, respectively.
19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Effective February 3, 2019, we adopted ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging: Targeted Improvements to Accounting for Hedging
Activities. The adoption of ASU 2017-12 did not have an impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
In April 2017, we entered into an interest rate swap contract on an initial notional amount of $260.0 million that matures in June 2021 with
periodic interest settlements. At February 1, 2020, the notional amount totaled $320.0 million. Under this interest rate swap contract, we
receive a floating rate based on 1-month LIBOR and pay a fixed rate of 5.31% (including the applicable margin of 3.25%) on the
outstanding notional amount.
In June 2018, we entered into an interest rate swap contract on an initial notional amount of $320.0 million that matures in April 2025 with
periodic interest settlements. At February 1, 2020, the notional amount totaled $385.0 million. Under this interest rate swap contract, we
receive a floating rate based on 1-month LIBOR and pay a fixed rate of 6.18% (including the applicable margin of 3.25%) on the
outstanding notional amount.
We have designated each interest rate swap as a cash flow hedge of the variability of interest payments under the Term Loan due to changes
in the LIBOR benchmark rate and the fair value of the swaps is reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive (loss)
income. For both swaps, changes in fair value are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income into earnings in the
same period that the hedged item affects earnings. Over the next 12 months, $7.7 million of the amounts related to the interest rate swaps is
expected to be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income into earnings within interest expense.
Historically, we also utilized derivative instruments to hedge our foreign exchange risk, specifically related to the British pound and Euro.
As a result of the sale of our corporate apparel business, these instruments were cancelled during the third quarter of 2019 and any amounts
included in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income were reclassified to expense and included within loss from discontinued
operations.
In addition, we are exposed to market risk associated with foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations as a result of our direct sourcing
programs, specifically related to the Canadian dollar. As a result, from time to time, we may enter into derivative instruments to hedge this
foreign exchange risk. We have not elected to apply hedge accounting to these derivative instruments. At February 1, 2020, the notional
amount of these instruments totaled $5.3 million. Amounts related to these transactions were immaterial to our consolidated financial
statements.
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The following table provides details on our derivative instruments recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as of February 1, 2020 and
February 2, 2019 (in thousands):
February 1, 2020
Balance
Sheet Location

Interest rate contracts
Interest rate contracts
Foreign exchange contracts
Total assets

Other current assets
Other assets
Other current assets

$

Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities
Deferred taxes, net and
other liabilities
Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities

Interest rate contracts
Interest rate contracts
Foreign exchange contracts
Total liabilities

February 2, 2019
Balance
Sheet Location

Estimated
Fair Value

$

—
—
7
7

$

7,701
26,885

$

—
34,586

Other current assets
Other assets
Other current assets

Estimated
Fair Value

$

Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities
Deferred taxes, net and
other liabilities
Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities

$

1,610
1,355
—
2,965

$

1,625
7,605
77
9,307

$

The following table provides details on our derivative instruments recorded in the consolidated statements of (loss) earnings and
comprehensive (loss) income during fiscal 2019 and 2018 (in thousands):

Amount of Gain/(Loss) Recognized in
Other Comprehensive Loss, net of tax
For the Year Ended
February 1, 2020
February 2, 2019

Derivatives in Cash Flow
Hedging Relationships:
Interest rate contracts

$

(22,931) $

Location of Gain/(Loss)
Reclassified from
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss into
Earnings

(8,296) Interest expense

Amount of Gain/(Loss) Reclassified from
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
into Earnings
For the Year Ended
February 1, 2020
February 2, 2019

$

1,692

$

818

20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Proceedings
On August 2, 2017, two American Airlines employees, Thor Zurbriggen and Dena Catan, filed a putative class action lawsuit against our
then-existing subsidiary Twin Hill in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois (Case No. 1:17-cv-05648). The
complaint alleged claims for strict liability, negligence, and medical monitoring based on allegedly defective uniforms Twin Hill supplied to
American Airlines for its employees. On September 28, 2017, the plaintiffs filed an amended complaint adding nine additional named
plaintiffs, adding American Airlines, Inc. as a defendant, and adding claims for civil battery and intentional infliction of emotional distress.
Plaintiffs filed a Seconded Amended Complaint on October 4, 2018 on behalf of 39 named plaintiffs, adding PSA Airlines, Inc. and Envoy
Air Inc. as defendants, adding new factual allegations and adding a new claim of fraud against American. The Second Amended
Complaint included plaintiffs from the Onody (Case No. 1:18-cv-02303) and Joy (Case No. 1:18-cv-05808) matters we reported in prior
filings. As a result, on October 16, 2018, the judge dismissed the separate Onody and Joy matters. We have timely answered the Second
Amended Complaint and the matter will proceed in due course. We believe that any lawsuit filed on the basis of the safety of the Twin Hill
uniforms supplied to American Airlines is without merit, and we intend to contest this action vigorously. Twin Hill has substantial and
convincing evidence of the uniforms' safety and fitness for their intended purpose, and we believe that there is no evidence linking any of
the plaintiffs' alleged injuries to our uniforms. The range of loss, if any, is not reasonably estimable at this time. We do not currently
believe, however, that it will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

85

Table of Contents

TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
On September 27, 2017, Heather Poole and numerous other American Airlines employees filed a lawsuit against our then-existing
subsidiary Twin Hill in the Superior Court for the State of California for the County of Alameda (Case No. RG17876798). The complaint
attempts to allege claims for strict liability and negligence based on allegedly defective uniforms Twin Hill supplied to American Airlines
for its employees. On December 11, 2017, the Company filed a demurrer to Plaintiff’s complaint. On February 20, 2018, the Court granted
our demurrer and dismissed the plaintiffs’ Complaint. Plaintiffs filed an amended complaint on April 10, 2018 and again on April 27, 2018,
which added allegations regarding Plaintiffs’ alleged injuries and named Tailored Brands as a defendant. This case was consolidated for
pretrial purposes only with other complaints containing identical allegations, including the Agnello, Hughes,
Mackonochie and Wagoner cases that were disclosed in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2,
2019. We believe that any lawsuit filed on the basis of the safety of the Twin Hill uniforms supplied to American Airlines is without
merit, and we intend to contest this action vigorously. Twin Hill has substantial and convincing evidence of the uniforms' safety and fitness
for their intended purpose, and we believe that there is no evidence linking any of the plaintiffs' alleged injuries to our uniforms. The range
of loss, if any, is not reasonably estimable at this time. We do not currently believe, however, that it will have a material adverse effect on
our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
On August 16, 2019, we completed the sale of Twin Hill to a third-party pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement, but remain responsible
for the above referenced American Airlines matters.
On December 23, 2019, Himelda Mendez on behalf of herself and all others similarly situated, filed a lawsuit against Jos. A. Bank
Clothiers, Inc. in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York (Case No. 1:19-cv-11756-KPF). The complaint
alleges the Company’s failure to offer Braille gift cards violates the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”), the New York State Human
Rights Law (“NYSHRL”), and the New York City Human Rights Law (“NYCHRL”). We believe the lawsuit is without merit, and we
intend to contest this action vigorously. The range of loss, if any, is not reasonably estimable at this time. We do not currently believe,
however, that it will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
On December 23, 2019, Himelda Mendez on behalf of herself and all others similarly situated, filed a lawsuit against The Men’s
Wearhouse, Inc. in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York (Case No. 1:19-cv-11765-RA). The complaint
alleges the Company’s failure to offer Braille gift cards violates the ADA, the NYSHRL, and the NYCHRL. We believe the lawsuit is
without merit, and we intend to contest this action vigorously. The range of loss, if any, is not reasonably estimable at this time. We do not
currently believe, however, that it will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
On December 26, 2019, Himelda Mendez on behalf of herself and all others similarly situated, filed a lawsuit against JA Apparel Corp. dba
Joseph Abboud in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York (Case No. 1:19-cv-11807-VEC). The complaint
alleges the Company’s failure to offer Braille gift cards violates the ADA, the NYSHRL, and the NYCHRL. We believe the lawsuit is
without merit, and we intend to contest this action vigorously. The range of loss, if any, is not reasonably estimable at this time. We do not
currently believe, however, that it will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
In addition, we are involved in various routine legal proceedings, including ongoing litigation, incidental to the conduct of our business.
Management does not believe that any of these matters will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.
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21. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION
As discussed in Note 6, The Men’s Wearhouse (the “Issuer”) issued $600.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.00% Senior Notes.
The Senior Notes are guaranteed jointly and severally, on an unsecured basis by Tailored Brands, Inc. (the “Parent”) and certain of our U.S.
subsidiaries (the “Guarantors”). Our foreign subsidiaries (collectively, the “Non-Guarantors”) are not guarantors of the Senior Notes. Each
of the Guarantors is 100% owned and all guarantees are joint and several. In addition, the guarantees are full and unconditional except for
certain automatic release provisions related to the Guarantors.
These automatic release provisions are considered customary and include the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets
or all of the capital stock of any subsidiary guarantor, the release or discharge of a guarantor’s guarantee of the obligations under the Term
Loan other than a release or discharge through payment thereon, the designation in accordance with the Indenture of a guarantor as an
unrestricted subsidiary or the satisfaction of the requirements for defeasance or discharge of the Senior Notes as provided for in the
Indenture.
The tables in the following pages present the condensed consolidating financial information for the Parent, the Issuer, the Guarantors and
the Non-Guarantors, together with eliminations, as of and for the periods indicated. The consolidating financial information may not
necessarily be indicative of the financial positions, results of operations or cash flows had the Parent, the Issuer, Guarantors and NonGuarantors operated as independent entities.
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Tailored Brands, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
February 1, 2020
(in thousands)
Tailored
Brands, Inc.

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Rental product, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Investments in subsidiaries
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities
Current portion of operating lease
liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net
Operating lease liabilities
Deferred taxes, net and other
liabilities
Shareholders' (deficit) equity
Total liabilities and shareholders'
equity

$

The Men’s
Wearhouse, Inc.

—
—
—
10,379
10,379
—
—
—
—
—
86,771
—
97,150

$

$ 189,526

$

$

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

$

961
28,603
136,228
11,145
176,937
173,271
458,209
81,370
6,160
—
1,180,304
10,269
2,086,520

$

236,592

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

$

1,495
345,683
420,339
56,192
823,709
199,396
368,748
2,370
52,128
116,843
—
8,367
1,571,561

$

68,845

Eliminations

$

$

11,964
49,043
140,090
16,349
217,446
23,145
53,334
9,157
20,983
—
—
3,694
327,759

$

72,290

Consolidated

$

— $
(383,356)
—
(10,000)
(393,356)
—
—
—
—
—
(1,267,075)
(3,600)
(1,664,031) $

14,420
39,973
696,657
84,065
835,115
395,812
880,291
92,897
79,271
116,843
—
18,730
2,418,959

$

(383,356) $

183,897

2,207

148,929

91,349

17,041

(10,000)

249,526

—
—
191,733
—
—

99,195
9,000
493,716
1,094,398
381,150

75,229
—
235,423
—
303,040

11,880
—
101,211
—
42,137

—
—
(393,356)
—
—

186,304
9,000
628,727
1,094,398
726,327

3,723
(98,306)

30,485
86,771

23,022
1,010,076

14,183
170,228

(3,600)
(1,267,075)

67,813
(98,306)

97,150

$

2,086,520
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$

1,571,561

$

327,759

$

(1,664,031) $

2,418,959
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Tailored Brands, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
February 2, 2019
(in thousands)
Tailored
Brands, Inc.

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Other current assets
Current assets - discontinued
operations
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Rental product, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Investments in subsidiaries
Other assets
Non-current assets - discontinued
operations
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Current liabilities - discontinued
operations
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net
Deferred taxes, net and other
liabilities
Non-current liabilities discontinued operations
Shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders'
equity

$

—
—
—
—

The Men’s
Wearhouse, Inc.

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
160,057
—

970
23,954
149,923
30,699

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

—
205,546
194,290
81,809
6,160
—
1,234,005
7,590

1,434
255,091
429,952
37,621

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

41,404
765,502
207,934
3,426
52,128
153,711
—
640

30,267
53,610
144,211
3,773

Eliminations

$

129,972
361,833
22,092
14,535
21,203
—
—
5,059

— $
(297,969)
—
(5,270)

Consolidated

32,671
34,686
724,086
66,823

—
(303,239)
—
—
—
—
(1,394,062)
(4,800)

171,376
1,029,642
424,316
99,770
79,491
153,711
—
8,489

$

—
160,057

$

—
1,729,400

$

1,906
1,185,247

$

23,165
447,887

$

—
(1,702,101) $

25,071
1,820,490

$

142,701

$

201,799

$

67,044

$

91,200

$

(297,969) $

204,775

$

6,697
—

146,683
11,619

105,022
—

29,044
—

(5,270)
—

282,176
11,619

—
149,398
—

—
360,101
1,153,242

7,073
179,139
—

32,952
153,196
—

—
(303,239)
—

40,025
538,595
1,153,242

7,028

56,000

43,495

17,822

(4,800)

119,545

—
3,631

—
160,057

1,574
961,039

3,903
272,966

—
(1,394,062)

5,477
3,631

160,057

$

1,729,400
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$

1,185,247

$

447,887

$

(1,702,101) $

1,820,490
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Tailored Brands, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Earnings (Loss)
(in thousands)
Tailored
Brands, Inc.

Year Ended February 1, 2020
Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross margin
Operating expenses
Operating (loss) income
Other income and expenses, net
Interest (expense) income, net
Loss on extinguishment of debt, net
(Loss) earnings before income taxes
(Benefit) provision for income taxes
(Loss) earnings before equity in net
income of subsidiaries
Equity in (loss) earnings of subsidiaries
Net (loss) earnings from continuing
operations
Net (loss) earnings from discontinued
operations, net of tax
Net (loss) earnings
Comprehensive (loss) income
Year Ended February 2, 2019
Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross margin
Operating expenses
Operating (loss) income
Other income and expenses, net
Interest (expense) income, net
Loss on extinguishment of debt, net
(Loss) earnings before income taxes
(Benefit) provision for income taxes
(Loss) earnings before equity in net
income of subsidiaries
Equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiaries
Net earnings (loss) from continuing
operations
Net earnings (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of tax
Net earnings (loss)
Comprehensive income (loss)

$

The Men’s
Wearhouse, Inc.

— $
—
—
3,071
(3,071)
—
(4,132)
—
(7,203)
(2,847)

$
$

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

1,650,102 $ 1,586,697 $
916,900
1,268,680
733,202
318,017
652,665
527,887
80,537
(209,870)
—
198,981
(70,779)
4,851
(77)
—
9,681
(6,038)
(7,370)
7,516

Eliminations

Consolidated

719,517 $ (1,075,055) $ 2,881,261
602,124
(1,075,055)
1,712,649
117,393
—
1,168,612
86,926
(199,775)
1,070,774
30,467
199,775
97,838
794
(199,775)
—
(689)
—
(70,749)
—
—
(77)
30,572
—
27,012
4,346
—
1,645

(4,356)
(77,920)

17,051
(65,539)

(13,554)
—

26,226
—

—
143,459

25,367
—

(82,276)

(48,488)

(13,554)

26,226

143,459

25,367

(29,432)
(77,920) $
(99,678) $

2,013
(11,541) $
(11,541) $

—
$ (82,276) $
$ (82,811) $

$

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

— $
—
—
4,489
(4,489)
—
(3,950)
—
(8,439)
(1,056)

1,735,743 $ 1,519,548 $
886,137
1,172,665
849,606
346,883
538,469
531,206
311,137
(184,323)
—
55,582
(85,011)
7,949
(30,253)
—
195,873
(120,792)
35,334
(25,295)

(80,224)
(53,998) $
(59,660) $

450,247
336,128
114,119
67,145
46,974
681
2,005
—
49,660
8,723

$

—
143,459
170,879

$
$

(107,643)
(82,276)
(82,811)

(701,027) $ 3,004,511
(701,027)
1,693,903
—
1,310,608
(56,263)
1,085,046
56,263
225,562
(56,263)
—
—
(79,007)
—
(30,253)
—
116,302
—
17,706

(7,383)
90,623

160,539
(69,916)

(95,497)
—

40,937
—

—
(20,707)

98,596
—

83,240

90,623

(95,497)

40,937

(20,707)

98,596

—
83,240
60,043

$
$

—
90,623
83,146

90

$
$

3,208
(92,289) $
(92,323) $

(18,564)
22,373 $
6,687 $

—
(20,707) $
2,490 $

(15,356)
83,240
60,043
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Tailored Brands, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Earnings (Loss)
(in thousands)
Tailored
Brands, Inc.

Year Ended February 3, 2018
Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross margin
Operating expenses
Operating (loss) income
Other income and expenses, net
Interest (expense) income, net
Gain on extinguishment of debt, net
(Loss) earnings before income taxes
(Benefit) provision for income taxes
(Loss) earnings before equity in net
income of subsidiaries
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries
Net earnings from continuing operations
Net earnings from discontinued
operations, net of tax
Net earnings
Comprehensive income

$

The Men’s
Wearhouse, Inc.

— $
—
—
3,453
(3,453)
—
(442)
—
(3,895)
(3,444)
(451)
97,154
96,703

—
$ 96,703
$ 126,004

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

1,737,651 $ 1,596,153 $
897,429
1,213,089
840,222
383,064
648,569
546,290
191,653
(163,226)
—
145,002
(105,009)
6,606
5,445
—
92,089
(11,618)
54,744
(42,247)
37,345
59,809
97,154

$
$

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

—
97,154
100,186

91

30,629
—
30,629
$
$

3,436
34,065
34,050

$
$

Eliminations

Consolidated

543,558 $ (824,341) $ 3,053,021
425,416
(824,341)
1,711,593
118,142
—
1,341,428
73,683
(146,663)
1,125,332
44,459
146,663
216,096
1,661
(146,663)
—
(1,062)
—
(99,907)
—
—
5,445
45,058
—
121,634
25,564
—
34,617
19,494
—
19,494

—
(156,963)
(156,963)

87,017
—
87,017

6,250
25,744
52,028

—
$ (156,963) $
$ (186,264) $

9,686
96,703
126,004
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Tailored Brands, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended February 1, 2020
(in thousands)
Tailored
Brands, Inc.

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from divestiture of business,
net
Proceeds from sales of property and
equipment
Intercompany activities
Net cash (used in) provided by
investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Payments on new term loan
Proceeds from asset-based revolving
credit facility
Payments on asset-based revolving credit
facility
Repurchase and retirement of senior
notes
Intercompany activities
Cash dividends paid
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Tax payments related to vested deferred
stock units
Repurchases of common stock
Net cash (used in) provided by
financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

$

37,726

The Men’s
Wearhouse, Inc.

$

463,543

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

50,116

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

(400,173)

Eliminations

$

(51,571)

Consolidated

$

99,641

—

(28,542)

(50,117)

(9,843)

—

(88,502)

—

—

—

45,034

—

45,034

—
—

311
(359,023)

—
—

—
(40,953)

—
399,976

311
—

—

(387,254)

(50,117)

(5,762)

399,976

(43,157)

—

(9,370)

—

—

—

(9,370)

—

1,333,000

—

—

—

1,333,000

—

(1,331,500)

—

—

—

(1,331,500)

—
—
(28,071)
1,561

(54,425)
(14,003)
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
362,408
—
—

—
(348,405)
—
—

(54,425)
—
(28,071)
1,561

(1,216)
(10,000)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

(1,216)
(10,000)

(37,726)
—

(76,298)
—

—
—

362,408
2,526

(348,405)
—

(100,021)
2,526

—

(9)

(1)

(41,001)

—

(41,011)

—
—

$

970
961

92

$

1,496
1,495

$

52,965
11,964

$

—
—

$

55,431
14,420
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TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Tailored Brands, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended February 2, 2019
(in thousands)
Tailored
Brands, Inc.

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from divestiture of business,
net
Intercompany activities
Net cash (used in) provided by
investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Payments on original term loan
Proceeds from new term loan
Payments on new term loan
Proceeds from asset-based revolving
credit facility
Payments on asset-based revolving credit
facility
Repurchase and retirement of senior
notes
Deferred financing costs
Intercompany activities
Cash dividends paid
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Tax payments related to vested deferred
stock units
Net cash (used in) provided by
financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
$

38,198

The Men’s
Wearhouse, Inc.

$

674,432

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

29,247

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

(382,259)

Eliminations

$

(36,946)

Consolidated

$

322,672

—

(26,731)

(47,686)

(7,869)

—

(82,286)

—
—

—
(321,970)

17,755
—

—
75,135

—
246,835

17,755
—

—

(348,701)

(29,931)

67,266

246,835

(64,531)

—
—
—

(993,420)
895,500
(9,000)

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

(993,420)
895,500
(9,000)

—

655,500

—

—

—

655,500

—

(607,000)

—

—

—

(607,000)

—
—
—
(36,946)
6,649

(199,365)
(6,713)
(112,081)
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
321,970
—
—

—
—
(209,889)
—
—

(199,365)
(6,713)
—
(36,946)
6,649

(7,901)

—

—

—

—

(7,901)

(38,198)
—

(376,579)
—

—
—

321,970
(3,621)

(209,889)
—

(302,696)
(3,621)

—

(50,848)

(684)

3,356

—

(48,176)

—
—

$

51,818
970

93

$

2,180
1,496

$

49,609
52,965

$

—
—

$

103,607
55,431
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TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Tailored Brands, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended February 3, 2018
(in thousands)
Tailored
Brands, Inc.

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures
Acquisition of business, net of cash
Intercompany activities
Proceeds from sale of property and
equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Payments on original term loan
Proceeds from asset-based revolving
credit facility
Payments on asset-based revolving credit
facility
Repurchase and retirement of senior
notes
Deferred financing costs
Intercompany activities
Cash dividends paid
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Tax payments related to vested deferred
stock units
Net cash (used in) provided by
financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

$

35,545

The Men’s
Wearhouse, Inc.

$

520,678

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

61,823

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

(231,517)

Eliminations

$

(35,761)

Consolidated

$

350,768

—
—
—

(25,729)
—
(285,500)

(63,681)
—
—

(5,548)
(457)
(75,135)

—
—
360,635

(94,958)
(457)
—

—
—

3,323
(307,906)

2,157
(61,524)

—
(81,140)

—
360,635

5,480
(89,935)

—

(53,379)

—

—

—

(53,379)

—

276,300

—

—

—

276,300

—

(276,300)

—

—

—

(276,300)

—
—
—
(35,761)
1,903

(145,371)
(2,580)
39,374
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
285,500
—
—

—
—
(324,874)
—
—

(145,371)
(2,580)
—
(35,761)
1,903

(1,687)

—

—

—

—

(1,687)

(35,545)
—

(161,956)
—

—
—

285,500
8,760

(324,874)
—

(236,875)
8,760

—

50,816

299

(18,397)

—

32,718

—
—

$

1,002
51,818

94

$

1,881
2,180

$

68,006
49,609

$

—
—

$

70,889
103,607
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TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
22. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)
Our quarterly results of operations reflect all adjustments, which are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair statement of the
results for the interim periods presented. The consolidated results of operations by quarter for fiscal 2019 and 2018 are presented below (in
thousands, except per share amounts):
May 4,
2019 (2)

Net sales
Gross margin
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net
of tax
Net earnings (loss)
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations
per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations
per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Net earnings (loss) per common share:
Basic
Diluted

$ 724,662
304,875
6,480

$ 736,145
318,875
29,656

662
7,142

4,610
34,266

$

February 1,
2020 (5)

729,481
308,028
27,788

$ 690,973
236,834
(38,557)

(117,378)
(89,590)

4,463
(34,094)

$
$

0.13
0.13

$
$

0.59
0.59

$
$

0.56
0.56

$
$

(0.80)
(0.80)

$
$

0.01
0.01

$
$

0.09
0.09

$
$

(2.36)
(2.35)

$
$

0.09
0.09

$
$

0.14
0.14

$
$

0.68
0.68

$
$

(1.80)
(1.80)

$
$

(0.70)
(0.70)

May 5,
2018 (6)

Net sales
Gross margin
Net earnings from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net
of tax
Net earnings
Net earnings from continuing operations per
common share:
Basic
Diluted
Net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations
per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Net earnings per common share:
Basic
Diluted

Fiscal 2019 Quarters Ended (1)
August 3,
November 2,
2019 (3)
2019 (4)

Fiscal 2018 Quarters Ended (1)
August 4,
November 3,
2018 (7)
2018 (8)

$ 754,843
328,291
12,287

$ 767,914
353,545
47,724

1,622
13,909

1,514
49,238

$

February 2,
2019 (9)

751,741
345,494
34,787

$ 730,013
283,278
3,798

(20,912)
13,875

2,420
6,218

$
$

0.25
0.24

$
$

0.96
0.94

$
$

0.70
0.69

$
$

0.08
0.08

$
$

0.03
0.03

$
$

0.03
0.03

$
$

(0.42)
(0.41)

$
$

0.05
0.05

$
$

0.28
0.27

$
$

0.99
0.97

$
$

0.28
0.27

$
$

0.12
0.12

(1)

Due to the method of calculating weighted-average shares outstanding, the sum of the quarterly per share amounts may not equal net
earnings (loss) per common share for the respective years.

(2)

Includes pre-tax expenses of $4.4 million relating to multi-year cost savings and operational excellence programs. Of the $4.4 million,
$0.2 million is included in cost of sales and $4.2 million is included in SG&A.
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TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(3)

Includes pre-tax expenses of $11.3 million relating to multi-year cost savings and operational excellence programs. Of the $11.3 million,
$2.9 million is included in cost of sales and $8.4 million is included in SG&A.

(4)

Includes pre-tax expenses of $6.2 million relating to multi-year cost savings and operational excellence programs within SG&A. In
addition, within provision for income taxes, includes the net release of $5.9 million of valuation allowances.

(5)

Includes pre-tax expenses of $17.4 million relating to the agreement to sell the Joseph Abboud trademarks and $5.3 million relating to
multi-year cost savings and operational excellence programs. Of the $22.7 million, $13.4 million is included in cost of sales and $9.3
million is included in SG&A.

(6)

Includes pre-tax expenses of $15.5 million with $11.9 million relating to the refinancing of the Term Loan and $3.6 million relating to
the loss upon divestiture of the MW Cleaners business. Of the $15.5 million, $3.6 million is included in SG&A and $11.9 million is
included in loss on extinguishment of debt.

(7)

Includes pre-tax expenses of $12.7 million with $8.1 million relating to the partial redemption of Senior Notes, $4.4 million relating to
the closure of a rental product distribution center and $0.2 million relating to the divestiture of the MW Cleaners business. Of the $12.7
million, $4.0 million is included in cost of sales, $0.6 million is included in SG&A and $8.1 million is included in loss on
extinguishment of debt.

(8)

Includes pre-tax expenses of $16.4 million with $9.4 million relating to the repricing of the Term Loan, $6.4 million relating to CEO
retirement costs and $0.6 million relating to the closure of a rental product distribution center. Of the $16.4 million, less than $0.1
million is included in cost of sales, $7.0 million is included in SG&A, and $9.4 million is included in loss on extinguishment of debt.

(9)

Includes a $17.6 million increase in net sales reflecting the impact of changes related to our loyalty programs. In addition, within
provision for income taxes, includes a discrete net tax benefit of $6.1 million related to the completion of our accounting for the effects
of the Tax Reform Act.
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TAILORED BRANDS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
23. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Sale of Joseph Abboud Trademarks
On March 4, 2020, we closed on our previously announced transaction to sell the Joseph Abboud trademarks to WHP Global (“WHP”) for
$115 million. The Company has also entered into a licensing agreement with WHP for the exclusive rights to sell and rent Joseph Abboud
branded apparel and related merchandise in the U.S. and Canada.
Recent Developments
Beginning in early March 2020, a major global health pandemic related to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) resulted in
a significant decrease in store traffic and comparable sales as well as cancellations of high school proms and other special events,
coinciding with heightened actions taken by governments and citizens to curb the spread of virus. In response, we are taking aggressive and
prudent actions to reduce expenses, and defer discretionary capital expenditures and inventory purchases to preserve our cash. In addition
to these efforts, in an abundance of caution and as a proactive measure, on March 16, 2020, we executed a borrowing of $260.0 million
under our ABL Facility. Furthermore, after assessing the remaining availability under the ABL Facility and determining that additional
borrowings were prudent to maximize cash on hand, on March 19, 2020 and on March 31, 2020, respectively, we borrowed an additional
$25.0 million under the ABL Facility.
On March 17, 2020, we announced the temporary closure of our retail locations in the U.S. and Canada starting March 17, 2020 through
March 28, 2020. On March 19, 2020, we announced the closure of our e-commerce fulfillment centers starting March 20, 2020 through
March 28, 2020. On March 26, 2020, we extended the temporary closing of our retail stores until at least May 4, 2020. In conjunction
with our decision to extend the temporary closure of our stores, we have also furloughed all of our U.S. store employees as well as a
significant portion of employees in our U.S. distribution network and offices, and we implemented the temporary layoff of all Canadian
store employees and a significant portion of Canadian employees in our Canadian distribution network and offices. Furthermore, in light of
our store closures, we have taken certain actions with respect to some or all of our existing leases, including engaging with landlords to
discuss rent reductions and/or rent deferrals, or discontinuing payment.
Effective March 29, 2020, the base salary of our Chief Executive Officer will be reduced by50%. The base salary of all other named
executive officers and other executives directly reporting to our Chief Executive Officer will be reduced by 25%. In addition, the base
salaries of other members of our senior management team will be also be reduced. The Board of Directors has also agreed to a 50%
reduction in its retainer fees. Effective April 5, 2020, all employees with a base salary in excess of $100,000 will have their salaries reduced
by 10%.
On March 31, 2020, we announced that, after instituting enhanced social distancing and sanitation protocols that meet or exceed those
recommended by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”), our e-commerce fulfillment centers were reopened. We will
continue to monitor this ongoing situation, relying on recommendations from the CDC, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) and
government officials to regularly evaluate the renewed operations at our e-commerce fulfillment centers and determine when currently
closed facilities will reopen.
While we cannot reasonably estimate the impact of COVID-19 on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows, we do expect
such impact to be significantly negative. The extent to which COVID-19 impacts our operations will depend on future developments, which
are highly uncertain, including, among others, the duration of the outbreak, new information that may emerge concerning the severity of
COVID-19 and the actions, especially those taken by governmental authorities, to contain the pandemic or treat its impact. As events are
rapidly changing, additional impacts may arise that we are not aware of currently.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s principal executive officer (“CEO”) and principal financial officer
(“CFO”), evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) as of the end of the period covered by this
report. Based on this evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that, as of the end of such period, the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures were effective and that the information that is required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms
and (ii) accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended February 1,
2020 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of our principal
executive and principal financial officers, and overseen by our Board of Directors, and implemented by management and other personnel, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of the end of our most recent fiscal year. In
making this assessment, our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013). Based on such assessment, management concluded that, as of February 1,
2020, our internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.
Deloitte & Touche LLP has audited our internal control over financial reporting as of February 1, 2020; their report is included in Item 9A,
which follows.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Tailored Brands, Inc.
Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Tailored Brands, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of February 1,
2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of February 1, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by COSO.
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended February 1, 2020, of the Company and our report dated April 8, 2020,
expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and included an explanatory paragraph regarding the Company’s adoption
of new accounting standards.
Basis for Opinion
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Houston, Texas
April 8, 2020
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Except as set forth below, the information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held June 26, 2020.
The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that applies to all directors, officers and employees. A copy of such
policy is posted on the Company’s website, www.tailoredbrands.com, under the heading “Investors - Corporate Governance.”
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held June 26, 2020.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held June 26, 2020.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held June 26, 2020.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held June 26, 2020.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial Statements and Schedules
The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are included in Part II, Item 8:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of February 1, 2020 and February 2, 2019
Consolidated Statements of (Loss) Earnings for the years ended February 1, 2020, February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income for the years ended February 1, 2020, February 2, 2019 and February 3,
2018
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ (Deficit) Equity for the years ended February 1, 2020, February 2, 2019 and February 3,
2018
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended February 1, 2020, February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(b) Exhibits
Exhibits filed with this annual report on Form 10-K are incorporated herein by reference as set forth in the Index to Exhibits beginning on
the next page.
ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY
None.
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Exhibit Index
3.1 —Certificate of Formation for Tailored Brands, Inc. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 1, 2016).
3.2 —Amended and Restated Bylaws of Tailored Brands, Inc., as amended (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on January 29, 2018).
3.3 —Statement of Designations of Series A Preferred Stock of Tailored Brands, Inc. (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 7, 2020).
4.1 —Certificate of Formation for Tailored Brands, Inc. (included as Exhibit 3.1).
4.2 —Amended and Restated Bylaws of Tailored Brands, Inc. (included as Exhibit 3.2).
4.3 —Statement of Designations of Series A Preferred Stock of Tailored Brands, Inc. (included as Exhibit 3.3).
4.4 —Description of Common Stock of Tailored Brands, Inc. (filed herewith).
4.5 —Rights Agreement, dated as of March 30, 2020, between Tailored Brands, Inc. and American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company, LLC, as rights agent (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 31, 2020).
4.6 —Indenture, dated as of June 18, 2014, by and among the Company, the MW Guarantors and the Trustee, relating to
the Senior Notes (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Commission on June 20, 2014).
4.7 —Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 18, 2014, by and among the Company, the JOSB Guarantors and the
Trustee, relating to the Senior Notes (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on June 20, 2014).
4.8 —Second Supplemental Indenture relating to the Notes, dated as of January 29, 2016, among The Men’s
Wearhouse, Inc., Tailored Brands, Inc., Tailored Shared Services, LLC and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as trustee (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 1, 2016).
4.9 —Third Supplemental Indenture relating to the Notes, dated as of June 30, 2016, among The Men’s
Wearhouse, Inc., Tailored Brands Purchasing LLC, and Tailored Brands Gift Card Co LLC and the Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 1, 2016).
4.10 —Registration Agreement, dated as of June 18, 2014, by and among the Company, the MW Guarantors and Merrill
Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, relating to the Senior Notes
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on June 20, 2014).
10.1 —Credit Agreement, dated as June 18, 2014, by and among the Company and the other Co-Borrowers, the U.S.
ABL Administrative Agent, the Canadian ABL Administrative Agent and the ABL Lenders (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
June 18, 2014).
10.2 —Amendment No. 1 to ABL Facility, dated as of July 28, 2014, by and among the Company, and the other CoBorrowers, the U.S. ABL Administrative Agent, the Canadian ABL Administrative Agent and the ABL Lenders
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended August 2, 2014).
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10.3 —Amendment No. 2 to ABL Facility (including Annex A), dated as of October 25, 2017, by and among the
Company, and the other Co-Borrowers, the U.S. ABL Administrative Agent, the Canadian ABL Administrative
Agent and the ABL Lenders (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on December 7, 2017).
10.4 —Amendment No. 3 to ABL Facility, dated as of April 30, 2019, by and among the Company, and the other CoBorrowers, the U.S. ABL Administrative Agent, the Canadian ABL Administrative Agent and the ABL Lenders
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the
Commission on June 13, 2019).
10.5 —Term Loan Credit Agreement, dated as of June 18, 2014, by and among the Company, the Term Administrative
Agent and the Term Lenders (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on June 20, 2014).
10.6 —Amendment No. 1 to Term Loan, dated as of June 26, 2014, by and among the Company, the Administrative
Agent and the Term Lenders (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 1, 2014).
10.7 —Amendment No. 2 to Term Loan, dated as of April 9, 2018, by and among The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc., the
Administrative Agent and the Term Lenders (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 9, 2018).
10.8 —Amendment No. 3 to Term Loan, dated as of October 10, 2018, by and among The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc., the
Administrative Agent and the Term Lenders (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 10, 2018).
10.9 —Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 16, 2020, by and among the Company, JA Apparel Corp.,
JAWHP, LLC and WH Buyer LLC (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on January 17, 2020).
*10.10 —1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan (As Amended and Restated Effective April 1, 2008) (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended May 3, 2008) ,
and the forms of stock option agreement, restricted stock award agreement and deferred stock unit award
agreement (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Commission on March 18, 2005).
*10.11 —Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement under The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. 1996 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (as amended and restated effective as of April 1, 2008) (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended May 1, 2010).
*10.12 —2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (As Amended and Restated Effective April 1, 2008) (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on June 27, 2008).
*10.13 —First Amendment to The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on June 17, 2011).
*10.14 —Second Amendment to The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 20, 2012).
*10.15 —Third Amendment to The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 10,
2013).
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*10.16 —Fourth Amendment to The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 2, 2015).
*10.17 —Agreement for Adoption and Assumption of The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. Equity Incentive Plans, between The
Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. and Tailored Brands, Inc., effective as of January 31, 2016 (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 1,
2016).
*10.18 —Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement (each for named executive officers) under The Men’s
Wearhouse, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 9, 2013).
*10.19 —Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement (each for executive officers) under The Men’s
Wearhouse, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 9, 2013).
*10.20 —Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement (for senior executive officers, including named executive
officers) under The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 16, 2014).
*10.21 — Tailored Brands, Inc. 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended by First Amendment thereto (incorporated by
reference from Appendix A to the Company’s proxy statement on Schedule 14A relating to the 2017 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders of the Company filed with the Commission on May 4, 2017 (File No. 1-16097)).
*10.22 — Second Amendment to the Tailored Brands, Inc. 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan, dated June 4, 2019
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the
Commission on June 13, 2019).
*10.23 —Form of Deferred Stock Unit Award Agreement (for employees, including named executive officers) under the
Tailored Brands, Inc. 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.26 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on March 24, 2017).
*10.24 — Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (for employees, including named executive officers) under the
Tailored Brands, Inc. 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.28 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on March 24, 2017).
*10.25 —Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (for directors) under the Tailored Brands, Inc. 2016 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed with the Commission on September 8, 2016).
*10.26 —Form of Deferred Stock Unit Award Agreement (for non-employee directors) under the Tailored Brands, Inc.
2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on June 8, 2017).
*10.27 —Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (for executives, including named executive officers) under the
Tailored Brands, Inc. 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.30 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on March 24, 2017).
*10.28 —Form of May 2017 Performance Unit Award Agreement, for executive officers, under the Tailored Brands, Inc.
2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 17, 2017).
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*10.29 —Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement (April 2018), for executive officers, under the Tailored Brands, Inc.
2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 11, 2018).
*10.30 —Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Award Agreement, for executive officers, under the Tailored Brands, Inc.
2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 18, 2019).
*10.31 —Form of Cash-Based Award Agreement, for executives, including named executive officers, under the Tailored
Brands, Inc. 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on June 13, 2019).
*10.32 —Tailored Brands, Inc. 2016 Cash Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on June 20, 2016).
*10.33 —Amended and Restated Tailored Brands, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference from
Appendix A to the Company’s proxy statement on Schedule 14A relating to the 2018 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders of the Company filed with the Commission on May 10, 2018).
*10.34 —Tailored Brands, Inc. Vice President Change in Control Severance Plan (as Amended and Restated Effective
September 8, 2016) (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on September 8, 2016).
*10.35 —Tailored Brands, Inc. Amended and Restated Senior Executive Change in Control Severance Plan (incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on
September 7, 2017).
*10.36 —Tailored Brands, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 20, 2019).
*10.37 —Form of Award Agreement under the Tailored Brands, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
December 20, 2019).
*10.38 —Tailored Brands, Inc. Amended and Restated Senior Executive Change in Control Severance Plan (incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on
September 7, 2017).
*10.39 —Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated June 21, 2018, by and between Tailored
Brands, Inc., Tailored Shared Services, LLC, and Douglas S. Ewert (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on June 22, 2018).
*10.40 —Separation Agreement by and between Tailored Shared Services, LLC and Douglas S. Ewert dated August 28,
2018 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on August 28, 2018).
*10.41 —Letter Agreement by and between Tailored Brands, Inc. and Dinesh S. Lathi dated April 19, 2019 and effective
March 27, 2019 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
(Amendment No. 2) filed with the Commission on April 26, 2019).
*10.42 —Separation Agreement by and between Tailored Shared Services, LLC and Mary Beth Blake (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on January
3, 2020).
21.1 —Subsidiaries of the Company (filed herewith).
23.1 —Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent registered public accounting firm (filed herewith).
31.1 —Certification of Annual Report Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive
Officer (filed herewith).
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31.2 —Certification of Annual Report Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial
Officer (filed herewith).
32.1 —Certification of Annual Report Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive
Officer (furnished herewith)†.
32.2 —Certification of Annual Report Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial
Officer (furnished herewith)†.
101.1 —The following financial information from Tailored Brands, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended February 1, 2020, formatted in iXBRL (Inline eXtensible Business Reporting Language) and filed
electronically herewith: (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) the Consolidated Statements of (Loss) Earnings;
(iii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income; (iv) the Consolidated Statements of
Shareholders’ (Deficit) Equity; (v) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; and (vi) the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
104 —The cover page from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 1, 2020,
formatted in Inline XBRL (included within Exhibit 101).
*

Management Compensation or Incentive
Plan.

†

This exhibit will not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise
subject to the liability of that section. Such exhibit shall not be deemed incorporated into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
TAILORED BRANDS, INC.
By
/s/ Dinesh S. Lathi
Dinesh S. Lathi
President and Chief Executive Officer
Dated: April 8, 2020
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

/s/ Dinesh S. Lathi
Dinesh S. Lathi

President and Chief Executive Officer and Director

April 8, 2020

/s/ Jack P. Calandra

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)

April 8, 2020

Chairman of the Board and Director

April 8, 2020

/s/ Irene Chang Britt
Irene Chang Britt

Director

April 8, 2020

/s/ Sue E. Gove
Sue E. Gove

Director

April 8, 2020

/s/ Grace Nichols
Grace Nichols

Director

April 8, 2020

/s/ andrew vollero
Andrew Vollero

Director

April 8, 2020

Jack P. Calandra
/s/ Theo Killion
Theo Killion
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Exhibit 4.4

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK
The following description of the capital stock of Tailored Brands, Inc. (the “Company”) is a summary and is subject to, and qualified in
its entirety by reference to, our Certificate of Formation and our Amended and Restated Bylaws, both of which are included as
exhibits to our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K. You are encouraged to read these documents.
We are incorporated in the State of Texas. The terms of our capital stock are therefore subject to Texas law, including the Texas
Business Organizations Code (the “TBOC”), and the common and constitutional law of Texas, as well as our Certificate of Formation
and our Amended and Restated Bylaws.
Our authorized capital stock consists of 100,000,000 shares of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, and 2,000,000 shares of
Preferred Stock, par value $.01 per share. Our Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “TLRD”.
Common Stock
Voting Rights
Holders of shares of Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share in the election of directors and on all other matters submitted
to a vote of shareholders. Such holders do not have the right to cumulate their votes in the election of directors.
With respect to any matter, other than the election of directors or a matter for which a different vote is required by law or the
certificate of formation, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote on, and that voted for or
against or expressly abstained with respect to, that matter at a meeting of shareholders at which a quorum is present shall be the
act of the shareholders. Unless otherwise required by law or by the Certificate of Formation, directors shall be elected by a plurality
of the votes cast by the holders of shares entitled to vote in the election of directors at a meeting of shareholders at which a quorum
is present; provided that, while all directors receiving a plurality of votes cast will be elected to the board of directors, our bylaws
provide that if a director does not receive a majority of the votes cast in an uncontested election of directors then the board of
directors must consider and vote on accepting the resignation of such director (through a previously delivered irrevocable
resignation letter that each director nominee has delivered to the Company’s Corporate Secretary) and, within 90 days, notify the
shareholders whether it has accepted the resignation and the reasons for such decision.
Dividend Rights
Holders of Common Stock have an equal and ratable right to receive dividends, when, as and if declared by the board of directors out
of funds legally available therefor and only after payment of, or provision

for, full dividends on all outstanding shares of any series of Preferred Stock and after the Company has made provision for any
required sinking or purchase funds for any series of Preferred Stock.
Liquidation Rights
In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, holders of Common Stock are entitled to share equally and
ratably in all of the assets remaining, if any, after satisfaction of all debts and liabilities of the Company, and the preferential rights of
any series of Preferred Stock then outstanding.
Other
Holders of Common Stock have no redemption or conversion rights and no preemptive or other rights to subscribe for securities of
the Company. The shares of Common Stock outstanding are fully paid and non-assessable.
Preferred Stock
The Preferred Stock may be issued, from time to time in one or more series, and the board of directors, without further approval of
the shareholders, is authorized to fix the dividend rights and terms, redemption rights and terms, liquidation preferences, conversion
rights, voting rights and sinking fund provisions applicable to each such series of Preferred Stock. If the Company issues a series of
Preferred Stock in the future that has voting rights or preference over the Common Stock with respect to the payment of dividends
and upon the Company’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the rights of the holders of Common Stock offered hereby may be
adversely affected. The issuance of shares of Preferred Stock could be utilized, under certain circumstances, in an attempt to prevent
an acquisition of the Company.
On March 30, 2020, the Board of Directors authorized 100,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and declared a dividend of one
preferred share purchase right (a “Right”) for each share of Common Stock outstanding on April 9, 2020 to the shareholders of record
on that date. Each Right entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company one one-thousandth of a share of Series A
Preferred Stock, at a price of $15.00 per one one-thousandth of a share of Series A Preferred Stock represented by a Right, subject to
adjustment. The description and terms of the Rights are set forth in a Rights Agreement, dated as of March 30, 2020, between the
Company and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, filed by the Company with SEC on March 31, 2020 on a Current Report
on Form 8-K. In addition, the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions of the Series A Preferred Stock are set forth on a
Statement of Designations filed by the Company with SEC on April 1, 2020 on a Current Report on Form 8-K. The Rights Agreement
will expire on March 29, 2021, unless earlier terminated in accordance with its terms.
Limitation of Director Liability
The Certificate of Formation of the Company contains a provision that limits the liability of the Company's directors as permitted
under Texas law. The provision eliminates the liability of a director to the Company or its shareholders for monetary damages for
negligent or grossly negligent acts or omissions in the director's capacity as a director. The provision does not affect the liability of a
director for (i) breach of such director’s duty of loyalty to the Company or to its shareholders, (ii) acts or omissions not in good faith
that constitute a breach of duty of such director to the Company or that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law,
(iii) transactions from which such director received an improper benefit, whether or not the benefit resulted from an action taken
within the scope of the director’s office, or (iv) acts or omissions for which the liability of a director is expressly provided by an
applicable statute.
Pursuant to the Certificate of Formation, the liability of directors will be further limited or eliminated without action by shareholders
if Texas law is amended to further limit or eliminate the personal liability of directors.

Anti-Takeover Provisions
Pursuant to our Certificate of Formation and Amended and Restated Bylaws
A number of provisions of our Certificate of Formation and Amended and Restated Bylaws concern matters of corporate governance
and the rights of shareholders which may be deemed to have anti-takeover effect and may discourage takeover attempts not first
approved by the board of directors, including, but not limited to, the requirement that any actions taken by shareholders outside of a
regular or special meeting of shareholders must be by unanimous written consent, certain advance notice requirements for
shareholder proposals and director nominations, the filling of vacancies on the board of directors by the affirmative vote of a
majority of the remaining directors, removal of directors only for cause, and the ability of the board of directors to issue shares of
Preferred Stock and to set the voting rights, preferences and other terms thereof, without further shareholder action.
Pursuant to Texas Law
Section 21.457 of the TBOC provides that the affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding shares of the
Company entitled to vote on a fundamental business transaction is required to approve the transaction. In addition, Section 21.606
of the TBOC restricts certain business combinations between us and an affiliated shareholder (beneficial ownership of 20% or more
of the voting power of our stock entitled to vote for directors) for three years after the shareholder becomes an affiliated
shareholder. The restrictions do not apply if the board of directors approved the transaction that caused the shareholder to become
an affiliated shareholder or if the business combination is approved by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of our voting stock that is
not beneficially owned by the affiliated shareholder at a meeting of shareholders called for that purpose within six months of the
affiliated shareholder’s acquiring the shares. Although we may elect to exclude ourselves from the restrictions imposed by Section
21.457 and Section 21.606, our Certificate of Formation does not do so.
Transfer Agent and Registrar
The transfer agent and registrar for the Common Stock is American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, at 40 Wall Street, New York, NY
10005.

Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of the Company

(1)

Domestic Subsidiaries:
The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc., a Texas corporation(2)(3)
Jos. A. Bank Clothiers, Inc., a Delaware corporation(4)
The Joseph A. Bank Mfg. Co., Inc., a Delaware corporation(5)
K&G Men’s Company Inc., a Delaware corporation(4)(6)
JA Apparel Corp., a Delaware corporation(4)(7)
Nashawena Mills Corp., a Massachusetts corporation(8)
Joseph Abboud Manufacturing Corp., a Delaware corporation(8)
MWDC Holding Inc., a Delaware corporation(4)
Renwick Technologies, Inc., a Texas corporation(4)
TMW Merchants LLC, a Delaware limited liability company(4)
Tailored Shared Services, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company(4)
Tailored Brands Purchasing LLC, a Texas limited liability company(9)
Tailored Brands Gift Card Co LLC, a Texas limited liability company(9)
Foreign Subsidiaries:
Moores Retail Group Corp., a Nova Scotia unlimited company(10)
Moores The Suit People Corp., a Nova Scotia unlimited company(11)(12)
Golden Brand Clothing (Canada) Corp., a Nova Scotia unlimited company(11)
MWUK Holding Company Limited, a limited company incorporated in England and Wales(13)
Ensco 648 Limited, a limited company incorporated in England and Wales(14)
Ensco 645 Limited, a limited company incorporated in England and Wales(15)
Tailored Brands Worldwide Purchasing Co., an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability(4)
TB UK Holding Limited, a limited company incorporated in England and Wales(4)
__________
(1)

(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)

As of February 1, 2020.The names of certain subsidiaries are omitted because such unnamed subsidiaries, considered in the aggregate as
a single subsidiary, do not constitute a significant subsidiary as of February 1, 2020.
100% owned by Tailored Brands, Inc.
The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. does business under the names Men’s Wearhouse and Men’s Wearhouse & Tux.
100% owned by The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc.
100% owned by Jos. A. Bank Clothiers, Inc.
K&G Men’s Company Inc. does business under the names K&G Fashion Superstore, K&G Fashion, and K&G Suit Warehouse.
JA Apparel Corp. does business under the name Joseph Abboud.
100% owned by JA Apparel Corp.
100% owned by Tailored Shared Services, LLC.
100% owned by TB UK Holding Limited.
100% owned by Moores Retail Group Corp.
Moores The Suit People Corp. does business under the names Moores Clothing for Men and Moores Vêtements Pour Hommes.
100% owned by Moores The Suit People Corp.
100% owned by MWUK Holding Company Limited.
100% owned by Ensco 648 Limited.

Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-74692, 333-21109, 333-53623, 333-90308, 333-125182,
333-152298, 333-175122, 333-209305, 333-212574, 333-219335, and 333-226227 on Form S-8 of our reports dated April 8, 2020, relating
to the consolidated financial statements of Tailored Brands, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) and the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Tailored Brands, Inc. for the year
ended February 1, 2020.
/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Houston, Texas
April 8, 2020

Exhibit 31.1
Certifications
I, Dinesh S. Lathi, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10‑K of Tailored Brands, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a‑15(e) and 15d‑15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a‑15(f) and 15d‑15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;
and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: April 8, 2020

By

/s/ DINESH S. LATHI
Dinesh S. Lathi
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
Certifications
I, Jack P. Calandra, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10‑K of Tailored Brands, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a‑15(e) and 15d‑15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a‑15(f) and 15d‑15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;
and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: April 8, 2020

By

/s/ JACK P. CALANDRA
Jack P. Calandra
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer

Exhibit 32.1
Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of The Sarbanes‑Oxley Act of 2002
Not Filed Pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
In connection with the Annual Report of Tailored Brands, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10‑K for the year ended February 1, 2020, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Dinesh S. Lathi, President and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes‑Oxley Act of 2002, that
to the best of my knowledge:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: April 8, 2020
By

/s/ DINESH S. LATHI
Dinesh S. Lathi
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 32.2
Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of The Sarbanes‑Oxley Act of 2002
Not Filed Pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
In connection with the Annual Report of Tailored Brands, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10‑K for the year ended February 1, 2020, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jack P. Calandra, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes‑Oxley Act of 2002, that to the
best of my knowledge:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: April 8, 2020
By

/s/ JACK P. CALANDRA
Jack P. Calandra
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer

